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NOTICE

Certain statements contained in this Registration Document may relate to objectives of SCOR SE (“SCOR SE” or the
“Company”) or of the SCOR Group (the “Group”) or to forward-looking information, specifically statements announcing
or corresponding to future events, trends, plans, or objectives, based on certain assumptions. These statements are
typically identified by words or phrases indicating an anticipation, assumption, belief, continuation, estimate, expectation,
forecast, intention, and possibility of increase or fluctuation and similar expressions or by future or conditional verbs. This
information is not historical data and must not be interpreted as a guarantee that the stated facts and data will occur or
that the objectives will be met. Undue reliance should not be placed on such statements, because, by nature, they are
subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors, which may cause actual results, performance,
achievements or prospects of SCOR SE to differ from any future results, performance, achievements or prospects
explicitly or implicitly set forth in the Registration Document. In addition, such forward-looking statements bear no
relation to “profit forecasts” in the sense of Article 2 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004.

This document is a free translation in English for information purposes only of the “Document de Référence” drafted in
French and filed with the AMF on 3 March 2010 under number D.10-0085.



SCOR

A European Company with share capital of EUR 1,457,885,613.93
Registered Office: 1, avenue du Général de Gaulle, 92800 Puteaux
Nanterre Trade and Company register (RCS) No. 562 033 357

REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

AUTORITE
DES MARCHES FINAMNCIERS

This registration document was filed on 3 March 2010 under number D.10-0085 with the French Autorité des Marchés
Financiers (AMF) in accordance with Article 212-13 of the AMF general regulation. It can be used as a support
document for a financial transaction only if presented together with a securities information note (note d’opération)
approved by the AMF.

Pursuant to Article 28 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004 of 29 April 2004 of the European Commission implementing the
Directive 2003/71/CE (the “Regulation (EC) 809/2004"), the following information is included by reference in this
registration document (the “Registration Document”):

B SCOR SE’s corporate and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and the
report of the statutory auditors regarding said financial statements as presented in SCOR SE'’s registration document
filed with the AMF on 5 March 2009 under number D.09-0099.

B SCOR SE'’s corporate and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 and the
report of the statutory auditors regarding said financial statements as presented in SCOR SE'’s registration document
filed with the AMF on 28 March 2008 under number D.08-0154.

Parts not included in this or these documents are either of no concern to the investor, or else are covered by another
section of this registration document.




Page intentionally left blank



A
2

i _‘_\H

NN
N4
[(CRN

f AN S S
RN
© 00 N

AR AA

—_ A
- aaa
WN O

4.2

422
423
424
425

4.3
431

4.4
4.4.1

Person responsible
Name and title of person responsible
Declaration by person responsible

Statutory Auditors

Auditors

Principal Auditors

Alternative Auditors

Resignation or non renewal of Auditors

Selected financial information
Group key figures (under current consolidation scope)

Risk factors

Risk related to the business environment

The Group is exposed to diverse risk factors in the Non-Life and Life reinsurance businesses

We are exposed to losses from catastrophic events

We could be subject to losses as a result of our exposure to terrorism

We could be subject to losses related to deteriorating results in lines in where we are no longer
actively writing business

If our reserves prove to be inadequate, our net income, cash flow and financial position may be
adversely affected

We may be adversely affected if our cedants, retrocessionaires, insurers or members of pools in
which we participate do not respect their obligations

We operate in a highly competitive sector

Financial ratings play an important role in our business

A significant portion of our contracts contain provisions relating to financial strength which could
have an adverse effect on our portfolio of contracts and our financial position

Operational risks, including human errors or computer system failure, are inherent in our business
We are exposed to risks related to the recent acquisitions

We are exposed to credit risks

We are exposed to the risk of no longer being able to retrocede liabilities on acceptable terms and
conditions

Market risk

We face risks related to our fixed income investment portfolio

We face risks related to our equity-based portfolio

We are exposed to other risks arising from our financial instruments

We are exposed to currency risk

Our shareholders’ equity and net income are sensitive to the valuation of our intangible assets and
deferred tax assets

Liquidity risk

We face liquidity requirements in the short to medium term in order to cover, for example, claims
payments, operational expenses and debt redemptions. In the case of catastrophe claims, in
particular, we may need to settle amounts which exceed the amount of available liquidity

Legal risk

We are exposed to risks related to legislative and regulatory changes and political, legislative,
regulatory or professional initiatives concerning the insurance and reinsurance sector, which could
have adverse consequences for our business and our sector

We are exposed to certain litigation matters

Our positions on tax accounts are subject to audit and approval by tax authorities

Insurance of specific operational risks (excluding reinsurance activity)

Risks and litigation: Reserving methods

Information about the issuer

History and development of the issuer

Legal name and commercial name of issuer

Place and registration number of issuer

Date of incorporation and length of life of issuer

Domicile and legal form of issuer, legislation governing its activities, country of incorporation,
address and telephone number of its registered office
Important events in the development of the issuer’s business
Investments

Principal investments made over the past three financial years
Principal investments in progress

Principal future investments
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Life reinsurance

Dependency of the issuer with respect to patents or licenses, industrial, commercial or financial
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Information on SCOR’s competitive position

Non-Life reinsurance

Life reinsurance

Organisational structure
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Property, plant and equipment
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Operating and financial review

Financial position

Operating results

Consolidated operating results

SCOR Global P&C

SCOR Gilobal Life

Retrocession

Strategy or factors of governmental, economic, fiscal, monetary or political character which have or
could have a material impact on the operations of the SCOR Group

Capital resources

Capital

Cash flow

Borrowing conditions and financing structure

Restrictions on the use of capital
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Research and development, patents and licenses
Research and development activities
Information technologies

Trend information
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PERSON RESPONSIBLE

Name and title of person responsible

Mr. Denis Kessler, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of SCOR SE.

Declaration by person responsible

B | declare that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this
Registration Document is, to the best of my knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely
to affect its import.

B | confirm that, to the best of my knowledge, the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and accurately show the position of the assets and liabilities, the financial position
and the profit or loss of the company and of all businesses and firms included within the scope of the consolidated
group, and that the management report, mentioned in Appendix E, accurately reflects the evolution of the business,
the results and the financial position of the company and of all businesses and firms included within the scope of the
consolidated group, and describes the main risks and contingencies which they are faced with.

B | have obtained an audit completion letter from the statutory auditors, in which they indicate that they have verified the
information concerning the financial situation and the accounts provided in this Registration Document, and have
read the entire Registration Document.

B The historical financial information included in the Registration Document was certified by the auditors. Their reports
are reproduced in Section 20.2 and Appendix A of this document, and incorporated by reference for financial years
2008 and 2007, in section 20.2 and Appendix A of the 2008 Registration Document and in Sections 20.3.1.1 and
20.3.1.2 of the 2007 Registration Document. The audit reports on the 2009 Consolidated Financial Statements, 2008
Corporate Financial Statements and 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements include comments.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Denis KESSLER
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

Auditors

2.1.1 PRINCIPAL AUDITORS

Date of first

appointment

MAZARS
Represented by Mr. Michel Barbet-Massin
Tour Exaltis — 61, rue Henri Regnault 22 June 1990

92075 La Défense Cedex
CRCC of Versailles

End of current appointment

On the date of the Shareholder’s
Meeting called to approve the
financial statements of the
financial year ending 31
December 2013

ERNST & YOUNG Audit

Represented by Mr. Pierre Planchon

Tour Ernst and Young

11, Faubourg de I'Arche 13 May 1996
92037 Paris la Défense Cedex

CRCC of Versailles

On the date of the Shareholder’s
Meeting called to approve the
financial statements of the
financial year ending 31
December 2013

2.1.2 ALTERNATIVE AUDITORS

Date of first

appointment

Mr. Charles Vincensini

71, avenue Mozart

75016 Paris 7 May 2008
CRCC of Paris

Picarle et Associés
11, allée de I'Arche
92037 Paris la Défense Cedex
CRCC of Versailles

7 May 2008

End of current appointment

On the date of the Shareholder’s
Meeting called to approve the
financial statements of the financial
year ending 31 December 2013

On the date of the Shareholder’'s
Meeting called to approve the
financial statements of the financial
year ending 31 December 2013

Resignation or non renewal of auditors

Not applicable.

10



Selected financial
information

11



SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
page 13

Group key figures (under current consolidation scope)

12



SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Group key figures (under current consolidation
scope)
SCOR SE and its consolidated subsidiaries (“SCOR” or the “Group”) is the world’s 5™ largest reinsurer ("’ serving more
than 3,500 clients from its organisational Hubs located in New York, Cologne, London, Paris, Singapore and Zurich.

The 2009 year end results and balance sheet strength demonstrate the effectiveness of SCOR’s strategy which is based
on high business and geographical diversification and focuses on traditional reinsurance activity.

In March 2009, Standard and Poor’s raised SCOR SE and its core guaranteed subsidiaries long-term credit and insurer
financial strength ratings from "A-" to "A" with a stable outlook.

In EUR million 2007 adjusted @
Consolidated SCOR Group

Gross written premiums 6,379 5,807 4,762
Net earned premiums 5,763 5,281 4,331
Operating income © 372 348 576
Net income 370 315 407
Investment income (gross of expenses) 503 467 727
Investment yield (net of expenses) 2.4% 2.3% 4.3%
Return on equity © 10.2% 9.0% 14.0%
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) © 2.06 1.76 278
Book value per share (in EUR) 21.80 19.01 20.11
Share price (in EUR) 17.50 16.37 17.50
Operating cash flow 851 779 611
Total Assets 27,989 26,534 25,734
Liquidity ") 1,655 3,711 2,052
Shareholders’ equity 3,901 3,416 3,648
Claims supporting capital © 4,569 4,200 4,434
SCOR Global P&C Division

Gross written premiums 3,261 3,106 2,329
Net combined ratio 96.8% 98.6% 97.3%
SCOR Global Life Division

Gross written premiums 3,118 2,701 2,432
SCOR Global Life operating margin 5.8% 6.0% 7.4%

(1) Source: “S&P Global Reinsurance Highlights 2009” (excluding Lloyd’s of London)

(2) Comparative figures have been adjusted for the completion of the initial acquisition accounting of the Converium acquisition. See Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Notes 1 and 3 in the 2008 Reference Document.

(3) Operating income is defined as result before financial expenses, share in results of associates, restructuring costs, negative goodwill and taxes.

(4) Investment expenses include EUR 8 million incurred by SCOR Global Investment.

(5) Return on equity is based the Group’s share of net income divided by average shareholders’ equity (calculated as shareholders’ equity at the beginning of the period
adjusted for the linear effect of all movements during the period).

(6) Earnings per share is calculated as net income divided by basic number of shares. The basic number of shares includes the average number of closing shares, shares
issued during the period and time-weighted treasury shares.

(7) Liquidity is defined as cash and cash equivalents and short term investments comprised primarily of government bonds maturing less than 12 months from date of
purchase.

(8) Claims supporting capital is defined as the sum of IFRS shareholders’ equity, subordinated debt and debt securities (including OCEANE for EUR 191 million repayable
on 1 January 2010).

(9) The 96.8% net combined ratio in 2009 excludes non-recurring costs of the Highfields settlement and related legal expenses (pre tax, EUR 12 million, net of expected
recoveries), certain other expenses as disclosed in the 2008 reference document and the exceptional impact of the outcome of the arbitration with Allianz in respect of the
World Trade Center (EUR 39 million after tax). The 2009 net combined ratio, including the outcome of the World Trade Center arbitration, is 98.8%. The unadjusted net
combined ratio is 99.5%. Refer also to 9.2.2, “SCOR Global P&C.”
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RISK FACTORS

The risk factors described below must be considered together with the other information contained in the Registration
Document, and specifically with:

Appendix B - Report from the Chairman of the Board of Directors on the terms and conditions for preparing and
organising the work of the Board of Directors and on internal control procedures in accordance with article L.225-37
of the French Commercial Code - Part I, which describes the internal control procedures set up by the Group to
address the risks to which the Group is exposed.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group that appear in Section 20.1 - Historical financial information:
consolidated financial statements and in particular Note 27 - Insurance and financial risk.

INTRODUCTION

SCOR focuses on monitoring its critical risks through processes and procedures as outlined in its ERM framework.
SCOR’s ERM framework is based on the COSO Il framework which covers strategic, operational, reporting and
compliance aspects of Risk Management. Fundamental parts of SCOR’s ERM framework are

a) The Strategic Objectives (Dynamic Lift targets):
B To secure a ROE of 900 bps above risk free rate over the cycle;
B To provide an "A+" level of security to Group clients by 2010;
B To self-finance the current business plan of the Group
B To return excess capital to shareholders by various means and
b) The Group’s Risk Appetite (Capital Shield Policy)

For the SCOR Group, the Risk Appetite is articulated in the “Capital Shield” policy. The purpose of the SCOR
Group’s Capital Shield policy is to ensure that the Group reconciles its strategic objectives with the protection of
its capital. The Capital Shield policy is based on an economic approach in order to protect against all potential
losses, some of which are not immediately recognised from a pure accounting view. It is built on the following two
concepts:

i) Active hedging of peak exposures through retrocession

The level of retrocession is selected to ensure that the Group’s retained risk profile respects the following Group
Risk Tolerance limits, which are designed to ensure that the Group achieves its return on capital and solvency
objectives:

B the amount of retained exposure for about 40 Lines of Business (LOBs) and Asset Classes is limited to
ensure that an annual loss from any one of these (measured as 95%TVaR) does not exceed 5% (7.5% for
CAT business) of the Group’s available capital. These limits are intended to avoid concentration of risk in
specific LOBs or asset classes.

B the amount of retained exposure of the Group to very extreme scenarios (with a probability of higher or equal
to 1in 250 years ) is limited to a loss of 15% of the Group’s available capital. These limits are designed to limit
the impact of extreme scenarios on the shareholders’ capital.

ii) Buffer Capital

In addition to the solvency capital required to support the retained (after retrocession) risk profile, SCOR also
holds Buffer Capital. This extra economic capital enables the Group to absorb a significant amount of inherent
volatility, without having to turn to the market too frequently in order to maintain the Group’s available capital
above the required solvency capital.
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The level of Buffer Capital is chosen according to the following risk/reward strategy:
B satisfying the objective of a return on shareholders’ equity of 900bps above the risk free rate over the cycle

B reducing the probability of sustaining a reduction in economic value in excess of the Buffer Capital to below
an acceptable level (with the current risk profile, the probability to suffer such an economic loss is
approximately 10%).

Variations in the Group’s retained risk profile may occur due to a change in the underlying asset and liability portfolios
and changes in the level of riskiness of certain parts of the asset and liabilities eg due to rapid or slowly emerging
changes in the economic, financial, social, legal and regulatory environments.

SCOR’s Board and Executive Management team regularly review the Group’s Risk Profile to ensure that the Group’s
Risk Appetite remains aligned with the Group’s strategy.

SCOR uses various mechanisms within its comprehensive ERM Framework to manage the Group's retained risk profile.
These mechanisms enable SCOR to identify, assess and control specific risks and:

B Take mitigation actions to reduce the Group’s retained exposure to specific risks so that the Risk Tolerance limits
defined above are not breached

B Take optimisation actions to capitalise on attractive risk-return opportunities

The reinsurance sector is regulated. The regulator, through prudential rules and principles, contributes to an increased
vigilance on the part of companies in this sector thus reinforcing the company’s existing risk management mechanisms.
One particularity of the reinsurance sector concerns a non-significant number of balance sheet items which are either
based on accounting or model estimations. These estimations depend very much on the underlying assumptions, data
used and the appropriateness of the model.

The outlook for the world economy in 2010 and beyond is sensitive and uncertain which makes it impossible to predict
all possible future outcomes, some of which may have a significant negative impact on the Group. In particular, SCOR’s
results could be significantly affected if some sectors of the economy are subject to extremely high inflation. SCOR is
managing this risk in two ways: firstly by prudent management of reserves and secondly by a strategy of hedging against
inflation using Indexed-Linked Government Bonds for instance.

The Group will continue to use all available risk management tools to manage the downside risks and also take
advantage of opportunities that offer high returns in relation to risk.

Risk related to the business environment

4.1.1 THE GROUP IS EXPOSED TO DIVERSE RISK FACTORS IN THE NON-LIFE AND LIFE REINSURANCE
BUSINESSES

The principal risk the Group faces under insurance and reinsurance contracts is that the actual amounts of claims and
benefit payments, or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. The frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid, subsequent development of long-tail claims and external factors beyond the Group's control, including
inflation, legal developments and others have an influence on the principal risk faced by the Group. Additionally, the
Group is subject to the quality of claims management by ceding companies and other data provided by them and thus
performs periodic audits at ceding companies. In spite of these uncertainties the Group seeks to ensure that sufficient
reserves are available to cover its liabilities.

Generally, SCOR's ability to increase its portfolios in the Life and Non-Life reinsurance segments may be subject to
external factors such as economic risks and political risks.

Non-Life reinsurance business represents approximately 52% of SCOR's business, compared to 48% for Life
reinsurance business based on 2009 gross written premiums.
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NON-LIFE REINSURANCE

(a) Property

The Property business underwritten by SCOR Global P&C is exposed to multiple insured losses arising from a single or
multiple events, which can be catastrophic, being either caused by nature (e.g. hurricane, windstorm, flood, hail, severe
winter storm, earthquake, etc.) or by the intervention of a man-made cause (e.g. explosion, fire at a major industrial
facility, act of terrorism, etc.). Any such catastrophic event can generate insured losses in one or several of SCOR's lines
of business.

The same losses may be covered under various different lines of business within Property such as fire, engineering,
aviation, space, marine, energy and agricultural.

(b) Casualty

For Casualty business, the frequency and severity of claims and the related indemnification payment amounts can be
affected by several factors. The most significant factors are the changing legal and regulatory environment, including
changes in civil liability law. Additionally, due to the length of amicable, arbitral and court procedures, the Casualty
business is exposed to inflation risks regarding the assessment of claim amounts. Additional exposure could arise from
so-called emerging risks, which are risks considered to be new or subject to constant evolution such as EMF
(Electromagnetic Fields) or Nanotechnology.

(c) Cyclicality of the business

Non-Life insurance and reinsurance businesses are cyclical. Historically, reinsurers have experienced significant
fluctuations in operating income due to volatile and unpredictable developments, many of which are beyond the control
of the reinsurer including primarily, frequency or severity of catastrophic events, levels of capacity offered by the market
and general economic conditions and to varying extents the price competition and capacity available.

The primary consequences of these structural factors are to reduce the volume of Non-Life reinsurance premiums on the
market, to make the reinsurance market more competitive, and also to favour the operators who are most attentive to the
specific needs of the cedants.

Beyond the general trends, the premium rate cycle affects certain geographic markets and/or certain lines of business in
a differentiated fashion and independently of each other.

(d) Risk control

Underwriting guidelines, which specify maximum acceptable commitment per risk and per event, are in place within
SCOR Gilobal P&C. They are reviewed and updated annually by the Underwriting Management Department and
approved by the CEO and Chief Risk Officer of SCOR Global P&C. Any request for deviations from the underwriting
guidelines is subject to special referral procedures at two key levels: at the first level, the request is submitted by the
underwriting units to the Underwriting Management Department and at the second level, for exposures exceeding
certain thresholds or with specified characteristics, the request is submitted by the Underwriting Management
Department to the Group Risk Management Department of SCOR SE.

Pricing guidelines and parameters are set to provide consistency and continuity across the organisation but also taking
account of the differences between lines of business as well as the geographical location of the client and the risks
insured. Parameters are revised at least once a year to consider, as the case may be, the market conditions and
environment. Contracts that meet certain risk thresholds are subject to mandatory peer reviews that have to be
performed and documented before the pricing is completed. SCOR Global P&C employs a data system which allows
management to monitor and review the results from the pricing tools.

Catastrophe management is split into four sections in a matrix structure under SCOR Global P&C. Descriptive guidelines
are available for each one of them; ‘data quality & modelling’, ‘accumulation control’, ‘catastrophe methodologies’ and
‘system & processes’. A system of cat referrals has been introduced in excess of a given threshold for peak cat
territories.

Underwriting cross-reviews are initiated by SCOR Global P&C Risk Management Department to evaluate the quality of
underwriting of particular underwriting units or certain lines of business, to identify risks, to assess the appropriateness
and effectiveness of controls and to propose risk-management actions, including mitigating actions.

Claims are processed and monitored within each SCOR Global P&C entity. Their claims activities are supported and
controlled by the central SCOR Global P&C Claims Department which is also responsible for the direct management of
large, contentious, serial and/or latent claims. Audits are conducted on ceding companies' claims management
procedures.
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The Group has a Large Claims Committee which meets on a regular basis. The main objectives of this committee are:
B to assess and review the impact, at the Group level, of large and/or strategic claims;

B to monitor the management of such claims among the various business lines and Group entities;

B to communicate the lessons learnt to management for potential changes in strategy and underwriting policy.

(e) Risk assessment

Property - The geographical accumulations by peril are analysed using external software and simulation tools. The
principal tools used are World Cat Enterprise (WCE) developed by Eqgecat, RiskLink by RMS and Catrader by AIR.

These tools enable the Group to quantify its exposure in terms of a probable maximum loss (PML) at various levels of
probability for each peril and geographic location. The overall aggregate annual PML per peril, allowing for potential
multiple events, provides the information required to determine the level of retrocession and other risk transfer
mechanisms (e.g. catastrophe bonds) that are needed to ensure that the net aggregate exposure remains within
predefined tolerance limits.

The probabilistic catastrophe modelling approach captures the uncertainty related to the likelihood of a given event
occurring (frequency uncertainty) as well as the uncertainty associated with the amount of loss, given that a particular
event has occurred (severity uncertainty). A sound understanding of the uncertainties associated with the model's key
parameters is essential for the interpretation of the model outcome and thus for decision-making. The outcomes for each
model describe a bandwidth of loss estimates and not a unique value. In order to identify and stress-test the key
parameters, systematic sensitivity analyses are carried out.

Furthermore SCOR has developed a global CAT data warehouse and reporting system to capture key input modelling
parameters at country, cresta, city or latitude/longitude coordinates. This system will enable SCOR to test systematically
for catastrophe data quality and assess sensitivity in the risk modelling process from very large complex and detailed
portfolios to very small aggregated ones, enabling these sets to be merged and reported for underwriting cat business or
dynamic accumulation control.

LIFE REINSURANCE

The main categories of risk for life insurance and reinsurance are biometric, behavioural and catastrophe risks as well as
credit risk (see Section 4.1.12 — We are exposed to credit risks), currency risks (See section 4.2.4 -currency risk) and
market risks (See section 4.2.3 - We are exposed to other risks arising from our financial instruments).

(a) Biometric risks

The assessment of biometric risks is at the centre of underwriting risk in life reinsurance. These are risks which result
from adverse developments in mortality, morbidity, longevity or epidemic/pandemic claims for direct insurers and
reinsurers. These risks are evaluated by SCOR Global Life's actuaries and medical underwriters, who analyse and use
information from SCOR Global Life's own portfolio experience, from the ceding companies as well as relevant
information available in the public domain, such as mortality or disability studies and tables produced by various
statistical organisations.

B Mortality Risk

Mortality risk is the risk of loss due to higher than anticipated death rates (due to higher frequency of claims and/or an
increased cost of claims under the insured portfolio) resulting from either a general volatility, an adverse long-term
trend or a mortality shock event.

B Morbidity Risk
Products such as critical iliness, short-term and long-term disability or long term care, which all contain morbidity risk,
are subject to, among others, the risk of negative trends in health (e.g., due to obesity, pollution, stress) as well as
improved medical diagnoses capabilities which increase the number of claims that otherwise would possibly have

remained undetected. Products providing cover for medical expenses are subject to higher than anticipated incidence
rates and medical inflation.

B | ongevity Risk

Longevity risk refers to the risk of a loss arising due to the insured or annuitant living longer than expected. This risk
exists within reinsured annuity and long-term care covers or within other longevity protection products.
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B Pandemic

In life reinsurance, a major risk lies in the occurrence of a severe pandemic. In the past century, three major
outbreaks of influenza occurred and claimed millions of lives. The occurrence of a similar event could cause large
losses to the Group, due to an increased mortality far beyond the usual volatility. Experts closely monitor the current
H1N1 influenza virus strain to identify any possible mutations that could make the virus more virulent. A lethal virus
strain could lead to a heavy increase in mortality rates which could significantly affect SCOR’s results. Other
infectious diseases are equally studied due to their potential for a significant loss development. In general, better
means of communication and increased public health measures, combined with progress in vaccine research, make
the estimated impact of future pandemics less severe than those of the past.

The potential loss relating to a severe pandemic is estimated using models. However, the limited amount of data
available, coupled with weaknesses in current pandemic models, increases the uncertainty in the results. The financial
outcome of a severe pandemic could, therefore, differ considerably from that expected by the model, thus leading to a
significantly higher loss than expected.

(b) Behavioural risks

SCOR Global Life is also exposed to risks related to policyholder behaviour. This includes risks such as lapsation, anti-
selection at policy issue detrimental to the insurer, unexpected number of exercises of options by the policyholder,
fraudulent applications.

B Lapsation

Lapses refer to either non payment of premium by the policyholder or to policies which are terminated by the assured
before the maturity date of the policy. Depending on the product design, higher or lower policyholder lapses may
reduce SCOR Global Life's expected future income. Lapses may differ from expected due to a changing economic
environment or other reasons, such as changes in tax incentives for the reinsured policies, tarnished reputation of the
cedant or from the introduction of more attractive products in the market. SCOR studies and closely monitors this risk.

B Anti-selection

Anti-selection refers to the problem of asymmetry of information between the insured and the insurer. An individual
applying for life or health insurance cover usually has better knowledge about his or her own state of health than the
insurer. The risk to the (re)insurer is of policyholders deliberately deciding to:

B take out a policy in the knowledge that either their chances of claiming is high or higher than average;
B terminate a policy in the knowledge that their chances of claiming are low or lower than average; or
B choose and exercise a policy option which allows to increase the policyholder's expected benefit.

(c) Catastrophe Risk

As previously indicated, unexpected natural or man-made catastrophic events can provoke very significant material
damage affecting the Non-Life activities of the Group. In addition, such events could cause multiple deaths and serious
injuries which could potentially seriously impact the Life activities of SCOR, particularly in instances of contracts covering
groups of employees working for the same employer at the same location.

(d) Risks linked to the types of guarantee

Certain life insurance products include guarantees, most frequently with respect to premium rates, insurance benefits,
and surrender or maturity values, or guarantees with regard to interest accrued on reserves or policyholder funds. Other
guarantees may exist, for example with regard to automatic adjustments of benefits or options applied in deferred
annuity policies.

Such guarantees may be explicitly or implicitly covered by the reinsurer under the reinsurance contract and if so expose
the reinsurer to the risk of adverse developments which increase the value of the guarantee and thereby necessitate
respective increases in benefit reserves.

(e) Risk control

Mandates for underwriting Life reinsurance business are assigned to the market units on a mutually exclusive basis. Life
reinsurance treaties are underwritten by Life reinsurance experts familiar with the specific features of their markets. The
Life business is underwritten in line with market specific underwriting and pricing guidelines. In particular, these
guidelines specify the type and the terms and conditions under which business is considered as acceptable.
Furthermore, they set out the retention of SCOR Global Life for various risks and types of covers. Deviations from
guidelines are subject to review by SCOR Global Life's Central Actuarial and Risk Management areas in order to ensure
that the business respects defined risk-adjusted return criteria and risk tolerance limits.
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Aggregate portfolio exposures are continually monitored. Through an accumulation control, risks which exceed SCOR
Global Life's retention are identified and retroceded. The retention limits are revised regularly based on SCOR Global
Life's risk profile.

(f) Risk assessment

In order to ensure that SCOR Global Life is continually kept up-to-date with biometric trends and scientific developments
SCOR Gilobal Life has created four dedicated technical research centres within the Life Central Actuarial and
Underwriting Department to analyse and assess the key factors underlying mortality/longevity, Long-Term Care and
disability risks. The SCOR Global Life Research Centres provide recommendations for the implementation of the
research results into the pricing, underwriting control and determination of exposure limits.

In order to reduce potential behavioural risk, SCOR Global Life carries out a thorough assessment of the client, the
client's target clientele, the market and the design of the insurance product.

INTERDEPENDENCE OF THE NON-LIFE AND LIFE REINSURANCE BUSINESS

The twin-engine activities of Non-Life and Life reinsurance take place in two different market environments. They are
subject to heterogeneous external constraints, which generally have only very limited correlation with each other. The
diversification and the overall balance between these two business areas within the Group represent stabilising factors.
However, in some extreme scenarios Non-Life and Life risks and financial market and credit risks could accumulate.
This exposes SCOR to accumulation and/or correlation risks which are difficult to quantify.

Unforeseen events, such as natural catastrophes or terrorist attacks, can cause significant damage. These types of risk
primarily affect the Non-Life operations. However, in cases where we face a large number of casualties, the possibility of
the losses also affecting Life reinsurance as well cannot be excluded. This mostly applies to Group reinsurance treaties
covering people who work for the same employer at the same location.

In the event of a very large natural catastrophe with many victims, the losses generated in Life and Non-Life could
potentially accumulate, with losses on financial assets related to the potential reaction of markets (e.g., interest rates,
exchange rates and equity market prices). In the same way a major pandemic event may cause financial market turmoil
or business interruptions.

SCOR takes into account the effect of the diversification between the two markets (Life and Non-Life) in its internal
model, by setting parameters for the interdependence of the various lines of business.

SCOR's ability to grow its portfolios in the Life and Non-Life reinsurance segments may be subject to correlated external
factors, such as economic and political risks.

Economic risks are related to slowdowns in economic growth or recessions in the major markets. This may lead
households to take out less insurance, to suspend certain premium payments, or to terminate the insurance policies
underlying the existing Life and Non-Life treaties earlier than anticipated.

Political risks, which are characterised by social and political instability in certain countries, are particularly significant in
emerging markets. These risks could lead to significantly reduced business growth in these markets. In such countries,
substantial changes in legislation and regulations, particularly in tax or commercial legislation, are more probable than in
more developed markets.

RISK MITIGATION

Insurance risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance and reinsurance contracts as
well as geographical areas. The volatility of risks is also reduced by careful business selection, implementation of
underwriting guidelines, the use of retrocession and other risk transfer arrangements, proactive claims handling as well
as underwriting, claims and administration audits at ceding companies.

In order to mitigate its Property exposure, SCOR retrocedes a portion of the risks it underwrites. Non-Life retrocession is
limited to catastrophes and major Property risks. In particular, SCOR has a global retrocession program, which is revised
annually, and which provides partial coverage for up to three major catastrophic events, natural or not, within one
occurrence year. The retrocession program includes both traditional retrocession as well as the use of capital market
solutions (e.g. catastrophe bonds).

With regard to its Casualty business SCOR allocates proportionately less capacity to new business of this type than to
Property. Furthermore, the underwriting guidelines restrict SCOR's shares of Casualty reinsurance programs and are
particularly restrictive regarding certain areas (Florida, California, etc).

Biometric risks, other than pandemic risk, are diversified on a geographic and a product basis with a claims experience
following the laws of large numbers.

Anti-selection risks are mitigated through careful product design and a well-defined medical and financial underwriting
selection process. SCOR mitigates lapse risk through appropriate reinsurance treaty clauses, as well as product, client
and market diversification in which the lapse risk exposure is variable.

A significant part of the reinsured premium, in respect of Disability Long-Term Care and Critical lllness products,
includes premium adjustment clauses. In the case of Long-Term Care, the premium adjustments are designed to offset

21



potentially improving longevity. In the case of Critical lliness, premium adjustments mitigate potential negative impacts
on future claims patterns due to a general deterioration in health and improved medical diagnosis.

Peak mortality, disability and critical iliness risks are covered either by surplus per life retrocession programs, or, in some
cases, by excess of loss per life or per event. In 2008, SCOR Global life entered into a fully collateralised Mortality Swap
arrangement with JP Morgan. The Mortality Swap reduces SCOR's exposure to major mortality shock events. In 2009,
SCOR Gilobal Life extended its protection by arranging an additional tranche of the Mortality Swap with a lower
attachment point. Both tranches are fully collateralised.

Nevertheless, no guarantee that the Group is protected from unexpected changes in Life or Non-Life claims frequency or
severity shall be implied from the measures detailed above in the sections Risk control, Risk assessment and Risk
mitigation.

4.1.2 WE ARE EXPOSED TO LOSSES FROM CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

Like all other reinsurance companies, SCOR may be exposed to multiple insured losses to property or to the person
arising from a single occurrence, whether a natural catastrophe such as a hurricane, windstorm, flood, hail, severe
winter storm, earthquake, or a man-made catastrophe such as an explosion, fire at a major industrial facility or an act of
terrorism. Any such catastrophic event may generate insured losses in one or more of SCOR's lines of business.

In particular, the Group's most significant exposure to natural catastrophes in Non-Life relates to earthquakes, storms,
typhoons, hurricanes, floods and other weather-related phenomena like hail or tornados.

The frequency and severity of such catastrophic events, particularly natural hazards, are by their nature unpredictable.
The inherent unpredictability of these events makes forecasts and risk evaluations uncertain for any given year. As a
result, our claims experience may vary significantly from one year to the next, which can have a significant impact on our
profitability, and financial position. In addition, depending on the frequency and nature of losses, the speed with which
claims are made and the terms of the policies affected, we may be required to make large claim payments within a short
period. We may be forced to fund those obligations by liquidating investments in distressed market conditions, or by
raising funds at unfavourable conditions.

We manage our exposure to catastrophes through selective underwriting practices, especially by limiting our exposure to
certain events in certain geographic zones (as for example hurricanes which are now frequent in the Gulf of Mexico), by
monitoring risk accumulation on a geographical basis and by retroceding a portion of those risks to other reinsurers
(retrocessionaires) selectively chosen based on the information publicly available confirming their solid financial strength.
We evaluate our natural catastrophe exposure by means of catastrophe modelling software.

The models used depend very much on the underlying parameters. Any future deviations in these parameters will
produce varying results depending on the sensitivity of the model to each parameter. Furthermore, the models can only
be applied to certain areas and must respect certain conditions. Catastrophic events could occur in areas not covered by
the models and could therefore generate losses which exceed those predicted by the models. Reality is always more
complex than that reflected by the models and this represents a risk for reinsurers. The risks for SCOR are mitigated, to
some extent, by the use of proprietary market models (World Cat Enterprise (EQECAT), RiskLink (RMS) and Catrader
(AIR)).Nevertheless there remains the possibility of incorrect choice of parameters or inappropriate use of the model in
certain areas, particularly if models are used in areas for which no market models exist.

Different risk measures (such as value at risk or expected shortfall) per peril and region provide the information required
to determine levels of retrocession and other risk transfer means (e.g. catastrophe bond) needed to ensure that the net
aggregate exposure remains within the acceptable risk tolerance. The modelling strategy is based on two pillars, a
sophisticated use and comparison of commercially available models with two models for peak regions (tier one regions)
and the most appropriate model for second and third tier markets. The impact of non-modelled but probable loss
potentials is considered taking into account sum of limits and maximum probable loss assumptions for each individual
peril and region.
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During 2009, the main accumulations tracked were:

B Northern Europe storms;

B Japan earthquake,

B USA earthquake;

And secondary accumulations:

B Earthquakes : Israel, Turkey, Italy, South Africa, Taiwan, China, Australia;
B Wind: USA, Caribbean, Mexico.

In Life Reinsurance, maximum underwriting capacities are defined to limit the exposure of SCOR Global Life on the
various types of treaties underwritten, proportional and non-proportional, covering individual or Group policies. These
capacities are revised each year, taking account of the capacities obtained by the retrocession coverage purchased by
the Group. Amongst these limits are found: maximum commitment per life accumulated for all SCOR exposures,
maximum annual commitments for non-proportional cover per life or per event, maximum commitment per country for
non-proportional exposures by event, a restrictive approach as regards terrorist or nuclear risks. Exposures by risk or by
event, for the portfolio as a whole, are measured by aggregating SCOR's retention and by taking into account the
capacity obtained through retrocession programs.

Nevertheless, no guarantee that the Group is protected against material catastrophic losses, or that retrocession will
continue to be available in the future at commercially acceptable rates shall be implied from the measures detailed
above, including those relating to the management of risks on a geographical basis or retrocessions. Although we
attempt to limit our exposure to acceptable levels, it is possible that multiple concurrent catastrophic events could have a
material adverse effect on our current and future revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

We also seek to reduce our dependence on traditional retrocession by using alternative retrocession agreements.
Accordingly, on 21 December 2006, we signed a multi-year catastrophe Property retrocession agreement with Atlas Ill, a
dedicated vehicle (SPRV, Special Purpose Reinsurance Vehicle) organised pursuant to the laws of Ireland and financed
by the issuance of a Cat Bond, the purpose of which is to provide EUR 120 million in additional retrocession coverage
for SCOR and its subsidiaries in the context of a second or subsequent event such as Europe Storm or Japan
Earthquake, the losses of which are determined by a model over a period running from 1 January 2007 to 31 December
2009. Continuing this strategy to diversify retrocession sources, SCOR issued two similar Cat Bonds, Atlas IV on 29
November 2007 for a term of three years and one month, providing EUR 160 million in additional retrocession coverage
for SCOR and its subsidiaries for a first event such as Europe Storm or Japan Earthquake and Atlas V on 19 February
2009 for a term of three years providing USD 200 million in additional retrocession coverage for SCOR and its
subsidiaries for an event such as U.S. and Puerto Rico Earthquake or Hurricane. Finally on 10" December 2009, Atlas
VI was issued to ensure continued protection in view of the imminent expiry of Atlas I, Atlas VI is a more “working”
cover than Atlas Ill providing EUR 75 million coverage against the risk of one or several earthquakes in Japan or
windstorms in Europe.

On 3 March 2008, SCOR announced that SCOR Global Life had signed a four-year mortality risk swap with JP Morgan
which is fully collateralised. This agreement allows the Group to benefit from coverage of USD 100 million, plus
EUR 36 million in the event of a significant rise in mortality following a major pandemic, a significant natural catastrophe
or a terrorist attack, for the period 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2011. In 2009, this mortality swap was extended by
another tranche with a significantly lower attachment point. The new tranche provides an additional maximum coverage
of USD 75 million for the period 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011.

4.1.3 WE COULD BE SUBJECT TO LOSSES AS A RESULT OF OUR EXPOSURE TO TERRORISM

In the context of our business, we may be exposed to claims arising from the consequences of terrorist acts. These
risks, the potential significance of which can be illustrated by the 11 September 2001 attack on the World Trade Center
("WTC") in the United States, can affect both individuals and property.

Refer to Section 20.1.6. - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 28 - Litigation for a description of the
situation in the WTC disputes.

After the attack of 11 September 2001, we adopted underwriting rules designed to exclude or limit our exposure to risks
related to terrorism in our reinsurance contracts, in particular in those countries and/or for the risks expected to be most
exposed to terrorism. However, it has not always been possible to implement these measures, particularly in our
principal markets. For example, certain European countries do not permit the exclusion of terrorist risks from insurance
policies. Due to these regulatory constraints, we have actively supported the creation of insurance and reinsurance pools
involving insurance and reinsurance companies as well as public authorities in order to spread the risks of terrorist
activity among the members of these pools. We participate in pools created in certain countries, such as France
(GAREAT), Germany (Extremus), the Netherlands (NHT) and Belgium (TRIP), which allow us to have limited and known
commitments. In the United States, the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act ("TRIA") passed in November 2002 for a period of
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three years, which was extended to 31 December 2007 by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act ("TRIEA"), was
renewed for 7 years, until 31 December 2014 by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorisation Act ("TRIPRA").
It established a federal assistance program to help insurance companies cover claims related to terrorist acts. TRIPRA
requires that terrorist acts be covered by insurers. Despite TRIPRA, and the federal aid that it provides, the U.S.
insurance market is still exposed to some significant risks in this area. Therefore, the Group monitors very closely its
exposure to the US market, primarily because of the insurance obligation created by the law. In addition to the
commitments described above, the Group does reinsure, from time to time, terrorist risks, usually limiting, by event and
by year of insurance the coverage that ceding companies receive for damage caused by terrorist acts.

Beyond the potential impact on our non-life book, a terror event could also affect our life portfolio. Although the insured
losses from past events have been comparatively small in relation to the non-life losses, a future terrorist act, such as a
“dirty bomb”, could claim a substantial amount of insured lives. SCOR monitors this extreme event on the life side by
running dedicated scenarios.

As a result, future terrorist acts, whether in the U.S. or elsewhere, could cause us significant claims payments and could
have a significant effect on our current and future revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

4.1.4 WE COULD BE SUBJECT TO LOSSES RELATED TO DETERIORATING RESULTS IN LINES WHERE WE
ARE NO LONGER ACTIVELY WRITING BUSINESS

EXPOSURE TO ENVIRONMENT POLLUTION AND ASBESTOS RELATED RISKS

Like other reinsurance companies, we are exposed to environmental pollution and asbestos related risks, particularly in
the United States. Insurers are required under their contracts to notify us of any claims or potential claims that they are
aware of. However, we often receive notices from insurers of potential claims related to environmental and asbestos
risks that are not precise enough, as the primary insurer may not have fully evaluated the loss at the time it notifies us of
the claim. Due to the imprecise nature of these claims, the uncertainty surrounding the extent of coverage under
insurance policies and whether or not particular claims are subject to any limit, the number of occurrences and new
developments regarding the insured and insurer liabilities, we can, like other reinsurers, only give a very approximate
estimate of our potential exposure to environmental and asbestos claims that may or may not have been reported.

In 2009, SCOR reduced its exposure to asbestos-related risks and environmental risks specifically through
commutations of business. SCOR evaluates its exposure and its potential development notably using actuarial
techniques and market practices that allow opportunistic negotiation of the terms of commutation settlement. The Group
intends to continue its commutation policy in 2010 and thereafter. It is anticipated that this policy will affect settlement
patterns to a limited degree in future years, but these changes in settlement patterns should progressively improve
predictability and reduce the potential volatility of reserves.

Nonetheless, due to the changing legal environment, including changes in tort law and case-law, in the U.S. in particular,
and equally with respect to scientific and medical progress the evaluation of the final cost of our exposure to asbestos
related and environmental claims may be increasing in uncertain proportions. Diverse factors could increase our
exposure to the consequences of asbestos-related risks, such as an increase in the number of claims filed or in the
number of persons likely to be exposed to these risks. Evaluation of these exposures is all the more difficult since claims
related are of a long tail nature. SCOR therefore relies on market assessments of survival ratios for funding our reserves
although data currently available for the American market relates to old underwriting years for which we do not have any
substantial exposure.

In addition, IBNR Reserves have been established to provide for additional reserves on both known and unknown
claims. These reserves are reviewed and updated quarterly.

Taking account of the above, it is difficult to estimate the reserves required for losses arising from asbestos and
environmental pollution and to guarantee that the estimated amount will be sufficient.

The reserve amount for these risks in addition to the number and the amount of losses are indicated in Paragraph 20.1.6
— Notes to the consolidated financial statement, Note 16 — Contract liabilities. Data related to the reserves arising from
the risks related to asbestos and environmental pollution are also in Paragraph 4.1.5 — If our claims reserves prove to be
inadequate, our net income, cash flow and financial position may be adversely affected.

As a result of these imprecisions and uncertainties, we cannot exclude the possibility that we could be exposed to
significant environmental and asbestos claims, or have to increase our reserving level, which could have an adverse
effect on our current and future revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

EXPOSURE TO GUARANTEED DEATH BENEFIT (GMDB) PRODUCTS

SCOR Global Life inherited from Converium retrocession liabilities with regard to Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit
(GMDB) rider options attached to variable annuity policies written in the U.S. This type of business, which carries during
financial crisis a specific economic risk is not within the usual scope of the SCOR Global Life underwriting policy. These
treaties are all in run-off and cover in total approximately 0.8 million policies guaranteed by two cedants to ex-
Converium. They were issued mainly in the late 1990's and incorporate various benefit types. Claims occur in the event
of death and if the GMDB exceeds the insured’s account balance. Under these circumstances, the difference between
the GMDB and the account balance or the GMDB and the cash surrender value becomes due, depending on the
definition of the underlying reinsurance agreements.
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Different types of Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefits are covered, including return of premium, ratchet, roll-up and
reset. Guarantees that increase over the time are, for a majority of the assumed business, only applied up to a certain
age. This implies that SCOR Global Life will be released from the risk when the beneficiary reaches this age limit.

SCOR Gilobal Life does not hold any funds linked to this type of contract. These assets remain with the originating
ceding companies.

The GMDB Liability is determined periodically based on the information provided to SCOR Global Life by its retrocedant
companies. The current account value, the guaranteed death benefit and details of the covered benefit types are taken
into consideration for the evaluation of the net amount at risk and the expected future liability. For the evaluation of the
liabilities, SCOR Global Life uses an actuarial model that considers 1,000 investment performance scenarios.

There are some risks which are specific to the GMDB portfolio. Due to the nature of the product the remaining liability is
influenced by developments on the financial markets, in particular changes in the price of equities, bonds, interest rates
as well as the implied volatility on equity options. The liability is also dependent on policyholder behaviour, particularly on
the exercise of partial withdrawal options, but also on other aspects, such as lapse behaviour and the use of options to
choose the underlying funds. As a retrocessionaire, SCOR Global Life is exposed to uncertainties concerning data
received from its retrocedants and the original ceding companies and also due to the inherent reporting lag. SCOR
Global Life is also exposed to risks inherent to the model used or the assessment of the liability under its portfolio.

RISKS ARISING FROM AMERICAN SCOR’S NON-LIFE SUBSIDIARIES

Our U.S operations include both on-going and run-off portfolios. The latter principally consists of risks arising from
various categories of reinsurance and insurance business underwritten from the end of the 1990’s to 2002 inclusive.

In the past, as a result of statutory capital requirements in the U.S, we strengthened the long term capital base of the
U.S subsidiaries. In addition, our U.S Non-Life subsidiaries were reorganised in order to optimise capital usage. Finally,
our underwriting policies in the U.S were re-vamped and are now aligned with overall Group objectives including the
maintenance of a pro-active expense management program.

In January 2003, the operations of Commercial Risk Partners (“CRP”), the Bermudan entity, were placed into run-off in
conformity with the “Back on Track” strategic plan and we withdrew from certain lines of business in the U.S. Since 2004,
these operations known as “Discontinued Business” (DB) and the run-off portfolio of CRP have been ring fenced and
actively managed by a specialised team whose principal objective has been to pro-actively manage and commute
contracts and / or portfolios. For CRP this policy has enabled the remaining exposures to be significantly reduced. In
December 2009, activities in Bermuda and Vermont were stopped and transferred into GSNIC, a reinsurance company
registered in New-York state. This company manages most of SCOR'’s run-off business in the U.S.A..

As a result of our pro-active management policy since 2004, neither CRP and / or our Discontinued Business portfolios
today represent a material liability that is any greater than those associated with other entities of the Group. We continue
to maintain constant vigilance over our U.S underwriting operations accordingly to “best estimate” rules.

Nevertheless, due to the specific environment in which they operate, there can be no assurance that our U.S. Non-Life
Subsidiaries will not face further financial difficulties in the future.

4.15 IF OUR RESERVES PROVE TO BE INADEQUATE, OUR NET INCOME, CASH FLOW AND FINANCIAL
POSITION MAY BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED

We are required to maintain reserves to cover our estimated ultimate liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses
with respect to reported and unreported claims, incurred as at the end of each accounting period, net of estimated
related recoveries. Our reserves are established both on the basis of information we receive from our cedant insurance
companies, particularly their own reserving levels, as well as on the basis of our knowledge of the risks, the studies we
conduct and the trends we observe on a regular basis. As part of the reserving process we review, with the concerned
insurers and co-insurers, available historical data and try to anticipate the impact of various factors such as change in
laws and regulations and judicial decisions that may tend to affect potential losses from claims, changes in social and
political attitudes that may increase exposure to losses and trends in mortality and morbidity, or evolution in general
economic conditions.

As stated before, our reserves and policy pricing are based on a number of assumptions and on information provided by
third parties, which, if incorrect and/or incomplete, could have an adverse effect on our results of operations. Despite the
audits carried out by us on the companies with which we do business, and our frequent contacts with these companies,
we are still dependent upon their evaluation of the risk with regard to the establishment of our own reserves.

As is the case for all other reinsurers, the inherent uncertainties in estimating our reserves are compounded by the
significant periods of time that often elapse between the occurrence of an insured loss, the reporting of the loss to the
primary insurer and ultimately to the reinsurer, and taking also into account the delay between the payment of a loss by
the primary insurer and the indemnification by the reinsurer. In addition, reserving practices may differ among ceding
companies.
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Another factor of uncertainty resides in the fact that some of our activities are “long-tail” in nature, in particular workers
compensation, general liability, medical malpractice or those linked to environmental pollution or asbestos. For these
types of claims, it has, in the past, been necessary to revise our estimated potential loss exposure and, therefore, the
related loss reserves.

Other factors of uncertainty, some of which have been mentioned above, are linked to changes in the law, regulations,
case law and legal doctrine, as well as developments in class action litigation, particularly in the United States.

The reserves adequacy is controlled by internal actuaries who make a quarterly review and an annual detailed report,
validated by the Group Actuarial department. If necessary, audits of our portfolios are performed. Centrally defined and
tightly controlled reserving process, strong portfolio diversification, prudent reserving policy, sound reserving tools and,
state of the art actuarial methods used by highly skilled professionals and high level of transparency, both internally and
externally, tends to minimise the risk of inadequate reserves.

However, we are subject to all of the factors of uncertainty mentioned above and in consequence are subject to the risk
that our reserves are inadequate compared to our liabilities. As a consequence, if our claims reserves prove to be
inadequate, our net income, cash flow and financial position may be adversely affected.

NON-LIFE BUSINESS

SCOR regularly reviews and updates its methods for determining IBNR Reserves. However, it is difficult to accurately
value the amount of reserves required, especially in view of changes in the legal environment, which could affect the
reserve development.

When a claim is reported to the ceding company, its claims department establishes a reserve corresponding to the
estimated amount of the ultimate settlement for the claim. The estimate is based on the cedant’'s own methods of
evaluation. The ceding company reports the claim and its suggested reserve amount to the Group entity with which it
concluded its contract of reinsurance. The Group records the ceding company's suggested reserve and is free to
establish greater or smaller reserves based on the review and analysis by the Group's claims division and internal
actuaries. Such greater or smaller potential reserves are based upon the consideration of many factors, including the
level of the commitments, seriousness of the claims and the Group's assessment of the ceding company's claims'
management.

Conforming to applicable regulatory requirements and in accordance with industry practices, the Group maintains in
addition to outstanding claims reserves, IBNR Reserves. These reserves represent:

m the final amount that may be paid by the Group on losses or events that have occurred, but are not yet reported to
the ceding company or to the SCOR entity concerned; and

B the estimated cost variation on claims already reported to the Group.

In determining the amount of its reserves, the Group generally uses actuarial techniques that take into account
quantitative loss experience data, together with qualitative factors, where appropriate. The reserves are also adjusted to
reflect reinsurance treaty terms and conditions, the variety of claims processing that may potentially affect the Group's
commitment over time. With the exception of the reserves for worker's compensation in the USA and most of the
reserves of Commercial Risk Partners ("CRP"), the now silent Bermudan entity of the Group, which are discounted
pursuant to American and Bermudan regulations, the Group does not discount Non-Life reserves.

A table showing changes in reserves for Non-Life claims is provided in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated
financial statements, Note 16 - Contract liabilities.

The Group pursued in 2009 the active commutations policy of its portfolios initiated in 2003, the main goals being to
reduce the volatility of claims reserves, to reduce the administrative costs particularly the oldest, and to allow the
reallocation of capital. This policy will be continued in 2010, by focusing efforts on the U.S. run-off activities, business
exposed to Asbestos and Pollution risks, and some treaties written by the former Converium company acquired by
SCOR.

LIFE BUSINESS

For our Life business, we are required to maintain adequate reserves for future policy benefits that take into account
expected investment yields and mortality, morbidity, lapsation rates, exercise of options and other assumptions.

Reserves for policy claims are established on the basis of the Group’s best estimates of mortality, morbidity, and
investment income, with a provision for adverse deviations. In determining its best estimates, the Group takes into
consideration its past experience, current internal data, external market indices and benchmarks and other relevant
published information. The liabilities for future policy benefits established by the Group with respect to individual risks or
classes of business may be greater or less than those established by ceding companies due to the use of different
mortality tables or other assumptions. Reserves for policy claims include both claims in the process of settlement and
claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. Actual events in a given period may be more costly than projected
and, therefore, may adversely affect SCOR's operating results for such period.
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A table showing changes in the mathematical reserves in Life reinsurance is provided in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Note 16 - Contract liabilities.

As a consequence of the difficulties described above regarding the correct reserving of risks and their annual revision in
Life and Non-Life, there can be no assurance that the Group will not have to increase its reserves in the future, which
could materially impact its current and future revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

4.1.6 WE MAY BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED IF OUR CEDANTS, RETROCESSIONAIRES, INSURERS OR
MEMBERS OF POOLS IN WHICH WE PARTICIPATE DO NOT RESPECT THEIR OBLIGATIONS

We are subject to a risk of possible non-respect of payment of premiums due by the cedants and/or to the possible non-
respect by one or several SCOR’s partners, of their commitments to the Group.

We transfer a part of our exposure to certain risks to other reinsurers through retrocession arrangements. Under these
arrangements, other reinsurers assume a portion of our losses and expenses associated with losses in exchange for a
portion of premiums received. When we obtain retrocession, we remain liable to our cedants for that part of the risk that
is subsequently transferred to the retrocessionaire and must meet our obligation even if the retrocessionaire does not
meet its obligations to us.

Similarly, when we transfer our own operational risks to insurers we are subject to the risk of the insurers not respecting
their obligations. (Refer to Section 4.5 - Insurance of specific operational risks (excluding reinsurance activity).

Thus, the non-respect of financial obligations, in particular the payment of premiums, return of funds withheld and
payment of claims, of our cedants, retrocessionaires or insurers, could negatively affect our revenues, net income, cash
flow and financial situation. We periodically review the financial position of our cedants, retrocessionaires and insurers
notably before the conclusion of contracts. This does not preclude the possibility that our cedants, retrocessionaires or
insurers may become financially unsound by the time they are called upon to pay amounts due, which may not occur
until many years after the contract was executed. Those receivables for which a loss is deemed probable, are
discounted in our accounts.

The specific risk linked to the default of the retrocessionaires is provided in Section 4.1.12 — We are exposed to credit
risks — (b) Receivables from retrocessionaires

4.1.7 WE OPERATE IN A HIGHLY COMPETITIVE SECTOR

Reinsurance is a highly competitive sector. As is the case for all other reinsurers, our position in the reinsurance market
is based on several factors, such as our financial strength as perceived by the rating agencies, our underwriting
expertise, reputation and experience in the lines written, the countries in which we operate, the premiums charged, as
well as the quality of the proposed reinsurance structures, the services offered and the speed at which claims are paid.
Nonetheless, we compete for business in the European, American, Asian and other international markets with numerous
international and domestic reinsurance companies, some of which have a larger market share than ours, greater
financial resources and, in certain cases, higher ratings from the rating agencies. The Group strengthened its
competitive position in its strategic markets through the acquisition of Revios in November 2006 and Converium in
August 2007, so creating a leading Life and Non Life reinsurer.

Therefore, we remain exposed to the risk of losing our competitive advantage.

In particular, when available reinsurance capacity is greater than the demand from ceding companies, our competitors,
some of which hold higher ratings than we do, may be better positioned to enter new contracts and gain market shares
at our expense.

Furthermore, SCOR’s reputation can be affected by adverse events concerning competitors. For example competitors’
bad results could have a significant impact on SCOR’s share price.

4.1.8 FINANCIAL RATINGS PLAY AN IMPORTANT ROLE IN OUR BUSINESS

Financial ratings are very important to all reinsurance companies, including SCOR, as ceding companies wish to
reinsure their risks with companies having a satisfactory financial position. Our Life reinsurance activities and the
Business Solutions (facultative) in Non-Life reinsurance are particularly sensitive to the way our existing and prospective
clients perceive our financial strength notably through our ratings. This is also true for our reinsurance treaties business
in Non-Life in the U.S. and UK markets. Some of our reinsurance treaties contain termination clauses triggered by
ratings. (Refer to Section 4.1.9 - A significant portion of our contracts contain provisions relating to financial strength
which could have an adverse effect on our portfolio of contracts and our financial position).

In addition, if the rating of the Group deteriorates, certain stand-by letter of credit facilities would require a higher level of
collateralisation.

The timing of any review of our financial ratings by the rating agencies is also very important to our business since our
Non-Life contracts and treaties are renewed at various set times throughout the year.
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In order to keep close control over our ratings and notably to prevent downgrades in our financial ratings and encourage
and justify upgrades, we maintain close relationships with the main rating agencies. These relationships take the form of
regular contacts during the financial year to present our results and our financial position to them and specific meetings
before implementing strategic or financial projects, to assess their potential impact on our rating.

As a result of the above, a downgrade in the rating could, however, significantly impact our revenues, net income, cash
flow and financial position.

In 2008 SCOR benefited from a relative improvement to its rating by Moody’s Investment Services (“Moody’s”), Fitch
followed by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) in 2009. A.M. Best ("AM Best"), revised its outlook to positive in September 2009.

Currently, the ratings granted by S&P, AM Best Moody's and Fitch are as follows:

Standard & Poor’s A

13 March 2009 (stable outlook)
AM Best A-

4 September 2009 (positive outlook)
Moody’s A2

4 December 2008 (stable outlook)
Fitch A

21 August 2008 (stable outlook)

4.1.9 A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF OUR CONTRACTS CONTAIN PROVISIONS RELATING TO FINANCIAL
STRENGTH WHICH COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR PORTFOLIO OF CONTRACTS AND OUR
FINANCIAL POSITION

Many of our reinsurance treaties, notably in the United States and in Asia, and also increasingly in Europe, contain
clauses concerning our financial strength, and provide for the possibility of early termination for our cedants if our rating
is downgraded, or when our net financial position falls below a certain threshold, or if we carry out a reduction in share
capital. Accordingly, such events could allow some of our cedants to terminate their contract commitments, which could
have a material adverse effect on our revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

In the same way, many of our reinsurance treaties contain a requirement for SCOR to put in place letters of credit
("LOC") provisions whereby in the circumstances described in the previous Sections, the cedant has the right to draw
down on a LOC issued by a bank in SCOR's name.

Banks providing such facilities usually ask SCOR to post collateral whose value is at maximum equal to the amount of
the LOC facility. In the case of a LOC being drawn down by a cedant, the bank has the right to request a cash payment
from this collateral, up to the amount drawn down by the cedant. It enforces by offsetting the collaterals posted by
SCOR.

In the case of a large number of LOCs being drawn down simultaneously, SCOR could encounter difficulties in providing
the total amount of required cash, i.e. SCOR is also exposed to a liquidity risk.

Moreover, some of our facilities contain conditions about our financial situation which, if not met, constitute a default and
result in the suspension of the use of current credit facilities and/or a prohibition on obtaining new lines of credit or result
in the need to negotiate in adverse conditions new LOC facility, which could in some cases have an adverse effect on
our revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position.

For more details about our lines of credit, refer to Section 22 - Important Contracts.

4.1.10 OPERATIONAL RISKS, INCLUDING HUMAN ERRORS OR COMPUTER SYSTEM FAILURE, ARE
INHERENT IN OUR BUSINESS

Operational risks are inherent in all businesses including our own. Their causes are multiple and include, but are not
limited to, poor management, employee fraud or errors, failure to document a transaction as required, failure to obtain
required internal authorisations, non-compliance with regulatory or contractual obligations, IT system flaws, poor
commercial performance or external events. We are also exposed to risks relating to the integration of the underlying
data of newly acquired companies into our operating and financial accounting IT systems.

We believe our modelling, underwriting, price calculation and information technology and application systems are critical
to the correct operation of our business. Moreover, our proprietary technology and applications are an important part of
our underwriting and claims management processes and are a contributing factor to our competitiveness. We are,
therefore, exposed to a major breakdown in our IT systems, outages, disruptions due to viruses, attacks by hackers and
theft of data. Catastrophic scenarios that could affect SCOR's entire operational infrastructure have led to the revision of
the business continuity plan ("BCP"). The BCP continues to be reviewed regularly.

A major defect or failure in our internal controls or information technology and application systems could result in a loss
of efficiency of our teams, harm to our reputation or increased expense or financial loss. Appropriate procedures to
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minimise the occurrence and the impact of the failures and defaults mentioned above are in place and appropriate, or
are currently being formalised and deployed.

We also use certain licensed systems and data from third parties. We cannot be certain that our technology or
applications owned or licensed will continue to operate as intended, or that they will continue to be compatible with each
other, or that we will have access in the future to these or comparable licensors or service providers.

Some of SCOR'’s processes are partly or completely outsourced. Outsourcing can increase operational risk which could
cause a significant impact on SCOR’s results and/or reputation. In order to reduce this risk, SCOR is developing an
Outsourcing Group Policy which will oblige all entities of the Group to draft a contract, to respect the selection process
for service providers and respect reporting and control procedures.

SCOR, as for all companies, must comply with laws and regulations. Furthermore, as an international Group, SCOR
must take into account international laws and regulations. The level of legal or regulatory requirements depends on the
location and the legal structure of the SCOR entity. The risk is that SCOR might not respect the level of required
compliance appropriate to each location and legal structure. SCOR’s reputation could be affected. In particular, SCOR
writes some direct insurance business primarily on a business-to-business (B2B) basis to cover certain non-life large
industrial risks, but also on a business-to-customer (B2C) basis via one of our life subsidiaries - Investors Insurance
Corporation (IIC) based in Jacksonville, Florida, USA. For direct business SCOR is subject to the laws, regulations and
tax rules governing direct insurance which can create specific compliance risks (i.e. different from those relating to
reinsurance business). The business written directly through IIC is subject to USA consumer and product laws and
regulations which aim to ensure that only suitable products are sold and policyholders are provided with accurate
information about the product at all times. Any violation of such laws and regulations could expose SCOR to legal risks
or class actions.

An operational risk failure, in particular the failure of internal control procedures, could have an adverse impact on our
activities, current or future revenue, net income, cash flow and financial position.

4.1.11 WE ARE EXPOSED TO RISKS RELATED TO THE RECENT ACQUISITIONS

On 21 November 2006 SCOR completed the acquisition of Revios. On 8 August 2007, SCOR acquired the majority of
the outstanding share capital of Converium Holding AG ("Converium") and its effective control. During 2007 and 2008,
SCOR acquired the remaining shares still in circulation and on 5 June 2008, SCOR became the sole shareholder of
Converium (which became SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG). For more information on this acquisition, please see
Sections 5.2.1.1 - Public offer upon the Converium shares and 5.2.1.2 — Cancellation of the shares of SCOR (Holding)
Switzerland. The total consideration and the fair value of acquired net assets are detailed in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to
the consolidated financial statements, Note 3 — Acquisitions in the 2008 Reference Document.

In 2007 SCOR acquired ReMark Group BV and in 2008 Prévoyance Ré.

On 4 December 2009, SCOR Global Life US (SGL U.S.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the SCOR Group, reached a
definitive agreement to acquire XL Re Life America Inc. (XLRLA), a subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd.. In 2008, XLRLA
generated EUR 22.1 million in premium income

For more information on these acquisitions see Paragraph 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
Note 3 - Acquisitions.

Certain risks relating to recently acquired companies may not yet be known

Due notably to the size and complexities of recent acquisitions and despite pre-acquisition due diligence work carried out
(SCOR not having always been granted a complete access to exhaustive data) and the integration work performed to
date, there is a risk that all financial elements may not have been fully and or correctly evaluated or unknown or
unexpected financial risks emerge, which may inter alia have significant consequences on the initially estimated impact
of the relevant acquisition on the combined Group.

The integration of recently acquired companies may be more difficult than anticipated and the synergies may
eventually be less than those anticipated

The success of recent business combinations will be assessed with regards to the success of the integration into the
Group of the businesses acquired. Subsequently, as with any external growth transaction in the services sector in
general, and reinsurance in particular, the integration of the activities of recently acquired companies may take longer
and/or be more difficult than expected. The success of this integration will depend, notably, on the ability to maintain the
client base to coordinate development efforts effectively, in particular at the operational and commercial levels, and to
streamline and/or integrate the information systems and internal procedures and the ability to retain key employees.
Difficulties encountered in the integration could entail higher integration costs and/or less significant savings or fewer
synergies than expected.

We are also exposed to risks relating to the integration of the underlying data of newly acquired companies into our
operating and financial accounting systems.
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SCOR has inherited and is exposed, due to recently acquired companies, to certain litigation matters

SCOR has inherited and assumes the burden of the litigation matters of acquired companies or relating to those
acquisitions. The costs of these litigation matters could have an adverse effect on the Group's future operating income
and an unfavourable outcome to one or more of these litigation matters could have a material adverse effect on the
Group's revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position. For further details, refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Note 28 — Litigations and to Section 5.2.1.1 — Public offer upon the Converium
shares.

4.1.12 WE ARE EXPOSED TO CREDIT RISKS
SCOR is mainly exposed to the following credit risks:

(a) Bond portfolios

Credit risks on bonds cover two areas of risk.

Firstly, a deterioration in the financial situation of an issuer (sovereign, public or private) may result in an increase in the
relative cost of refinancing and a reduction in the liquidity of the securities issued leading to a reduction in the value of its
bonds. Secondly, the borrower’s financial situation can cause it to become insolvent and lead to the partial or total loss
of coupons and of the principal invested by SCOR.

SCOR mitigates these risks by implementing a policy of geographic and sector diversification. Limits by counterparty
exposure and by rating are also defined. An a posteriori quarterly analysis by segment (business sector, geographical
area, counterparty, rating) enables critical risks to be identified and evaluated in order to take appropriate actions.

The Group has a prudent investment policy and puts great importance on several selection criteria notably internal
assessments, the rating provided by the rating agencies to the issuer and liquidity of the securities purchased. The
Group invests a significant proportion of its Bond portfolio in OECD Government bonds, supra-national bonds and bonds
guaranteed by a State which frequently have better financial ratings and lower risk profile than Corporate bonds.

Bond investments are managed by SCOR Global Investment SE or by external managers. In all cases, Investment
Guidelines are provided to managers and strict monitoring is carried out over the global portfolio for all Group entities.
Whether managed internally or externally, each entity monitors, either directly or via an intermediary, the changes in
value of the investment assets.

In general, the tactical allocation of the global portfolio is defined by the Group Investment Committee which meets each
quarter. Itis chaired by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and is composed of the Group Chief Financial Officer, the
Group Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Economist, the Chief Investment Officer, the Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global
P&C and the Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global Life.

(b) Receivables from retrocessionaires

The Group transfers part of its risks to retrocessionaires via retrocession programs. The retrocessionaires then assume,
in exchange for the payment of premiums by SCOR, the losses related to claims covered by the retrocession contracts.
So, in the event of default by the retrocessionaire, we would be liable to lose the coverage provided by our
retrocessionaires whereas the Group would retain liability to the cedant for the payment of all claims covered under the
reinsurance contract.

Moreover, to the extent that our retrocessionaires belong to the same business sector, unfavourable events affecting the
sector may affect all participants in the sector. In other words, risks to which we are exposed could also become
systemic risks.

The policy for the management of retrocessionaire credit risk is entrusted to the Security Committee who is responsible
for analysing the financial security of each retrocessionaire and defining the terms and conditions and limits of amounts

ceded per retrocessionaire, per rating and per geographical area. The Security Committee meets regularly and pays
more particular attention to the retrocessionnaires’ default risk in the treaty renewal period.

Several actions are taken to quantify the risk:
B the analysis of the financial ratings of the retrocessionaires;

B the analysis of external studies prepared by the security departments of the main reinsurance brokers; in this regard
SCOR meets the security departments of two large reinsurance brokers at least twice a year to analyse the security
of its retrocessionaires

30



Furthermore, to reduce the credit risk arising from its retrocessionaires, SCOR:

B requests that certain of its retrocessionaires provide that all or a portion of the receivables from its retrocession
contracts are guaranteed by collateral (cash deposits, letters of credit, pledging of securities etc.) in favour of SCOR;

B carries out an active commutation policy in Non —Life.

The Group's retrocession department regularly monitors its exposure to retrocessionaires by taking into account all
relevant accounting balances (estimated and actual claims, premiums, reserves and deposits, pledges and security
deposits).

In addition to the use of traditional retrocession, SCOR seeks to reduce its dependence on its retrocessionaires by using
alternative retrocession agreements such as the securitisation of catastrophic risk or mortality swaps. Alternative
retrocession agreements are described in more detail in Section 4.1.2 — We are exposed to losses from catastrophic
events

The risk of non-performance of retrocessionaire undertakings is set out in Section 4.1.6 - We may be adversely affected
if our cedants, retrocessionaires, insurers or members of pools in which we participate do not respect their obligations.

The retrocessionaires’ part in the technical reserves split by retrocessionaire’s financial rating is included in the
paragraph Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 16 — Contract Liabilities.

(c) Receivables and deposits with cedants

There are two aspects of credit risk related to contracts with cedants.

Firstly, we may be exposed to credit risk in relation to amounts deposited with ceding companies in respect of reserves
which cover our current or future liabilities. Depositing these amounts does not a priori discharge SCOR of its liability
towards its cedants in case SCOR is not able to recover these amounts in the event of default of cedants.

Secondly we are exposed to a credit risk in the event of a payment default by the cedants of the premiums due under
SCOR's acceptance of a portion of their risks. In cases where such an event does not lead to termination of the
reinsurance contract, any offset between contractual obligations between the two parties is dependent on court
decisions and it is possible that SCOR remains liable for paying claims without being able to offset the unpaid premiums.

In order to reduce such risks, SCOR carries out a quarterly examination of exposure and associated risks. Depending on
the financial situation of the principal cedants, actions aimed at reducing or limiting exposure or mitigating the risk
through guarantees on deposits (for example, via offset clauses) may be carried out. Moreover, should their financial
strength deteriorate between the time their financial commitment is made and the time it must be honoured (which may
represent several years), an appropriate financial provision is established in SCOR’s accounts corresponding to the
liability for which a loss is considered probable.

Thus, the inability of our cedants to fulfil their financial obligations could affect our current and future revenues, net
income, cash flow and financial position.
(d) Cash deposits at banks

We are exposed to the risk of losing all or part of any cash deposited with a retail bank in the event of such a bank no
longer being able to honour its commitments (e.g. following liquidation).

SCOR reduces concentration risk by defining counterparty exposure limits. Furthermore the Group selects bank
counterparties according to their rating and quality of their credit. The Group may also benefit from protections (e.g.
loans, guarantees of deposits, nationalisations) provided by governments to their banks during the financial crisis.

The main risk for SCOR at the moment is the significant concentration of deposits in a small number of banks. This risk
is a direct result of the selection of the most stable banks.
(e) Deposits with custodians

As part of the management of its investment portfolio, SCOR deposits the securities it owns with a number of approved
custodians. In the case of default of a custodian, depending on the local regulation applicable to the custodian, all or part
of these securities could become blocked. SCOR pays particular attention to the selection of its custodians.

(f) Credit & Surety

SCOR is exposed to credit risk through its Credit & Surety portfolio. In effect, by reinsuring the liabilities of its clients,
which are credit insurers and insurers issuing sureties, SCOR must indemnify its ceding companies, for the portion that
SCOR reinsures, in the event of the default of companies on which its ceding companies are exposed.

Most of this business is situated in Europe across a diverse range of activity sectors.
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SCOR's Credit & Surety business does not cover either CDS ("Credit Default Swap") or real estate loans, notably in the
U.S., noris it exposed to the various U.S. credit "monoliners" or "guarantors".

SCOR's underwriting policy is particularly prudent in this area. SCOR specifically monitors its main exposures in this
sector. In addition, SCOR benefits from the expertise of its specialised cedants in terms of risk prevention, since the
cedants continuously adjust their own exposure levels based on changes in the financial strength of the debtors they are
insuring.

(g) Future profits of Life reinsurance treaties

Credit risk on future profits from Life reinsurance policies arises from two risk factors.

First of all, the payment of future profits expected under Life reinsurance contracts necessarily implies that the cedant is
solvent: for this reason, SCOR risks a reduction in the value of its portfolio of Life contracts in the event of a deterioration
in the financial strength of the cedant. In such a case, it is possible that the VOBA (Value Of Business Acquired) and
DAC (Deferred Acquisition Costs) may as a consequence need to be written down and as a consequence, shareholders’
equity is reduced accordingly.

Secondly, a reduction in the value of future profits could arise from a massive lapsation of policies following a
deterioration of the cedant’s financial rating or an event which has a negative effect on its image.

In order to reduce such risks, SCOR's exposure on each cedant is limited through its underwriting policy defined each
year. An internal assessment of the cedant and its rating is also taken into consideration when concluding new business.

Calculations are also made on the current treaties in order to verify the solidity of the value of future profits from the
portfolio in question. This regular monitoring allows for a timely action to manage and mitigate the effects from any
possible deviations of the actual results from the projections in the underwriting plan.

Despite these measures, SCOR has exposure to a credit risk linked to the insolvency and to the image of our cedants,
which, if this were to occur, could have an adverse impact upon our income, our net earnings, our cash flow and our
financial situation.

For further details on the impact of the assessment of our intangible assets upon our results, see Section 4.2.5 — Our
shareholders equity and net income are sensitive to the valuation or our intangible assets and deferred tax assets.

(h) Default of pool members

SCOR participates, for certain risk categories that are particularly heavy (particularly terrorist risks), in various groups of
insurers and reinsurers ("pools") aimed at pooling the relevant risks among the members of each group. In the event of a
total or partial default by one of the members of a group, SCOR could be required to assume, in the event of joint liability
of the members, all or part of the liabilities of the defaulting member. In such a case, SCOR's financial position could be
affected.

For further details, refer to Section 4.1.3 - We could be subject to losses as a result of our exposure to Terrorism.

(i) Risk of accumulation of the above risks

The aforementioned risks could accumulate in a single counterparty. SCOR attaches particular importance to the
establishment of and respect of counterparty exposure limits. The quarterly examination of our exposures enables us to
identify and quantify the risks and, in case of accumulations, formulate appropriate responses.

(i) Exposure to systemic credit risk

In addition to the credit risks mentioned above, we could be confronted with a systemic credit risk which could affect
many counterparties simultaneously.

4.1.13 WE ARE EXPOSED TO THE RISK OF NO LONGER BEING ABLE TO RETROCEDE LIABILITIES ON
ACCEPTABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Some capacities offered by SCOR are not achievable solely with the Group’s current available capital. These capacities
(mainly Catastrophic and Large Risks) rely on retrocession whereby SCOR purchases, mainly on a one year basis,
additional resources (retrocession) that will allow the Group to provide capacity to our clients. SCOR tries to reduce its
dependence vis-a-vis the traditional reinsurance market by entering into alternative reinsurance solutions. Today,
roughly one third of SCOR’s catastrophic capacity is purchased from alternative markets (Capital Markets) as Cat Bonds
which have a risk period of mainly 3 years.
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Market risk

4.2.1 WE FACE RISKS RELATED TO OUR FIXED INCOME INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

(a) Interest rate risks

Interest rate fluctuations have direct consequences on the market value of our fixed-income investments and therefore
on the level of unrealised capital gains or losses of the fixed-income securities held in our portfolio. The return on the
securities held also depends on changes in interest rates. Interest rates are very sensitive to a number of external
factors, including monetary and budgetary policies, the national and international economic and political environment,
and the risk aversion of economic agents.

During periods of declining interest rates, income from our investments is likely to fall due to investments of new
premiums at rates lower than those of the existing portfolio (dilutive effect of new investments). In addition, in these
periods of declining interest rates, our fixed-maturity securities are more likely to be redeemed early in cases where
bond issuers benefit from an early redemption option and can borrow at lower interest rates. Consequently the
probability of needing to reinvest the proceeds at lower interest rates is increased.

Conversely, an increase in interest rates, as well as fluctuations in capital markets could also lead to changes in
behaviour resulting in the unanticipated surrender and withdrawal of fixed annuities and other Life reinsurance products,
including the fixed annuities of SCOR Global Life. This would result in cash outflows which might require the sale of
assets at a time when the increase in interest rates has caused a fall in the market value of the fixed-maturity securities
held in the portfolio. This could generate losses during the disposal of assets.

Interest rate risk is managed within the Group primarily at two levels. At the level of each entity, we take into account the
asset-liability matching policy and congruence rules, as well as local regulatory accounting and tax constraints. At the
central level, we conduct operations to consolidate all portfolios in order to identify the overall level of risk and return.
The Group uses analytical tools which guide both its strategic allocation and local distribution of assets.

The sensitivity to changes in interest rates is generally analysed on a monthly basis. The Group analyses the impact of a
major change in interest rates on each of its portfolios and at the global level. Here, the Group identifies the unrealised
capital loss that would result from a rise in interest rates. The instantaneous unrealised capital loss is measured for a
uniform increase of 100 basis points in rates or in the event of a distortion of the structure of the yield curve. Portfolio
sensitivity analysis to interest rate changes is an important risk measurement and management tool which may lead to
decisions for reallocation or hedging.

Investments are made, in general, over the medium term and are based on a policy of matching asset and liability
durations. As a result, portfolio turnover is rather moderate thus assuring a relatively stable duration of the portfolio and a
rapid assessment of interest rate risk.

However, there can be no assurance that such measures, including the two-levels of interest rate risk management and
sensitivity analysis will be sufficient to protect the Group against all the risks related to variations in interest rates.

For information on the maturities of financial assets and liabilities, related interest rates and sensitivities to interest rate
fluctuations as well as the allocation of the bond portfolio by rating of the issuer, see Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Note 27 - Insurance and financial risk.

(b) Credit risks

We are also exposed to credit risks related to our bond investments. (See Section 4.1.12 - We are exposed to credit
risks (a) Bond portfolio)

(c) “Side Pockets” or “gates”

SCOR holds shares of funds or funds of funds in its alternative assets portfolio. Some of these funds have the possibility
to restrict temporarily the liquidity of these shares in setting mechanisms: “Side pockets” or “gates”. SCOR mitigates this
risk by holding small amounts of these assets.

4.2.2 WE FACE RISKS RELATED TO OUR EQUITY-BASED PORTFOLIO

We are also exposed to equity price risk. A widespread and sustained decline in the equity markets would result in an
impairment of our equity portfolio. Such an impairment could affect our net income.

Equity investments are considered as both a traditional and strategic asset class for the Group. The goal is to develop
and manage a diversified portfolio of high-quality stocks that will appreciate over the medium term. We also seek stocks
which offer high dividends or that could benefit a revaluation in case of inflation rise. Stock selection is therefore
predominantly based on an analysis of the underlying fundamentals.
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Our exposure to the equity market results both from direct stock purchases and through certain (re)insurance products
including Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit (GMDB) business. See Section 4.1.4 -We could be subject to losses
related to deteriorating results in lines where we are no longer actively writing business.

Equity prices are likely to be affected by risks which affect all of the market (uncertainty on economic conditions in
general, such as changes in GDP, inflation, interest rates etc.) and/or by risks which influence a single asset or a small
number of assets (specific or idiosyncratic risk).

Because equities are more volatile than bonds, this asset class is closely and regularly monitored. All equity positions
(direct positions and mutual funds) are aggregated and valued daily. This approach allows us to monitor changes in the
portfolio and to identify investments with higher-than-average volatility as soon as possible, using alert signals. It also
facilitates arbitrage or portfolio re-allocation decisions.

The equity risk is controlled and measured:

B On a Group level, exposure is decided by senior management and reviewed at least quarterly by the Group
Investment Committee.

B The equity risk is also controlled by the definition of maximum exposures per stock or mutual fund and is reviewed
regularly (exposure to large-cap stocks will generally be greater than exposure to mid-cap stocks). The control ratios
on mutual funds are also reviewed regularly, based on the mutual fund's holdings.

To measure the risk, an assumed "equity" beta of 1 is generally used. This assumes that the whole portfolio varies
homogeneously and with the same magnitude as the equity market, The Group therefore uses an instantaneous change
in the equity market as a measure of the change in the unrealised capital gains or losses of the equity portfolio.

The impact of a uniform drop of 10% in equity markets is included in 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, Note 27 - Insurance and financial risk.

In spite of the above, we are nevertheless exposed to a risk of capital losses on the shares we hold which — if it were to
occur — could adversely impact our net income, cash flow and financial position.

4.2.3 WE ARE EXPOSED TO OTHER RISKS ARISING FROM OUR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Valuation risk

Some financial instruments do not have a sufficient and recurrent number of transactions to allow valuation with
reference to a market price and therefore need to be valued using an appropriate model. Two situations exist depending
on whether parameters can be determined from observable market data or not. There is a risk that the price provided by
the model is noticeably different from the price which would be observed in the event of rapid disposal of the financial
instrument, which could have an adverse effect on our financial position. This risk is enforced for non listed assets and
structured products.

(b) Market disruption

The financial markets are undergoing a particularly severe crisis and the unprecedented volatility of assets exposes
SCOR to significant financial risks linked to changes in interest rates, credit spreads, equity markets, exchange rates
and real estate securities but also to changes in the models used by the rating agencies. Due to the current economic
and financial environment, SCOR may also be faced with the deterioration of the financial strength or rating of some
issuers due to the current economic and financial environment.

(c) Real estate risks

The rental income of the property portfolio is exposed to the variation of the indices on which the rents are indexed (in
France, the Construction Cost Index) as well as risks related to the rental market (changes in supply and demand,
changes in vacancy rates, impact on rental values of the sub-rental market or rent renewals) and the default of lessees.

The value of property assets is exposed to changes in the investment market itself (changes in interest rates, liquidity)
but potentially also to the risk of regulatory obsolescence of properties (regulatory developments related to the

accessibility of buildings for handicapped people, on the reduction of energy consumption and the production of CO2
etc...)

4.2.4 WE ARE EXPOSED TO CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument or balance sheet amount will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
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The following types of foreign exchange risk have been identified by SCOR:

(a) Transaction risk

Fluctuations in exchange rates can have consequences on our reported net income because of the conversion results of
transactions expressed in foreign currencies, the settlement of balances denominated in foreign currencies and the lack
of matching between monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies.

Due to cost considerations and the fact that net transaction cash flow is difficult to predict, particularly for SCOR Global
P&C business, SCOR does not in principle hedge the risk that transactions expressed in foreign currencies change due
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Nevertheless, it does monitor this and report certain key metrics excluding this
impact using constant exchange rates.

The risk of a material impact to reported net income arising from the settlement of balances denominated in foreign
currencies is mitigated by maintaining liquid positions including bank balances in the main settlement currencies and
generally settling balances in the same currency in which they are booked. If a need for material sales of one currency to
another arises this is monitored and controlled centrally. Similarly to reduce the need for currency transactions, pooling
arrangements exist in the case where a particular entity has an unexpected short-term need in a particular currency.

SCOR has a balance sheet hedging approach whereby there is an objective to match monetary assets and liabilities in
each foreign currency so that the fluctuation in the exchange rate has no material impact to the reported net income. The
policy is to closely monitor the net monetary currency positions and, where appropriate, execute either cash arbitrages
or forward hedges. Forward sales and purchases of currencies are included in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated
financial statements, Note 8 — Derivatives instruments.

Events, such as catastrophes, can have an impact on the matching of assets and liabilities in a currency which can
generate a temporary unmatched position which is not covered by currency contracts or hedges.

(b) Translation risk

We publish our consolidated financial statements in Euros, but a significant part of our income and expenses, as well as
our assets and liabilities, are denominated in currencies other than the Euro. Consequently, fluctuations in the exchange
rates used to convert these currencies into Euros may have a significant impact on our reported net income and net
equity from year to year.

The main foreign entities of our Group are located in Switzerland, North America, Great Britain and Asia. The
shareholders' equity of these entities is denominated mainly in Euros, U.S. dollars, or Pounds Sterling.

As a result, changes in the exchange rates used to convert foreign currencies into Euros, particularly the fluctuation of
the U.S. dollar against the Euro, have had and may have in the future, an adverse effect on our consolidated
shareholders' equity. The Group does not fully hedge its exposure to this risk. The impact of the fluctuation in the
exchange rates used to translate foreign currencies into Euros on the consolidated shareholders' equity of the Group is
described in Section 20.1.5 — Consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

SCOR has issued debt instruments in currencies other that Euro, currently US Dollars, and to the extent that these are
not used as a hedge against foreign currency investments, the Group is similarly exposed to fluctuations in exchange
rates.

For the consolidated net position of assets and liabilities by currency, and for an analysis of sensitivity to exchange rates,
refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 27 — Insurance and financial risk

4.2.5 OUR SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND NET INCOME ARE SENSITIVE TO THE VALUATION OF OUR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

A significant portion of our assets consists of intangible assets the value of which depends on our expected future
profitability and cash flow. The valuation of intangible assets also assumes that we are making subjective and complex
judgments concerning items that are uncertain by nature. If a change were to occur in the assumptions underlying the
valuation of our intangible assets (including goodwill, VOBA and DAC), we might be forced to reduce their value, in
whole or in part, thereby reducing shareholders’ equity.

In order to evaluate any potential impairment of goodwill, an impairment test is performed annually.

Additionally at each reporting date SCOR assesses if there is any indication that an intangible asset may be impaired
and if such indication exists SCOR completes an estimate of the recoverable amount which may or may not result in an
impairment charge. The assessment of the existence of an indication of impairment includes numerous internal and
external sources of information in accordance with I1AS 36.

Recognition of the deferred tax assets i.e. the likelihood of recovering these taxes in the future, depends on applicable
tax laws and accounting methods as well as the performance of each entity concerned. Due to the losses incurred, we
were forced to impair, in 2003, all deferred tax assets of SCOR U.S. Corporation, a portion of this impairment was
reversed in 2007 and 2008 and the balance in 2009 (Refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial
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statements, Note 19 - Tax for details). The deferred taxes generated by the Group's other entities were maintained.
Nevertheless, the occurrence of other events, such as changes in tax legislation or accounting methods, operational
earnings lower than currently projected or losses continuing over a longer period than originally planned could lead to
the loss of other deferred tax assets. All of these developments or each of them separately could have a significant
adverse effect on our net income and financial position.

Acquisition costs, including commissions and underwriting costs, as well as the value of business acquired (“VOBA”) for
life reinsurance, and the contractual rights with clients are recognised as assets subject to the profitability of the
contracts. They are amortised on the basis of the residual term of the contracts in Non-Life, and on the basis of the
pattern of recognition of future margins for Life contracts. As a result, the assumptions considered concerning the
recoverable nature of the deferred acquisition costs, are affected by factors such as operating results and market
conditions. If the assumptions for recoverability of deferred acquisition costs or VOBA are incorrect, it would then be
necessary to accelerate amortisation, which could have a substantial negative effect on our net income and financial
position.

Details of intangible assets, related impairment testing policy and recent acquisitions is included in Section 20.1.6 -
Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 1 - Accounting principles and methods, Note 3 — Acquisitions, Note
4 - Intangible assets and Note 19-Tax.

Liquidity risk

4.3.1 WE FACE LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS IN THE SHORT TO MEDIUM TERM IN ORDER TO COVER, FOR
EXAMPLE, CLAIMS PAYMENTS, OPERATIONAL EXPENSES AND DEBT REDEMPTIONS. IN THE CASE OF
CATASTROPHE CLAIMS, IN PARTICULAR, WE MAY NEED TO SETTLE AMOUNTS WHICH EXCEED THE
AMOUNT OF AVAILABLE LIQUIDITY

The main sources of revenue from our reinsurance operations are premiums, revenues from investment activities, and
realised capital gains. The majority of these funds are used to pay out claims and related expenses, together with other
operating costs.

Our operations generate substantial cash flows because most premiums are received prior to the date at which claims
must be paid out.

These positive operating cash flows, together with the portion of the investment portfolio held directly in cash or highly
liquid securities, have always enabled us to meet the cash demands generated by our operating activities.

However liquidity risk is increased in situations of market disruption as we may need to sell a significant portion of our
assets quickly and at unfavourable terms.

In the current financial market environment, SCOR has decided to pursue a high liquidity policy.

Additional information on SCOR’s liquid assets is included in Section 20.1.6-Notes to consolidated financial statements,
Note 6 — Insurance business investments.

The total amount of our stand-by letter of credit facilities is USD 3 840 million at 31 December 2009. It should be noted
that a syndicated facility of USD 1,075 million will expire on 25 June 2010. SCOR is in the process of replacing this
facility.

Some of our stand-by letter of credit facilities require a 100% collateral in case of non-respect of financial covenants or
level of rating. Significant changes in SCOR’s solvency could force the Group to collateralise these facilities at 100%,
which would thus deteriorate SCOR'’s liquidity level.

Furthermore in 2009, and in the beginning of 2010, the Group redeemed the following bonds:
B Redemption of a BMTN of EUR 10 million by SCOR on 5th May 2009, and

B Redemption of OCEANE bonds by SCOR on 1 January 2010. Refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to consolidated
financial statements, Note 14 - Financial debt for more details about OCEANE.

Our other bonds are redeemable only at the discretion of SCOR, and not of their holders (except in the usual events of
default applicable to this kind of bonds). Due to these features, these other bonds do not increase our exposure to the
risk of short-term or medium-term cash payout. Our bonds are presented in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, Note 14 - Financial debt.

Additional information on the timing of payments is included in Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, Note 27 - Insurance and financial risk.
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Legal risk

441 WE ARE EXPOSED TO RISKS RELATED TO LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY CHANGES AND
POLITICAL, LEGISLATIVE, REGULATORY OR PROFESSIONAL INITIATIVES CONCERNING THE INSURANCE
AND REINSURANCE SECTOR, WHICH COULD HAVE ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR OUR BUSINESS AND
OUR SECTOR

The operations of the Group and its subsidiaries are subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions where
they operate. Such regulations not only prescribe the approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g. statutory capital adequacy) to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise, in order to minimise
the risk of default and insolvency.

As of this date, we are subject to comprehensive and detailed regulations and to the supervision of the insurance and
reinsurance regulatory authorities in all countries in which we operate. Changes in existing laws and regulations may
affect the way in which we conduct our business and the products we may offer or the amount of reserves to be posted,
including on claims already declared. Insurance and reinsurance supervisory authorities have broad administrative
power over many aspects of the reinsurance industry and we cannot predict the timing or form of any future regulatory
initiatives. Furthermore, these authorities are concerned primarily with the protection of policyholders and policy
beneficiaries, rather than shareholders or creditors. The diversity of the regulations to which we are subject has been
substantially reduced by the implementation into French law of Directive n. 2005/68/EC dated 16 November 2005 by
ordinance n. 2008-556 of 13 June 2008 and application decrees n. 2008-711 of 17 July 2008 and n. 2008-1154 of 7
November 2008 as well as a regulation (arrété) of 7 November 2008. This Directive prescribes the application of a
"single passport" and confers the supervision of EU reinsurance companies upon the supervisory authorities of the
headquarters of the company. This should simplify and clarify the supervisory conditions applicable to our Group, in the
European Union at least. Moreover this Directive, implemented into national law, establishes regulations relating to
technical reserves and to the Life and Non-Life solvency margins applicable to the Group as of 2008 in France and in all
European countries. The Directive defines minimal conditions common to all member States of the European Union, and
gives national legislators the option to set more stringent requirements. The national provisions adopted for the
implementation of this Directive and their interpretations, as well as other legislative or regulatory changes, increase the
harmonisation of regulations governing reinsurers with the regulations governing insurers. These new regulations may
increase our solvency margin obligations, thereby restricting our underwriting capacity.

The Reinsurance sector has been exposed in the past — and may be in the future — to involvement in legal proceedings,
regulatory inquiries and actions by various administrative and regulatory authorities, as well as to regulation concerning
certain practices used in the insurance sector. This involvement notably concerned agreements over the payment of
"contingency commissions" by insurance companies to their agents or brokers and the consequences of such payments
on competition between insurance operators, as well as the accounting of various alternative risk transfer products.
Insurers appear to have put a stop to various commercial contingency commissions; a development which has spread to
reinsurers in terms of the business they underwrite through brokers.

In addition to this, the public authorities in the United States and the rest of the world are closely examining the potential
risks presented by the reinsurance sector as a whole, as well as their consequences on commercial and financial
systems in general. The European Directive, approved 2 April 2009, "Solvency II" on the solvency standards applicable
to Insurers and Reinsurers, currently pending approval, stipulates in particular a "Pillar 2" which deals with risk
assessment and control requirements in order to support the achievement of strategic, operational, reporting and
compliance objectives of the companies in the sector. Although it is of course not possible to quantify the impact of the
these requirements, nor their scope, it is very likely that risk management and control measures will be reinforced for
reinsurers in the near future, which may increase the capital requirements (or restrict our underwriting capacity) and
increase our operating costs.

Adverse changes in laws or regulations or an adverse outcome of these proceedings could have adverse effects on our
turnover, liquidity, financial position and operating income.

4.4.2 WE ARE EXPOSED TO CERTAIN LITIGATION MATTERS

We are involved in legal and arbitration proceedings in certain jurisdictions, particularly in Europe and the United States.
Following the acquisition in 2007 of Converium (which became SCOR Holding (Switzerland)), SCOR assumes
responsibility for Converium's litigation matters (for more information on this issue, refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Note 28 - Litigation).

SCOR's legal department is systematically informed of any potential or proven risk of litigation by the two operating
divisions SCOR Global P&C and SCOR Global Life and, at Group level, by the senior management, by the Group
Executive Committee, or by the hub legal departments located respectively in Paris, London, New-York, Cologne and
Zurich. Consequently, the Group Legal Department centralises and monitors all the litigation matters of the Group,
except for claims litigations which are managed by the specialised lawyers in the Claims & Commutations Division at
SCOR Gilobal P&C and the operational entities. The procedures for reporting disputes and monitoring litigation matters
are described in greater detail in Appendix B - Report of the Chairman of the Board of Directors on the terms and
conditions for preparing and organising the work of the Board of Directors and on internal procedures.
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An unfavourable outcome in one or more of the court or arbitration proceedings described above could have a material
adverse impact on the revenues, net income, cash flow and financial position of the Group.

4.4.3 OUR POSITIONS ON TAX ACCOUNTS ARE SUBJECT TO AUDIT AND APPROVAL BY TAX AUTHORITIES

SCOR establishes tax accounts in accordance with applicable local laws and regulations. However, some tax positions
may differ from the view taken by the relevant tax authorities. Additionally tax laws and regulations may change with
retroactive impact.

Insurance of specific operational risks (excluding
reinsurance activity) "

SCOR is exposed to specific operational risks (See Section 4.1.10-Operational risks, including human errors or
computer system failure, are inherent in our business), some of which are transferred in whole or in part to direct
insurers.

The properties and other assets of SCOR and its subsidiaries are covered locally through property and fire damage and
comprehensive IT risk policies. The levels of self-insurance depend on the risks insured (e.g., self-insurance level on the
SCOR building in Paris at La Défense, is less than EUR 15,000 deductible per incident).

With the exception of a few policies purchased locally, liability risks are mostly covered at Group level for amounts
deemed sufficient.

This is the case for civil liability risks related to the operation of the company caused by employees and real estate,
professional liability risks, civil liability risks of directors and officers, and fraud.

All of these insurance policies are with high-quality insurers.

The management of the Group's property and liability insurance is subject to a validation procedure in which a steering
committee composed of specialist staff is requested to issue an opinion. Assessment of strategies is performed by the
Group Chief Risk Officer ("CRQO").

Nevertheless, these insurance covers could prove insufficient or the insurance company could possibly contest their

liability and towards SCOR. This could have a material adverse impact on the revenues, net income, cash flow and
financial position of the Group.

Risks and litigation: Reserving methods

Refer to Section 20.1.6 - Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 1 - Accounting principles and methods.

! Generally speaking, the amounts of insurance mentioned in this Section 4.5 are for purposes of illustrating the policy of transferring certain risks
by the SCOR Group, subject to other provisions of corresponding policies or policy, specifically those regarding possible lower limits of coverage,
particular deductibles, geographic coverage and/or particular exclusions.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

History and development of the issuer

5.1.1 LEGAL NAME AND COMMERCIAL NAME OF ISSUER

Legal name: SCOR S.E.

Commercial name: SCOR
5.1.2 PLACE AND REGISTRATION NUMBER OF ISSUER

R.C.S. number: Nanterre 562 033 357

A.P.E. Code: 6520 Z
5.1.3 DATE OF INCORPORATION AND LENGTH OF LIFE OF ISSUER

Incorporated: 16 August 1855 under the name Compagnie Impériale des Voitures de Paris; name changed to SCOR
S.A. on 16 October 1989, to SCOR on 13 May 1996, then to SCOR S.E. on 25 June 2007.

Expiration: 30 June 2024 unless otherwise extended or previously dissolved.

5.1.4 DOMICILE AND LEGAL FORM OF ISSUER, LEGISLATION GOVERNING ITS ACTIVITIES, COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATION, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF ITS REGISTERED OFFICE

5.1.4.1 Registered office and contact information of issuer

SCOR SE

1, avenue du Général de Gaulle
92800 PUTEAUX

France

Tel. +33 (0)1 46 98 70 00

Fax : +33 (0)1 47 67 04 09
WWW.SCOr.com

E-mail: scor@scor.com

5.1.4.2 Legal form and applicable legislation

(@) Corporate law

SCOR SE is a European Company (Societas Europaea) governed by the provisions of Council Regulation (EC) No.
2157/2001, dated 8 October 2001 on the Statute for a European Company (the “SE Regulation”), and that of the
European Council Directive 2001/86/EC of 8 October 2001 supplementing the Statute for a European Company with
regard to the involvement of employees, and by the provisions of French law relating to European Companies, as well as
for all other matters partially covered or not covered by the SE Regulation, by the French corporate law provisions
applicable to a société anonyme, where not contrary to the specific provisions applicable to European Companies.

On 24 May 2007, the annual General Shareholders’ Meeting approved the conversion of the Company into a European
Company or Societas Europaea, pursuant to Articles 1 §1, 2 §4 and 37 of the SE Regulation, and Article L. 225-245-1 of
the Commercial Code, thereby becoming, on 25 June 2007, the first French listed company to adopt the Societas
Europaea statute.

Following approval of this conversion, SCOR SE is registered with the Nanterre Trade and Companies Register under
the corporate name SCOR SE and has taken the form of a European company as of the date of such registration.

The conversion did not result in either the dissolution of SCOR SE or the creation of a new legal entity.
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The conversion had no impact upon the rights of the Company’s shareholders or bondholders who automatically
became shareholders and bondholders of SCOR SE without any action being required on their part. They remain
shareholders and bondholders in proportion to their rights acquired prior to the completion of the conversion. Thus, the
financial liability of each shareholder of SCOR SE is limited to the amount of his subscription prior to the conversion. The
proportion of the voting rights held by each shareholder in the Company has not been affected by the conversion into a
European Company.

The conversion in itself did not have any impact on the value of the SCOR SE shares. The number of shares issued by
the Company was not changed as a result of the conversion and the shares of the Company, at this stage, remain listed
on the Eurolist market of Euronext Paris, on the SIX Swiss Exchange (formerly SWX Swiss Exchange) in Zurich since 8
August 2007 and tradable over-the-counter on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. The Company’s ADS which were listed on
the New York Stock Exchange since 11 October 1996 were delisted on 14 June 2007 and the Company’s securities
were deregistered with SEC on 4 September 2007.

(b) Insurance law

In Europe

Specific provisions apply to the reinsurance activity of SCOR. Under the reinsurance Directive 2005/68/EC dated
16 November 2005 (the “Reinsurance Directive”), implemented into French law by ordinance n. 2008-556 of 13 June
2008 and application decrees n. 2008-711 of 17 July 2008, and n. 2008-1154 of 7 November 2008, as well as regulation
(arrété) of 7 November 2008, reinsurance companies and their subsidiaries situated in a country within the European
Union, are subject to state control, under the conditions defined by Book Il of the French Insurance Code. The
Reinsurance Directive also states rules for the off setting of underwriting reserves by assets and the rules of
acceptability of assets. The main provisions are:

B French companies, whose exclusive business is reinsurance, can only practise after having obtained an
administrative license, issued by the Committee for Insurance Companies and published in the Official Journal. The
licenses for SCOR SE, SCOR Global Life SE (“SCOR Global Life SE”) and SCOR Global P&C SE (“SCOR Global
P&C SE”) were validated by virtue of the decision, dated 15 July 2008.

B the authorised reinsurers can thus operate in the European Union with free provision of service and in the European
Economic Area (“EEA”).

B European reinsurance companies are under an obligation to meet the defined regulatory solvency demand, to
establish a guarantee fund and to put a permanent internal control policy in place.

B the obligation imposed upon reinsurers, to establish an adequate solvency margin, aims to protect the insurance
companies, and hence, the consumers, in order to ensure that in the event of a decline in business or in investment
income, the reinsurance companies have additional reserves, protecting those interests and consequently, the policy
holders, while providing both executives and oversight and regulatory authorities with sufficient time to resolve the
problems that have arisen. In Switzerland, the Group subsidiaries apply the federal law dated 17 December 2004,
governing the oversight of insurance companies, which also governs reinsurance companies, which stipulates that an
insurance company must have sufficient assets, free of any predictable commitment, for all its activities (solvency
margin).

B reinsurers authorised in France and their branches are monitored by the prudential control authority. The role of this
body is to ensure that at any point, these entities are able to conform to the commitments that they have entered into
with reinsurance companies and that they fulfil the regulatory solvency margin demands.

B The prudential control authority is authorised to address prevention measures and to issue warnings to the monitored
company or its executives.

In the United States

In the United States, the Group’s reinsurance and insurance subsidiaries are regulated primarily by the insurance
regulators in the state in which they are domiciled, but they are also subject to regulations in each state in which they are
authorised or licensed. SCOR Reinsurance Company, the Group’s main Non-Life subsidiary in the United States, is
domiciled in the State of New York and SCOR Gilobal Life U.S. Re Insurance Company, the Group’s main Life insurance
subsidiary in the United States, is domiciled in Texas. The Group’s other subsidiaries in the United States are currently
domiciled in Arizona, Delaware and Texas.

5.1.5 IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ISSUER’S BUSINESS

SCOR SE was founded in 1970 at the initiative of the French government to create a reinsurance company of
international stature. SCOR developed quickly in the various world markets, building up a substantial international
portfolio.
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At the beginning of the 1980s, the government’s stake in the Company’s share capital, held through the Caisse Centrale
de Réassurance, was progressively reduced in favour of insurance companies that were active on the French market.

In 1989, SCOR SE and UAP Reassurances combined their Property & Casualty and Life reinsurance businesses as part
of a restructuring of SCOR SE’s share capital, and listed the Company on the Paris stock exchange. The withdrawal of
Compagnie UAP, which held 41% of the share capital, was completed in October 1996 via an international public
offering at the time of SCOR SE'’s listing on the New York Stock Exchange.

In July 1996, SCOR SE acquired the reinsurance portfolio of the American insurer Allstate Insurance Company, doubling
the share of its U.S. business in the Group’s total Group turnover.

While maintaining an active local presence in major markets and building up new units in fast-growing emerging
countries, SCOR SE continued in the following years to streamline its structure and its organisation.

In 1998, SCOR SE and SOLAREH incorporated SOLAREH SA, which is now held equally by SCOR Global Life SE and
SOLAREH International. Its corporate purpose is to facilitate the reintegration to society of the disabled by re-education,
prevention and training services granted to French insurers which are reinsured by the Group.

In 1999, SCOR SE purchased the 35% state held by Western General Insurance in the Bermudan company Commercial
Risk Partners (CRP), thus raising its stake in this subsidiary to 100%.

In 2000, SCOR SE acquired Partner Re Life in the United States, thus providing it with a platform to expand its Life
reinsurance business on the U.S. market.

In 2001, SCOR SE acquired SOREMA S.A. and SOREMA North America in order to increase its market share and take
full advantage of the cyclical upturn in Property & Casualty reinsurance.

That same year, SCOR SE and a group of international investors formed a reinsurance company in Dublin, named Irish
Reinsurance Partners Ltd (“IRP”), which has since become SCOR Global P&C Ireland Ltd, with a paid-up capital of
EUR 300 million in order to strengthen the Group’s total equity and increase its underwriting capacity to take advantage
of the upturn in the reinsurance cycle. IRP has been principally used for the retrocession in quota share of 25% of the
part of the Non-Life business underwritten or renewed by the Group during financial years 2002, 2003 and 2004.

In 2002, SCOR SE signed a cooperation agreement in the Life reinsurance business with the Legacy Marketing Group
of California, for the distribution and management of annuity products in the U.S..

In 2003, the Group reorganised its Life reinsurance business. The companies of the Group transferred to SCOR VIE and
its subsidiaries all of the Group’s Life reinsurance business throughout the world. SCOR VIE, whose corporate name
was changed in 2006 to SCOR Global Life, and which became a European Company in 2007, along with its
subsidiaries, are all directly or indirectly wholly owned by SCOR SE.

In June 2005, SCOR SE acquired the minority interests of IRP, following the termination of the quota share treaties
between IRP, SCOR SE and some subsidiaries of the Group effective 31 December 2004. All liabilities, rights and
obligations of IRP under the quota share treaties were novated in favour of SCOR SE in October 2005. In 2007, IRP
became SCOR Global P&C Ireland Ltd and co-reinsures especially in British businesses, underwritten by Non-Life
entities.

On 16 May 2006, SCOR SE transferred all of its Non-Life reinsurance business in Europe, including Property & Casualty
Treaties (including Credit & Surety business), Large Corporate Accounts and Construction reinsurance to a company of
the Group, Société Putéolienne de Participations, whose corporate name was changed to SCOR Global P&C, a French
subsidiary wholly owned by SCOR SE, effective retroactively to 1 January 2006. In 2007, SCOR Global P&C adopted
the European Company statute via a merger by absorption of SCOR Deutschland Riickversicherungs AG and SCOR
Italia Riassicurazioni SpA.

On 21 November 2006, the Group completed the acquisition of Revios Rickversicherung AG (“Revios”), allowing it to
create a top worldwide Life reinsurer. Based in Cologne, Revios was the former Life reinsurance unit of Gerling Global
Re Group, and had successfully developed autonomously since 2002. Revios had since become one of the leading
European reinsurers specialising in Life reinsurance, with offices in 17 countries. The combination of Revios and SCOR
VIE created SCOR Global Life SE, an operating entity with an annual volume of gross written premiums of
EUR 3,118 million at 31 December 2009.

On 10 January 2007, SCOR increased the level of its investment (which stood at 10.2% since 1994) to 39.7% of the
share capital and 40.2% of the voting rights of ReMark.

On 22 August 2007, SCOR Global Life SE announced that it held 98.67 % of the share capital of ReMark, now part of
the Market Unit 1 of SCOR Global Life SE. Established in 1984, ReMark is an important player of the direct global
marketing of Life insurance products business. On 8 August 2007, SCOR Global Life SE acquired 100% of Alfinanz
Asia, another entity specialised in the direct marketing of products similar to those of ReMark. Since 2009, SCOR Global
Life SE holds 100% of the share capital of ReMark.

Since 30 August 2007, SCOR SE has acquired control of Converium (which became SCOR Holding (Switzerland))
further to the market purchases of Converium shares, to the acquisition of blocks of Converium shares and to the Offer
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(for additional information on this takeover, refer to Section 5.2.1.1 - Public offer upon the Converium shares). In the
context of this Offer, SCOR SE also listed its shares to trading in Swiss Francs on the SWX Swiss Exchange (which
became the SIX Swiss Exchange) in Zurich, thereby enabling Converium shareholders who having brought their
Converium shares to SCOR SE to keep their assets in the same currency and on the same stock exchange.

Following the acquisition of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) (formerly Converium Holding) shares on the market, SCOR SE
held, on 22 October 2007, more than 98 % of SCOR Holding (Switzerland), enabling SCOR SE to seek, on 25 October
2007, a court-ordered procedure for the cancellation of the shares of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) not yet held by the
Group.

Following this acquisition, the Group became the world’s fifth-ranking global multi-line reinsurer with leading positions in
selected areas such as Life reinsurance, specialty lines, industrial high risk, according to the classifications appearing in
Global Reinsurance Highlights 2009 of Standard & Poor’s, in terms of pro forma gross written premiums issued in 2008
by the Group’s entities.

On 7 January 2008, SCOR Holding (Switzerland) delisted its American Depositary Shares from the New York Stock
Exchange. SCOR Holding (Switzerland) then requested the deregistration of its securities with the SEC. The
deregistration of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) securities took place on 4 September 2008. Moreover, further to the
request addressed by SCOR Holding (Switzerland), the SWX Swiss Exchange, by order dated 14 November 2007,
delisted SCOR Holding (Switzerland)’'s shares as from 30 May 2008.

Following the acquisition of Converium and Revios by SCOR SE, the integration of these companies has been
implemented in the framework of an innovative approach, in accordance with the new global, multi-cultural dimension of
the Group: the Hub Company.

This model has been designed around six structured platforms, around roles and not just by legal entities. Each platform
is in charge of some of the local, regional and global responsibilities.

The Hubs have been progressively put in place:
® on 5 May 2008 for the Cologne Hub;

H on 20 May 2008 for the London Hub;

B on 16 June 2008 for the Asia Pacific Hub;

B on 18 June 2008 for the America Hub;

B on 27 January 2009 for the Zurich Hub;

B on 24 February 2009 for the Paris Hub.

The Group created, on 21 April 2008, a representative office in South Africa, bound to operate Non-Life activities. On
30 June 2009, the Group announced that he South African regulatory body for the insurance sector, the FSB, has
granted SCOR SE a licence to conduct Life and Non-Life reinsurance business. The Group’s Non-Life representative
office in Johannesburg has thus become a fully-fledged composite subsidiary of SCOR SE, called SCOR Africa Limited.
This subsidiary’s activities will cover Africa’s English and Portuguese speaking markets as well as Mauritius.

On 31 July 2008, SCOR SE entered into an agreement with the Malakoff Médéric Group, the leading Group in the
French social protection market, in order to acquire 100% of the share capital and voting rights of Prévoyance et
Réassurance and its Life and health reinsurance subsidiary Prévoyance Ré. This agreement also includes the signature
of a 5-year commercial agreement between SCOR and Malakoff Médéric. The transaction was signed on 24 October
2008 and gave rise to the contribution to the Malakoff Médéric Group of SCOR treasury shares. In carrying out this
acquisition, SCOR accentuates its leading role in the French Life and Health reinsurance market and the social
protection field. The acquisition of Prévoyance Ré is described in more details in Section 5.2.1.3 - Acquisition of all the
shares of Prévoyance Ré.

On 27 October 2008, SCOR Global Life SE incorporated in Spain SCOR Telemed, a wholly owned subsidiary. The
corporate purpose of this company is the carrying of medical interviews by phone in the aim of Life insurance tele-
underwriting. The activities of this company have been launched on 18 November 2009 to provide clients with value-
added services in the field of tele-underwriting. The company uses IT software to conduct tele-interviews and has a
specialised automated underwriting system to deal with cases ranging from the standard to the most complicated ones.
Severely substandard cases will be handled using SCOR’s web-based underwriting manual. The advantages of SCOR
Telemed for clients are manifold and include enhanced customer satisfaction, speed of service, increased disclosure
and strong operational savings. The reduced level of administration also means that the sales team can focus on their
core activity.

On 29 October 2008, the Group announced its decision to create SCOR Global Investments SE, its portfolio

management company and third operational entity within the Group along with SCOR Global P&C and SCOR Global
Life. This new structure, incorporated on 2 February 2009, is planned to carry the asset management of the whole
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investments portfolio of all the Group companies and is planned to implement the investment strategy as determined by
the Group’s Investment Committee chaired by Denis Kessler, Group Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. SCOR
Global Investments SE has been approved by the AMF as a portfolio management company with effect from 15 May
2009.

On 21 November 2008, SCOR announced its decision to incorporate a reinsurance subsidiary in Russia (Moscow) in
order to develop both its Life and Non-Life business. This company, held by SCOR SE, was incorporated on 24
December 2008 under the corporate name SCOR Perestrakhovaniye.

On 19 May 2009, SCOR announced the acquisition of ESG Direct Asia by SCOR Global Life SE’s wholly-owned
subsidiary ReMark. ESG Direct Marketing has been active in Direct Marketing in Asia since 1998, in particular in
Malaysia, Thailand, Indonesia, Hong Kong and China.

On 18 July 2009, SCOR Gilobal Life US, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has reached a definitive agreement to
acquire XL Re Life America Inc., a subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd, for an amount of EUR 31.7 million. The definitive
completion of this acquisition has been announced on 4 December 2009. The acquisition will help SCOR Global Life SE
to further develop its mortality and U.S. Life reinsurance market position. In 2008, XL Re Life America Inc. generated
EUR 22.1 million in premium income.

On 8 October 2009, SCOR Global Life SE opened a Life branch office in The Netherlands to further strengthen its
presence and position in the market and fully seize business opportunities.

Investments

5.2.1 PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS MADE OVER THE PAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS

Refer to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Note 27 - Insurance and financial risk for the
detailed ranking by maturity of fixed-term investments in the Group’s portfolio as at 31 December 2009.

Refer to Section 4.2.1 -We face risks related to our fixed maturity portfolio - and 4.2.2 - We face risks related to our
equity based portfolio, for a description of risk management connected with our investments in debt instruments and
equity securities.

Refer to Section 8 — Property, plant and equipment for a description of risk management connected with our investments
in real estate.

5.2.1.1 Public offer upon the Converium shares

On 19 February 2007, SCOR SE announced that it had irrevocably secured 32.94% of the capital of Converium. The
acquisition of the 32.94% stake in Converium was achieved through market purchases (8.3%) and the acquisition of
blocks of shares from Patinex AG (“Patinex”) and Alecta pensionsforsakring, dmsesidigt (“Alecta”), representing
respectively 19.8% and 4.8% of Converium’s share capital. These blocks were acquired by purchase and contributions
in kind pursuant to share purchase agreements (the “Share Purchase Agreements”) and contribution treaties (the
“Contribution Treaties”) executed between SCOR SE and Patinex, on the one hand, dated 16 February 2007, and
between SCOR SE and Alecta, on the other hand, dated 18 February 2007, with compensation consisting of 80% SCOR
SE shares and 20% cash.

Under the terms of the Contribution Treaties, Patinex and Alecta have committed to contribute to the Company
23,216,280 and 5,680,000 Converium shares respectively, i.e. a total of 28,896,280 Converium shares (the
“Contributions”). A description of the contributions can be found in the document drawn up by SCOR SE, filed with the
AMF on 10 April 2007 under number E. 07-032 and in an additional document filed with the AMF on 23 April 2007 under
number E. 07-039 (the “Document E”), for the purpose of the company’s General Shareholders’ Meeting, held on
26 April 2007, called to approve the contributions and to vote on issuance of new shares as compensation for the
contributions (the “Contributed Shares”).

On 26 February 2007, the Company published a pre-announcement of a mixed public offer in Switzerland (the “Offer”)
for all of the publicly-held registered shares comprising Converium’s share capital, with a nominal value of 5 Swiss
Francs per share, including all shares that may be issued prior to the expiration of the offer period (including all
additional delays for accepting the Offer) and excluding those shares held by Converium or acquired in the future by
Converium or its subsidiaries, as well as those Converium shares admitted to trading on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) through an American Depositary Shares program (the “Converium Shares”). The total number of Converium
shares able to be contributed to the Offer was set at 106,369,112. Under the terms of the Offer, the company offered
Converium shareholders, in exchange for each share of Converium, (i) 0.5 share of SCOR SE; (ii) 5.50 Swiss francs and
(iii) 0.40 euro in cash, equal to 50% of the amount of the per share dividend for financial year 2006 paid out by SCOR
SE share and converted into Swiss francs on the basis of the euro/Swiss franc exchange rate in effect on the day the
Offer is executed (the “Counterpart of the Offer”). The terms and conditions of the Offer are detailed in the Offer
Prospectus which was published and filed with the Swiss takeover board (“TOB”) as of 5 April 2007 as amended on 12
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June 2007 (the “Offer Prospectus”). The TOB then released a recommendation (the “IV Recommendation”) pursuant
to which the Offer was compliant with the Swiss laws and regulations upon takeovers.

SCOR SE’s Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of 26 April 2007, approved the sixth resolution, regarding the
decision to proceed with a capital increase by issuing (without preferential subscription rights) new shares of SCOR SE,
attributed to Converium shareholders who have tendered their shares the Offer. The terms and conditions of this issue
are described in the issue and eligibility prospectus approved by the AMF on 10 April 2007 under number 07-115, as
amended by the first amendment approved by the AMF on 23 April 2007 under number 07-131 and by the second
amendment approved by the AMF on 12 June 2007 under number 07-183 (the “Issue and Eligibility Prospectus”).

92,969,353 Converium shares were presented for acceptance of the Offer opened from 12 June to 9 July 2007, with a
supplementary acceptance period opened from 13 to 26 July 2007. The settlement/delivery of the Offer was executed
according to the procedures appearing in the Offer Prospectus and SCOR proceeded to issue 46,484,676 new shares
on 8 August 2007, with a unit price of EUR 18.79, including EUR 10.9130277 in issue premium and 7.8769723 Euro of
face value; SCOR SE paid the Converium shareholders who contributed their shares to the Offer, a total amount of
511,331,441.50 Swiss francs as payment of 5.50 Swiss francs per Converium share contributed, and a total amount of
EUR 37,187,741.20 as payment of 0.40 Euro per Converium share contributed, i.e. 61,400,679.50 Swiss francs after
conversion into Swiss francs on the basis of the Euro/Swiss franc exchange in effect on the date the Offer was executed.

The cash portion of the Counterpart of the Offer, including the increase in the counterpart declared on 10 May 2007, was
financed out of SCOR SE’s own total equity.

5.2.1.2 Cancellation of the shares of SCOR (Holding) Switzerland

On 22 October 2007, SCOR announced that it held more than 98% of the voting rights of SCOR Holding (Switzerland)
(formerly Converium) and thus that the Group met the conditions necessary for the filing of a cancellation action with
respect to the remaining shares of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) not owned by the Group, in order for the Group to
become the sole shareholder of SCOR Holding (Switzerland). Such cancellation procedure is a court procedure initiated
in compliance with Swiss laws before a Swiss Court pursuant to which a shareholder holding more than 98% of the
voting rights of a company may request the cancellation of the shares held by the minority shareholders in consideration
for a counterpart strictly identical to that offered in the context of a previous public offer. Immediately after the
cancellation of the shares, the same amount of shares is issued to the benefit of the majority shareholder.

A request for cancellation of the 2,840,816 shares of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) was filed on 25 October 2007 with the
Business Court of the canton of Zurich (Handelsgericht des Kantons Zdirich), the counterpart in cash and shares offered
within the context of this cancellation proceedings being identical to the Counterpart of the Offer.

The order of the Commercial Court of Zurich was issued on 15 May 2008 and became effective on 20 May 2008; On
5 June 2008, the Board of Directors of SCOR SE decided, as a consideration for the 2,840,816 shares of SCOR Holding
(Switzerland), to (i) issue 1,420,408 SCOR SE shares and (ii) to pay CHF 15,624,488 and (iii) EUR 1,136,326.40
corresponding to the dividend paid by SCOR for 2007 to be paid in Swiss francs at the exchange rate applicable on the
day preceding the cancellation of the remaining shares, 5 June 2008 (i.e., EUR 1 = CHF 1.61630) (such amount being
financed out of SCOR’s own total equity).

Since 6 June 2008, all of the shares comprising the share capital of SCOR Holding (Switzerland) have been held by
SCOR.

On 23 December 2008, the Federal Administrative Court (Bundesverwaltungsgericht) decided upon the appeal filed by
SCOR against the decision rendered by the Swiss Federal Banking Commission on 13 July 2007. Pursuant to this
decision, the Swiss Federal Banking Commission confirmed the position expressed by the Swiss Takeover Board in its
Recommendation IV dated 9 June 2007, according to which Mr. Martin Ebner, Patinex and BZ Bank AG had acted in
concert with SCOR in connection with the Offer. SCOR refutes this characterisation and reaffirms that such physical
person and legal entities did not act in concert with SCOR in connection with the Offer. With its decision of 23
December 2008, TAF decided that it did not have to decide in the merits, as the Offer had been consummated and the
period for the application of the best price rule had expired on 26 January 2008. In its report dated 22 April 2008 (with
supplement dated 13 May 2008), the independent review body Ernst & Young had confirmed that SCOR had complied
with all its obligations in connection with the Offer even if Martin Ebner and the persons directly or indirectly controlled by
him had been deemed to be acting in concert with SCOR. Accordingly, the appeal was written off without judgment on
the merits due to the interests in the appeal having fallen away during the procedure and the appeal therefore having
become abstract. None of the parties filed an appeal against this decision of the Federal Administrative Court.

5.2.1.3 Acquisition of all the shares of Prévoyance Ré

On 31 July 2008, SCOR SE entered into an agreement with the Malakoff Médéric Group, the leading Group in the
French social protection market, to acquire 100 % of the share capital and voting rights of Prévoyance et Réassurance,
i.e., 1,650,000 shares and voting rights, and its Life and Health reinsurance subsidiary Prévoyance Ré, i.e., 850,000
shares and voting rights.

Such acquisition has been completed on 24 October 2008, by transfer of:
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B 2,673,173 SCOR treasury shares to Médéric Prévoyance;
B 257,701 SCOR treasury shares to the Institution Nationale de Prévoyance des Représentants; and

B 528,201 SCOR treasury shares to the URRPIMMEC (Union des Régimes de Retraites et de Prestations en cas
d’invalidité et de maladie des Industries Métallurgiques, Mécaniques, Electriques et Connexes).

In addition, Group Malakoff Médéric, in accordance with its commitment, acquired on the market, as from November
é(I)EOS, an additional number of SCOR SE shares enabling it to hold 3% of the share capital and voting rights of SCOR
5.2.2 PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS IN PROGRESS

As of the date of this Registration Document, no significant investment is in progress.

5.2.3 PRINCIPAL FUTURE INVESTMENTS

In connection with its business activities, and in strict compliance with the criteria defined for the implementation of its

strategy, SCOR SE remains committed to exploring acquisition opportunities which may present themselves and which
would be likely to deliver value for its shareholders.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

SCOR historical overview

At the end of 2002, SCOR reassessed its new “Back on track” strategic plan. This plan was implemented in order to shift
the Property and Casualty underwritings towards:

B short-tail lines, which give a better forward-looking view of the activities, that do not involve the same level of risk on
future results and which avoid the difficulty of calculating future results and the related required reserves for long-tail
activities exposed to disputes and to claims inflation; and

B non-proportional activities, for which the prices are defined by SCOR underwriters and actuaries; these activities,
which are independent of the prices given by ceding companies to their clients, are less sensitive to the negative
effects that can result from the underwriting and rates of the ceding companies.

The “Back on Track” plan met its four major objectives by the end of 2004:
B strengthen the Group’s reserves to the "best estimate" as of this date;
B restore its equity through two share capital increases of EUR 380 millions and EUR 750 million;

B streamline the Group by reducing premiums underwritten in the Non-Life sector and the implementation of a new
underwriting policy focused on short-tail activities and on less exposed markets, to the detriment of underwritings
carried out in the United States, specifically with respect to general legal liability and industrial/occupational injuries
treaties; and

B restructure the Group, particularly by appointing a new Board of Directors, new management and new procedures.

In 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a new strategic plan “SCOR Moving Forward” for the period 2005-
2007. The “SCOR Moving Forward” plan sets forth the means and methods to achieve a profitability goal of Return on
Equity (“ROE”) of 10% through an underwriting policy focused on profitability, by optimum allocation of capital throughout
the business cycle, and by maintaining SCOR'’s customer base in Europe, Asia, North America and in the emerging
countries.

With premium revenues of EUR 2,407 million, 2005 was marked by stability in premiums in contrast to 2004, because of
the continuation of strict underwriting rules and the renewal of the Non-Life treaties in January and April 2005 affected by
a rating of BBB+ (Standard & Poor’s) and B++ (AM Best), which were relatively unfavourable compared to our principal
competitors. In August 2005, Standard & Poor’s upgraded the SCOR rating to A- and on 8 September 2006, AM Best
also raised its rating to A-.

SCOR VIE’s acquisition of Revios on 21 November 2006 resulted in the creation of SCOR Global Life. This combination
was part of the Group’s strategy to balance out Life and Non-Life businesses. This “business mix” enabled the Group to
improve its risk profile through diversification of its portfolio, to reduce the volatility of its result and to optimise the use of
its capital depending on the divergent developments of Life and Non-Life reinsurance markets. The combination
between SCOR and Revios allowed collaboration between highly complementary entities in northern and southern
Europe and in Asia.

In 2006, SCOR'’s turnover grew by 26.8% in Non-Life reinsurance and by 15.3% in Life reinsurance (1.7% excluding the
portion of sales realised by Revios between the date of its acquisition by SCOR and the closing date), due in particular
to regaining lost shares after the rating upgrades in August 2005 and September 2006.

Throughout 2007, SCOR finalised the implementation of the “SCOR Moving Forward” plan, which was aiming to regain
market shares lost due to the lowering of its rating. Taking advantage of a still relatively buoyant market in terms of price
where, despite the reorientation of reinsurance transfer policies, development opportunities and the technical quality of
risks made it possible to meet the written premium targets. Additionally, the business formerly underwritten by
Converium contributed to achieve a sustained successful level of written premium.
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The Dynamic Lift plan

The “SCOR Moving Forward” plan was followed by the strategic “Dynamic Lift” plan for the period 2007-2010, in which
the Group set its three-year objectives, as approved on 3 April 2007 by the SCOR Board of Directors, based on
balanced and profitable growth, centred around Europe and Asia.

On 10 May 2007, in the context of the amicable agreement reached by SCOR and Converium regarding the Offer,
SCOR announced that the Converium and SCOR underwriting teams were preparing a common underwriting plan for
the 2008 renewal campaign. SCOR took control of Converium on 30 August 2007. This acquisition allowed the creation
of the "new" SCOR, one of the 5 largest multi-line reinsurance companies, on the basis of two business engines: Life
and Non-Life. For more information on this acquisition, see Sections 5.2.1.1 — Public offer upon the Converium shares.

The second version of the strategic plan, "Dynamic Lift V2”, was presented on 4 September 2007 and is based on the
results of the analyses of Converium’s portfolios made possible since 8 August 2007. The acquisition and integration of
Converium aimed to deliver the following objectives over the following 3 years:

B to secure a ROE of 900 bps above risk free rate over the cycle;
B to provide an "A+" level of security to clients by 2010;
m to self-finance the current business plan of the Group;
B to return excess capital to shareholders through various means.

The combination of SCOR and Converium created a group organised as a network based on six platforms (“hubs”)
worldwide. Four hubs have been created in Europe (Paris, Zurich, Cologne and London), one in the USA (New York)
and one for Asia- Pacific (in Singapore).

In the wake of the integration of Converium’s teams, the 2008 renewals were successfully negotiated and the
combination of the portfolios was performed in line with the assumptions set forth in “Dynamic Lift V2" and the
corresponding estimates.

The Group, strengthened by the successive acquisitions of Revios and Converium, restored the balance in written
premium in Life Reinsurance (“SCOR Global Life”) and Non-Life Reinsurance (“SCOR Global P&C”), which are the basis
of its diversification strategy. Within its Non-Life business activities, the complementary character of its SCOR and
Converium portfolios and the contribution by Converium of Specialty Treaties and Joint Venture and Partnerships
activities, resulted in significant improvement in SCOR’s offerings.

Further strengthening of SCOR’s organisational setup has been achieved through the acquisition of ReMark, offering
direct global marketing of Life insurance products for financial institutions and serving over 200 clients in 33 countries.

With the acquisition of Prévoyance Ré from Malakoff Médéric Group, SCOR has further complemented its Life and
Health business. The transaction was signed on 24 October 2008. Prévoyance Ré’s primary clients consist of provident
institutions and other mutual insurance organisations.

After the “SCOR Moving Forward” — plan ending in 2007, the “Dynamic Lift” plan was put in place which ends in 2010. A
subsequent strategic plan is currently under preparation covering the following 2011-2013 period.

2009 business developments

Throughout 2009, the Group continued to deliver on its 3-year “Dynamic Lift V2” plan. The renewals throughout the year
demonstrated the strength of SCOR'’s franchise, based on a well diversified and balanced set up between the Life and
Non-Life entities.

With the acquisition of XL Re Life America, a subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd., SCOR has further complemented its Life and
Health business and U.S. offering. The transaction was signed on 18 July 2009 and was closed on 4 December 2009.
The total consideration of the transaction amounts to EUR 31.7 million, being settled in cash, and entirely self-financed.
The business acquired shows a strong compatibility with SCOR’s Life strategy that is rooted in focusing on traditional
protection business that is not correlated with economic risks.

ReMark, the wholly-owned subsidiary of SCOR Global Life SE, completed the acquisition of ESG Direct Marketing in
Asia on 19 May 2009. The acquisition further strengthens the world-leading provider of direct insurance distribution
solutions in Malaysia, Thailand, Indonesia, Hong Kong and China.

SCOR Global Life officially launched SCOR Telemed, a dedicated tele-underwriting company, on 18 November 2009.

The company uses the latest IT software to conduct tele-interviews, with a specialised automated underwriting system to
deal with cases ranging from the standard to the most complex ones.
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SCOR Global Investmentsis regulated by the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and received its
authorisation on 15 May 2009. It currently manages the investments of SCOR SE, SCOR Global P&C SE and SCOR
Global Life SE and their European branches and monitors the global investment portfolio for all Group entities.

Primary activities

6.1.1 THE REINSURANCE BUSINESS
6.1.1.1 Principles

Reinsurance is a contract under which a company, the reinsurer, agrees to indemnify an insurance company, the ceding
company, against all or part of the primary insurance risks underwritten by the ceding company under one or more
insurance contracts. Reinsurance differs from insurance, primarily because of its inherent complexity linked to the
broader range of activities and its international nature. Reinsurance can provide a ceding company with several benefits,
including a reduction in net liability on individual risks and catastrophe protection from large or multiple losses.
Reinsurance also provides ceding companies with the necessary capacity to increase their underwriting capabilities both
in terms of the number and size of risks. Reinsurance however, does not discharge the ceding company from its liability
to policyholders. Reinsurers themselves may feel the need to transfer some of the risks concerned to other reinsurers
(known as retrocessionaires).

6.1.1.2 Functions

Reinsurance provides three essential functions:

it offers the direct insurer greater security for its equity and solvency, as well as stable results when unusual and major
events occur, by covering the direct insurer above certain ceilings or against accumulated individual commitments;

it allows insurers to increase their available capacity — i.e. the maximum amount they can insure for a given loss or
category of losses, by enabling them to underwrite policies covering a larger number of risks, or larger risks, without
excessively raising their administrative costs and their need to cover their solvency margin and, therefore, their
shareholder’s equity;

it makes substantial liquid assets available to insurers in the event of exceptional losses.
In addition, reinsurers also provide advisory services to ceding companies by:

(a) defining their reinsurance needs and devising the most effective reinsurance program to better plan their capital
needs and solvency margin;

(b) supplying a wide array of support services, specifically in terms of technical training, organisation, accounting and
information technology;

(c) providing expertise in certain highly specialised areas such as the analysis of complex risks and risk pricing;

(d) enabling ceding companies to build up their business even if they are temporarily under capitalised, particularly in
order to launch new products requiring heavy investment.

6.1.1.3 Types of reinsurance

(@) Treaty and Facultative

The two basic types of reinsurance arrangements are treaty and facultative reinsurance.

In treaty reinsurance, the ceding company has a contractual obligation to cede and the reinsurer to accept, a specified
portion of a type or category of risks insured by the ceding company. Reinsurers producing the treaties, as done by the
Group SCOR, do not separately evaluate each of the individual risks assumed under the treaty. As a result, after
reviewing the ceding company’s underwriting practices, they depend on the coverage decisions made originally by the
policy writers of the ceding company.

Such dependence subjects reinsurers in general, including SCOR, to the possibility that the ceding companies have not
adequately evaluated the risks to be reinsured and, therefore, that the premiums ceded in connection therewith may not
adequately compensate the reinsurer for the risk assumed. The reinsurer's evaluation of the ceding company’s risk
management and underwriting practices as well as claims settlement practices and procedures, therefore, will usually
impact the pricing of the treaty.

In facultative reinsurance, the ceding company cedes and the reinsurer assumes all or part of the risk covered by a

single specific insurance policy. Facultative reinsurance is negotiated separately for each insurance contract that is
reinsured. Facultative reinsurance normally is purchased by ceding companies for individual risks not covered by their
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reinsurance treaties, for amounts in excess of the monetary limits of their reinsurance treaties and for unusual risks.
Underwriting expenses and, in particular, personnel costs, are higher relative to premiums written on facultative business
because each risk is individually underwritten and administered. The ability to separately evaluate each risk reinsured,
however, increases the probability that the underwriter can price the contract to more accurately reflect the risks
involved.

(b) Proportional and non-proportional reinsurance

Both treaty and facultative reinsurance can be underwritten on a proportional (or quota share) basis, or non-proportional
(excess loss) basis or on a stop loss basis.

With respect to proportional or quota share reinsurance, the reinsurer, in return for a predetermined portion or share of
the insurance premium charged by the ceding company, indemnifies the ceding company against the same
predetermined portion or share of the losses of the ceding company under the covered insurance contract or contracts.
In the case of reinsurance written on a non-proportional, or excess of loss basis or excess of stop loss, the reinsurer
indemnifies the ceding company against all or a specified portion of losses, on a claim by claim basis or with respect to a
specific event or a line of business, in excess of a specified amount, known as the ceding company’s retention or
reinsurer’s attachment point, and up to a negotiated reinsurance treaty limit.

Although the losses under a quota share reinsurance treaty are greater in number than under an excess of loss contract,
it is generally simpler to predict these losses on a quota share basis and the terms and conditions of the contract can be
drafted to limit the total coverage offered under the contract. A quota share reinsurance treaty therefore does not
necessarily require that a reinsurance company assume greater risk exposure than on an excess of loss contract. In
addition, the predictability of the loss experience may better enable underwriters and actuaries to price such business
accurately in light of the risk assumed, therefore reducing the volatility of results.

Excess of loss reinsurance are often written in layers. One or a group of reinsurers accepts the risk just above the
ceding company’s retention up to a specified amount, at which point another reinsurer or a group of reinsurers accepts
the excess liability up to a higher specified amount or such liability reverts to the ceding company. The reinsurer taking
on the risk just above the ceding company’s retention layer is said to write working layer or low layer excess of loss
reinsurance. A loss that reaches just beyond the ceding company’s retention will create a loss for the lower layer
reinsurer, but not for the reinsurers on the higher layers. Loss activity in lower layer reinsurance tends to be more
predictable than that in higher layers due to a greater historical frequency, and therefore, like quota share reinsurance,
enables underwriters and actuaries to more accurately price the underlying risks.

Premiums payable by the ceding company to a reinsurer for excess of loss reinsurance are not directly proportional to
the premiums that the ceding company receives because the reinsurer does not assume a directly proportionate risk. In
contrast, premiums paid by the ceding company to the reinsurer under a quota share contract are strictly proportional to
the premiums received by the ceding company, and correspond to its share of the risk coverage. In addition, in a quota
share reinsurance treaty, the reinsurer generally pays the ceding company a ceding commission. The ceding
commission is usually based on the ceding company’s cost of acquiring the business being reinsured (commissions,
premium taxes, assessments and miscellaneous administrative expense) and also may include a profit ratio.

6.1.1.4 Retrocession

Reinsurers typically purchase reinsurance to cover their own risk exposure or to increase their capacity. Reinsurance of
a reinsurer’s business is called a retrocession. Reinsurance companies cede risks under retrocession agreements to
other reinsurers, known as retrocessionaires, for reasons similar to those that cause primary insurers to purchase
reinsurance: to reduce net liability on individual risks, protect against catastrophic losses and obtain additional
underwriting capacity.

6.1.1.5 Brokered and direct reinsurance

Reinsurance can be written through professional reinsurance brokers or directly from ceding companies. A ceding
company’s selection of the market will be influenced by its perception of such advantages and disadvantages relative to
the reinsurance coverage being placed. For example, broker coverages usually involve a number of participating
reinsurers that have been assembled by a broker, each assuming a specified portion of the risk being reinsured. A
ceding company may find it easier to arrange such coverage in a difficult underwriting environment where risk capacity is
constrained and reinsurers are seeking to limit their risk exposure. In contrast, direct coverage is usually structured by
ceding companies directly with one or a limited number of reinsurers. The relative amount of brokered and direct
business written by the Group’s subsidiaries varies according to local market practice.

6.1.2 BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Our operations are organised into the following two business segments: Non-Life reinsurance and Life reinsurance. We
underwrite different types of risks for each segment. Responsibilities and reporting within the Group are established on
the basis of this structure, and our consolidated financial statements reflect the activities of each segment.
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6.1.2.1 Non-Life reinsurance

The Non-Life segment is divided into four operational sub-segments:
B P&C Treaties;

B Specialty Treaties;

B Business Solutions (facultative); and

m Joint Ventures and Partnerships.

(@) P&C Treaties

This business sector underwrites proportional and non-proportional reinsurance treaties.

These contracts cover property damage, such as dwellings, industrial and commercial goods, vehicles, ships, stored or
transported merchandise or operating losses caused by fires or other events, including accidents or natural catastrophes
as well as damages caused to third parties under civil liability coverage. Accordingly, they include treaties covering
automobile liability and general civil liability. Auto liability covers property damage, injuries and other risks arising from
the coverage of both drivers and passengers in private vehicles and commercial fleets.

(b) Specialty Treaties

SCOR’s main Specialty reinsurance activities includes Credit & Surety, Ten-Year Inherent Defects Insurance, Aviation,
Space, Marine, Engineering, Agricultural Risks and Structured Risk Transfer. They include both treaties and facultative
reinsurance.

Credit & Surety

The reinsurance of credit insurance, surety commitments and political risk is managed by teams primarily based in
Europe. Under credit insurance, the insurer covers the risk of losses from the non-payment of commercial debts. Surety
insurance is a contract under which a guarantor makes a commitment to a beneficiary to perform the obligation to
ensure payment by or to pay the debt of the secured debtor. Political risk insurance covers the risk of losses due to
measures taken by a government or similar entity which endangers the existence of a sales contract or commitment
made by a public or private citizen of the country in which the covered operations are performed. These risks are
underwritten through quota share (proportional and non-proportional) treaties as well as facultative.

Ten-Year Inherent Defects Insurance

According to French, ltalian, Spanish laws as well as laws in other jurisdictions, ten-year inherent defects insurance
covers major structural defects and the collapse of a building for ten years after completion. These risks are underwritten
by proportional and non-proportional treaties as well as by facultative reinsurance.

Aviation

Aviation insurance covers damages caused to aircraft, injuries to persons transported and to third persons caused by
aircraft or air navigation, as well as losses resulting from products manufactured by companies in the aerospace sector.

Space

Facultative and reinsurance treaties underwriting in the space sectors cover the launch preparation, the launch, and the
orbital operation of satellites. This applies primarily to commercial telecommunication and earth observation satellites.

Shipping (Marine)

Insurance for shipping risks includes insurance for general property and liability for the ships and shipped merchandise
as well as for ship construction.

Engineering

Engineering insurance, which is divided into Construction All Risks and Erection All Risks insurance, includes the basic
Property and Casualty coverage and may be extended to the financial consequences of a delay in delivery (anticipated
operating losses) caused by losses identifiable under the basic Property and Casualty coverage.
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Agricultural Risks

In order to address the increased risk and the coverage needs associated with agriculture, SCOR has been
strengthening its agricultural risks underwriting teams since 2006 to provide reinsurance solutions in the field of multiple
peril crop insurance, aquaculture insurance, forestry insurance and livestock insurance.

Structured Risk Transfer

To cope with the broader reinsurance buyers needs in transferring risk and to benefit from these changes by broadening
the SCOR's field of activity, SCOR employs a Global Head of Structured Risk Transfer who facilitates the knowledge
transfer of structured products and associated risks throughout the SCOR’s organisation.

(c) Business Solutions (facultatives)

The Business Solutions (facultatives) business covers all insurable risks during construction and operation of industrial
groups and service companies. It primarily consists of facultative reinsurance underwriting performed by specialised
teams organised in an international network around two main business segments, “Natural Resources” and “Industrial &
Commercial Risks” covering respectively: (i) onshore (main business sectors being oil and gas, refining and
petrochemicals, power generation, mining), offshore (exploration and production, offshore construction) and shipbuilding,
(2) manufacturing & heavy industries (automotive, pulp & paper, aeronautics / defence, high tech) and finance &
services (infrastructures, intellectual services, general contractors, distribution and trading) completed by two “Market
Units” responsible for facultative reinsurance for the Group's insurance company treaty clients and alternative solutions
for the transfer and financing of risks for the Business Solutions (facultative) clients, respectively. Business Solutions
(facultative) is aimed at professional buyers seeking global risk financing solutions. The risks shared with the ceding
and/or captive companies are high-value industrially or technically complex risks insured for Property and Casualty such
as Property Damage & Business Interruption, Construction All Risks, Erection All Risks, Comprehensive General
Liability, Product Liability or Professional Indemnity.

(d) Joint Venture and Partnerships

This activity is dedicated to coverage underwritten through Joint Ventures and Partnerships, and, as of today, through
Lloyd’s syndicates, GAUM (Global Aerospace Underwriting Managers Limited) and MDU (Medical Defence Union).

6.1.2.2 Life Reinsurance

Reinsurance for individuals, commonly known as Life Reinsurance, includes life, health and medical insurance and
personal insurance, such as accidents, disability, illness or incapacity.

The Life insurance business of SCOR Global Life is predominantly underwritten in the form of proportional treaties
(quota share or surplus basis or a combination of both) and less frequently excess of loss per person basis or
catastrophe excess of loss basis or stop loss basis.

The SCOR Gilobal Life portfolio is a traditional portfolio with more than 50% of mortality reinsurance business.

The main other classes of Life business currently underwritten are:

Financing

SCOR Global Life's reinsurance services can also enable its clients to finance their development (e.g. product launching
costs, portfolio acquisition). Thanks to its experience in prospective risk analysis, SCOR Global Life has the resources to
combine risk acceptance and the management of financial variations in order to provide its clients with tailor-made,
effective financing solutions over the medium or long term.

Disability

The purpose of Disability insurance is to mitigate the loss of income when the insured is totally or partially unable by
reason of sickness or accident to follow his occupation or any occupation for which he is suited.

Long-term Care

Long-term care (LTC) insurance covers policyholders unable to perform predefined activities of daily living, and as a
result, needs the constant assistance of another person on every occasion of daily life. The loss of autonomy is
permanent and irreversible. SCOR Global Life has been pioneering Long-term Care reinsurance solutions on the French
market for about twenty years and has acquired sound practical experience in dealing with problems related to
underwriting and managing risks. The two main private LTC insurance markets are the United States, representing over
six million insured lives and France which has established itself as the most dynamic market with over two million lives.
On the French market SCOR Global Life enjoys a far leading position, while in the US, it recently launched and
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enhanced care rider. At the forefront of industry development, SCOR Global Life is now expanding its geographical
scope in LTC by introducing it to several markets. It already enjoys strong positions in Korea and Israel.

Critical lliness

Critical lliness (Cl) insurance pays a lump sum benefit, to be used at discretion, if the insured person suffers a serious
condition and survives a defined period. The use and effectiveness of Cl covers varies considerably between countries.
SCOR Gilobal Life is a market leader in Critical lliness in the UK. It leverages experience and expertise from the UK to
cross-sell into selected markets, such as Taiwan, Korea and Sweden.

Health

Health represents a small proportion of SCOR Global Life’s portfolio. It is written predominantly in the Middle East with a
book inherited from Converium, and small volumes in markets such as France and Canada. The SCOR Global Life
approach is selective, with a careful market entry strategy.

Annuities

SCOR Global Life is present on the fixed annuity market in the US, as a reinsurer of IIC a member of the Group (IMSA
certificate). The products provide either the performance of an index (often the S&P 500) with a zero percent floor or a
fixed interest rate which are credited to the policyholder’s account value.

Personal Accident

Personal accident is a cover provided by SCOR Global Life. A main source of business is ReMark, a subsidiary of
SCOR, which provides direct distribution solutions to insurers, financial institutions and affinity partners. ReMark designs
and executes direct marketing programs.
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Principal markets

6.2.1 BREAKDOWN OF GROSS PREMIUMS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

In EUR million 2009 2008 2007 *

By business segment

Non-Life 3,261 51% 3,106 53% 2,329 49%
Life reinsurance 3,118 49% 2,701 A47% 2,432 51%

5,807 100%

By business sub-segment

Non-Life &

Treaties 1,724 53% 1,612 52% 1,260 54.10%
Business Solutions (facultative) 405 12% 408 13% 361 15.50%
Specialty Treaties 708 22% 684 22% 514 22.07%
Joint Ventures & Partnerships 424 13% 402 13% 194 8.33%

TOTAL NON-LIFE 3,106 100%

Life reinsurance

Life 1,408 45% 1,405 52% 1,313 54%
Financing 531 17% 486 18% 535 22%
Critical illness 119 4% 81 3% 97 4%
Disability 223 7% 189 7% 170 7%
Long term care 132 4% 108 4% 73 3%
Annuities 414 13% 108 4% 73 3%
Health 245 8% 189 7% 73 3%
Personal accident 46 2% 135 5% 97 4%
TOTAL LIFE 3,118 100% 2,701 100% 2,432 100%

(*) Published turnover, i.e., including Converium, prorated beginning on 8 August 2007
(**) According to the new organisation of the SCOR Global P&C division

6.2.2 DISTRIBUTION BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The following table shows the breakdown by gross volume of Life and Non-Life premiums written by geographic area
based on the country in which the ceding company operates:
Total Life Non-Life

In EUR million 2008 2007* 2009 2008 2007* 2009 2008 2007*
Europe 3,551 3,510 2,940 1,656 1,667 1,571 1,895 1,843 1,369
Americas 1,760 1,366 1,195 1,063 742 703 697 624 492
Asia-Pacific - Rest

of World 1,069 931 626 399 292 158 669 639 468
TOTAL 6,379 5,807 4,762 3,118 2,701 2,432 3,261 3,106 2,329

(*) Adjusted for the completion of the initial acquisition accounting of the Converium and ReMark acquisitions.

Extraordinary events influencing the principal
business and markets

Both in Life reinsurance and Non-Life reinsurance, the Group benefited from S&P’s decision on 13 March 2009 to
upgrade SCOR SE'’s and its core guaranteed subsidiaries long-term credit and insurer financial strength ratings to "A"
from "A-" with a stable outlook.

On 4 September 2009, A.M. Best raised SCOR SE’s and its rated subsidiaries rating outlook from “stable" to “positive".

According to A.M. Best the change in outlook reflects A.M. Best’s expectation that SCOR will continue to demonstrate
strong resilience to the impact of the financial crisis and global economic downturn, its sound enterprise risk
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management, and anticipated improvement in risk adjusted capitalisation supported by profitable growth in its main lines
of business.

On 4 September 2009, Standard & Poor's has raised SCOR’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) from “adequate” to
“strong". According to Standard & Poor’s the ERM ratings upgrade reflects the Group’s excellent risk management
culture, excellent emerging risk management, strong strategic risk management and strong or at least adequate risk
controls for the Group’s major risks.

6.3.1 NON LIFE REINSURANCE

After the completion of the Converium integration (acquisition finalised in August 2007), SCOR benefited from
strengthened portfolio base on all renewal campaigns throughout 2008 and 2009. The compatibility of policies and
underwriting and the complementarity of the portfolios have been proven as anticipated through renewals at the end of
2007.

6.3.2 LIFE REINSURANCE

The acquisition of XL Life Re in December 2009 allowed SCOR Global Life to further strengthen its franchise.
Furthermore, the acquisition of ESG Direct Marketing in Asia through ReMark, contributed to further enhance the SCOR
Global Life franchise.

Dependency of the issuer with respect to patents or
licenses, industrial, commercial or financial contracts
and new manufacturing processes

Please refer to Section 4.1.6 — We may be adversely affected if our cedants, retrocessionaires, insurers or members of
pools in which we participate do not respect their obligations, 4.1.10 - Operational risks, including human errors or
computer system failure, are inherent in our business, 4.2.1 — We face risks related to our fixed income portfolio, 4.2.2 —
We face risks related to our equity-based portfolio, 4.1.9 — A significant portion of our contracts contains provisions
relating to financial strength which could have an adverse effect on our portfolio of contracts and our financial position,
4.3 — Liquidity risks, 4.5 — Insurance of specific operational risks (excluding reinsurance activity).

Information on SCOR’s competitive position

Among the major reinsurance groups, SCOR pertains to the “traditional” or “continental” reinsurers as opposed to the so-
called “Bermudan” model. The latter are characterised by the fact that they give priority to the underwriting of a type of
risk and/or a geographic region — generally highly volatile natural catastrophe risks and to the American region.
Conversely, SCOR is characterised by its strategic positioning aimed at underwriting risks so as to diversify exposure.
To this end, the Group seeks to preserve:

(i) The diversification of its business by maintaining a balanced business segment split between Life and Non-Life
reinsurance. The portfolio business volume split at the end of 2008 was approximately 49% for Life reinsurance and 51%
for Non-Life reinsurance.

(ii) The geographic diversification of its business by operating in a large number of countries, both mature and emerging,
and by maintaining its policy of positioning itself on strong-growth markets (opening of a representative office in India,
opening of a branch in China, applying for an extension of the Non-Life Re-takaful license in Malaysia; opening an office
in South Africa and establishing an underwriting presence in Australia, operating as admitted reinsurer in Brazil following
the deregulation of the market, opening a Life branch office in the Netherlands);

(iii) The diversification of underwritten risks (product lines): longevity, mortality, dependence, major illnesses in Life
reinsurance; Property & Casualty (P&C) Treaties, Specialty treaties and facultative, large corporate Facultative risks and
Joint Ventures and Partnerships in Non-Life reinsurance. In this respect, the Converium acquisition is a significant
additional diversification factor by enlarging the Non-Life offer and portfolio of the Group to specialty lines of business in
which the Group was not or barely not offering.

The SCOR Group as a whole is the world’s 5th largest reinsurer as ranked by “S&P Global Reinsurance Highlights
2009.” With the acquisition of Converium, the Group reached a new scale of operations, as one of the most diversified
in its peer group, combining balance between its Life and Non-Life activities and the overall geographic distribution of
risks
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6.5.1 NON LIFE REINSURANCE

On 11 February 2009, SCOR recorded strong 2009 Non-Life renewals and optimised its portfolio with a view to greater
profitability and predictability by maintaining an extremely strict policy on profitable technical underwriting. The annual
negotiations with its clients enabled SCOR to optimise its portfolio and pursue diversification, whilst ensuring that its
capital was allocated as profitably as possible, thereby demonstrating the Group’s strength and confirming the success
of the combination of the SCOR and Converium portfolios that was achieved in 2008. These renewals results
demonstrate once more the anti-cyclical nature of the reinsurance industry in difficult economic and financial
environments.

In the Non-Life business, the relative importance of SCOR’s Specialty Treaties activities and its historic positions in
developing economies and emerging markets, give the Group a solid background for pursuing a profitable expansion,
despite modest growth in reinsurable matters and reinsurance premiums on mature markets.

The highlights of 2009 January renewals were as follows:
B Start of a general hardening in reinsurance with better prices and conditions, Group exposure staying stable.

B Following a policy of increased profitability, SCOR recorded a 3% rise in business volume to EUR 1,708 million of
Non-Life treaty business renewed against EUR 1,653 million up for renewal at constant exchange rates.

B Reaffirmation of the strength and depth of SCOR'’s business franchise, with minimal cedant attrition of 1%.
In a post-acquisition environment, the main underlying reasons for the successful renewals were:
B Enhancement of market position and extended leadership on reinsurance programmes.

B Active portfolio management with a stable business volume in P&C Treaties and changes to the portfolio composition
designed to provide greater profitability (shift towards more non-proportional business and movements in the
geographical spread) and a selective growth mostly driven by new business in the lines of the Specialty Treaties.

B Strong franchise leveraging on Treaty P&C and Specialty Lines as demonstrated by the increase of 13% in Specialty
Treaties lines that benefited from the mobilisation of the SCOR network and improved terms and conditions.

B Strict underwriting discipline with 17% of total premiums up for renewal cancelled and successfully replaced by more
profitable new business from existing and new clients.

Strong April P&C renewals in the Asia Pacific region with prices up 4.1% (vs. 3.3% at 1 January) further demonstrated
SCOR’s capacity to benefit from improving reinsurance market conditions. 12% of all treaty business was up for renewal
and a 7% increase compared to 2008 was achieved thanks also to new opportunities that followed the S&P upgrade in
March.

Robust July P&C renewals underlined further the Group’s strong competitive position. With price increases of 5.9% and
premium increase of 20% at July renewals, SCOR Global P&C demonstrated again its capacity to benefit from positive
reinsurance market conditions, and to leverage from its improved competitive position.

6.5.2 LIFE REINSURANCE

SCOR Gilobal Life benefits from an established competitive position, strengthened by the acquisition in 2006 of Revios
and in 2007 of Converium. Thanks to these two transactions, SCOR Global Life assured its strong presence in leading
markets such as France, ltaly, Spain and Portugal, and strengthened the position in Germany, Scandinavia and the
United Kingdom.

In October 2009, a Life branch office is established in the Netherlands to further strengthen its presence and position in
the market and fully seize business opportunities. The Dutch insurance market is currently representing EUR 76 billion in
premium income, of which EUR 26 billion comes from Life insurance.

In the Eastern European countries, SCOR further supported clients’ developments throughout 2008, with a local
presence in Russia and by introducing new products such as Disability and Long-Term Care covers.

In the Americas SCOR Global Life has further strengthened its position in the U.S. mortality business and also has a
seasoned portfolio of Fixed and Indexed-Linked Annuities. SCOR Global Life has been expanding in Canada, at an
average 10% growth over the last few years. In South America, SCOR Global Life is continuously building on its long-
lasting local presence in key markets such as Chile, Peru and Mexico. With the opening of the Brazilian reinsurance
market early in 2008, SCOR Global Life has established a local team in Sao Paulo as an authorised reinsurer offering its
expertise and services to this growing market. Furthermore, SCOR Global Life is expanding its distribution platforms to
gain share in middle-sized markets across the Americas, ReMark supporting the implementation of this strategy.
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In Asia, SCOR Global Life showed notable developments and reinforced its market positions. The Group established a
partnership with China Life Re, and sizeably grew its reinsurance revenue in this market. SCOR Global Life is building
on its strong and long-standing presence in Asia with a network of seven offices. Robust growth has been achieved,
through product innovation for the region, e.g. Long-Term Care, non selective whole life, preferred individual life, and by
the close cooperation with ReMark. With the completion of the acquisition of ESG Direct Marketing, ReMark further
strengthens its position as a world-leading provider of direct insurance distribution solutions in Malaysia, Thailand,
Indonesia, Hong Kong and China.

SCOR Global Life’s network of offices has increased with the opening of various entities in the world. SCOR SE has
been granted a licence to conduct Life and Non-Life operations in South Africa. SCOR Africa Limited, located in
Johannesburg thus became a subsidiary and covers Africa’s English and Portuguese speaking markets as well as
Mauritius.

SCOR Gilobal Life offers its clients full product and actuarial support, backed by advanced research centres. Its market
development can build on four research centres. In 2008 the international Research and Development centre for
Selection and Claims was launched, which adds to the Longevity and Mortality centres, the Long-Term Care centres and
the Disability, Critical lliness and Unemployment centres.

Furthermore SCOR Gilobal Life officially launched SCOR Telemed, a dedicated tele-underwriting company, in November

2009. The company uses the latest IT software to conduct tele-interviews and has a specialised automated underwriting
system to deal with cases ranging from the standard to the most complicated ones.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The main operational entities of the Group are presented in the chart below:
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Brief description of the Group and of the position of
the issuer

7.1.1 GROUP OPERATING COMPANIES

SCOR SE is the Group company which stock is listed on the Euronext Paris regulated market.

The Group is a twin engine group driven by SCOR Global Life SE and SCOR Global P&C SE. Mobilisation of skills and
expertise, a balance among teams from different entities of the Group, operating efficiency, simplicity of structures, and
clarity of reporting lines were the principles that guided the Group's organisational choices.

The Group’s Non-Life reinsurance activities are coordinated by SCOR Global P&C SE. SCOR Global P&C SE carries
out its operations via the European and American subsidiaries and through its branches in Germany, in Italy, in Spain, in
Australia and in China, each of them operating primarily in its regional or national market. The Group’s Swiss and
American Non-Life reinsurance subsidiaries, the shares of which are totally or partially held by SCOR SE, report to
SCOR Global P&C SE for their operations.

The Group’s Life, accident, disability, health, unemployment, and long-term care operations are conducted by SCOR
Global Life SE (formerly SCOR VIE). SCOR Global Life SE carries out its operations through its branches in Germany,
Italy, Spain, and Canada, and through SCOR Global Life U.S. Re Insurance Company in the U.S., SCOR
Ruckversicherung (Deutschland) in Germany, SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz in Switzerland and SCOR
Global Life Reinsurance Ireland in Ireland.

SCOR Gilobal Life SE is organised around four operating units with geographic responsibilities, based in France (Paris),
Germany (Cologne), the United States (Texas, Florida and Delaware) and the UK (London). Each of these operating
structures exercises its authority within a territory that may exceed its local market. Accordingly, the French unit controls
underwriting in the Benelux countries, Southern Europe and Asia. The cross functions cover (i) actuarial technical
functions, research and development and risk selection, (ii) risk management, and (iii) financial and accounting
functions.

The corporate functions of SCOR Global Life SE, SCOR Global P&C SE and of the Group in Paris define the
underwriting policies and monitor its standard application, control the changes in natural catastrophe risk accumulation
and control claims.

The Group’s subsidiaries and offices are connected through a backbone network, applications and data exchange
platforms, which allow local access to centralised risk analysis, underwriting or pricing databases and also give access
to information on local market conditions, to be shared among the Group’s subsidiaries and offices. In addition, through
regular exchanges of personnel between the Group’s head offices in Paris and its non-French subsidiaries and branch
offices, the Group encourages professional development and training across its various geographic markets and
business lines.

On 29 October 2008, SCOR announced the creation of SCOR Global Investments SE, which is contemplated to
manage, directly or indirectly, the global investment portfolio of all the Group’s legal entities. SCOR Global Investments
SE has been approved by the AMF as a portfolio management company as from 15 May 2009.

SCOR SE wholly owns its operating subsidiaries (excluding the shares held by Directors). SCOR SE also makes loans
to its subsidiaries and issues them guaranties so that they can underwrite under favourable conditions, especially by
letting them benefit from its financial ratings. SCOR SE provides support in actuarial, accounting, legal, administrative,
systems, internal audit, investment, and human resources to Group subsidiaries. Finally, SCOR SE acts, as needed, as
retrocessionaire for its two operational subsidiaries through quota share treaties renewed annually which form the
instrument for internal control within the Group through the annual allocation of capital to the operating subsidiaries
based on the profitability expected from their underwriting. The contracts that formalise the relationships between SCOR
SE and its subsidiaries are presented in:

B Section 19 — Related Party Transactions, and in
B Appendix A — Notes to the Financial Statements — Note 4: Transactions with subsidiaries and affiliates.
7.1.1.1 The Group’s restructuring

The Group launched and completed several major restructuring projects in 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009. This
reorganisation was made in order to simplify the legal structure of the Group and clearly differentiate between the
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operations of subsidiaries that are dedicated respectively to Life reinsurance and Non-Life reinsurance, with a view
towards optimal annual allocation of capital between the operations.

7.1.1.2 New SCOR

In connection with the implementation of the New SCOR project, which was announced in June 2005, SCOR
transferred, by way of spin-off, all of its Non-Life reinsurance business in Europe, including Property & Casualty Treaties
(Specialty Treaties, Business Solutions (facultative)) and Major Corporate Accounts to Société Putéolienne de
Participations (the corporate name of which was changed to SCOR Global P&C), a French subsidiary wholly owned by
SCOR. This contribution was approved on 16 May 2006, by the Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company,
effective retroactively on 1 January 2006.

In connection with the second phase of the New SCOR project, SCOR announced on 4 July 2006, the conversion of
SCOR into a Societas Europaea and the formation of a Societas Europaea at the level of SCOR Global P&C, through
the merger by absorption of SCOR Deutschland Riickversicherung AG and SCOR ltalia Riassicurazioni SpA by SCOR
Global P&C. At the same time, SCOR Vie became SCOR Global Life SE through the merger with SCOR Global Life
Rickversicherung AG (formerly Revios Riickversicherung AG) by SCOR VIE. SCOR SE so became the first publicly
traded French company to adopt the Societas Europaea form. Since the completion of the merger, SCOR Global P&C
SE conducts its operations in Italy, in Spain, in Switzerland and in Germany through its branches, as SCOR Global Life
SE does. SCOR Global P&C SE has been the first company in Europe to complete a tripartite merger involving three
different jurisdictions in the formation of a Societas Europaea.

The adoption of the European Company statute by SCOR SE, SCOR Global P&C SE and SCOR Global Life SE,
occurred respectively on 25 June, 3 August and 25 July 2007, the registration dates for each company as a Societas
Europaea with the Nanterre Trade and Company Register. This registration occurred after: (i) the completion of the
negotiations on the involvement of the employees in the various European companies, as stipulated by the legislation
governing a European company, with the special negotiation group (“SNG”) formed for this purpose in July 2006, and
representing the employees of the Group; an agreement on the involvement of the employees within SCOR SE and
SCOR Global P&C SE was signed with the SNG on 14 May 2007; and (ii) the approval by the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting of each of the companies of the adoption of the Societas Europaea statute.

The Societas Europaea statute enables SCOR to strengthen its European and transnational identity, facilitate
acquisitions in Europe, improve flexibility in financial matters and capital allocation, simplify regulatory controls by using
the possibilities offered by the Reinsurance Directive on the control of reinsurance companies, and reduce its local
structures, by giving preference to the use of branches, rather than local subsidiaries. The Group is thereby
demonstrating its ambition to be a company with European roots and global reach. This legal flexibility is today
demonstrated by the speed of the integration process for the European entities of Converium, which became SCOR
Holding (Switzerland), in SCOR’s European companies. SCOR Global Investments SE has also been incorporated as a
Societas Europaea.

7.1.1.3 Implementation of a real estate structure

On 18 July 2006, the Group announced that it had consolidated its real estate investments within a single real-estate
company, SCOR Auber, a wholly owned subsidiary of SCOR SE. This consolidation enables these investments to be
more dynamically managed, simplifies the legal structures of the Group’s real estate asset management, and reduces
the management expenses, related to these investments. As at the date of this Registration Document, SCOR Auber
holds 14 investment real estate properties, for offices purposes in their great majority, in Paris and in the lle-de-France
region (suburbs adjacent to Paris) , with a market value of approximately EUR 365 million as at 31 December 2009.

7.1.1.4 Reorganisation of the North American entities

On 8 September 2006, concurrently with the announcement of the upgrade of the rating of the Group’s companies by
AM Best, the Group announced a change in its Non-Life reinsurance structures in the United States. This change, which
was completed on 31 December 2006, is two-fold: first, SCOR Reinsurance Company acquired 100% of the capital of
GSINDA, a company specialising in underwriting “surplus lines”, with a primary insurance license in the United States
and, secondly, SCOR acquired GSNIC, an entity entirely dedicated to run-off, from SCOR Reinsurance Company (a
subsidiary indirectly wholly owned by SCOR). In this restructuring, SCOR contributed USD 80 million to SCOR
Reinsurance Company.

Following the acquisition of Revios by SCOR VIE on 21 November 2006, SCOR began restructuring the Life
Reinsurance entities of SCOR VIE (whose corporate name was changed to SCOR Global Life) in the United States, at
the same time as it merged the Revios and SCOR VIE offices in Asia and Europe. This restructuring was completed in
November 2007 for the North American activities of SCOR Global Life, now regrouped in Dallas (Texas), in Delaware
and in Florida, and Montreal (Canada).

In 2009, three Group Non-Life run-off companies based in the Americas — namely GSNIC, Commercial Risk Partners Ltd
and Commercial Risk Re-Insurance Company have been consolidated. The process required an amalgamation of
Commercial Risk Partners Ltd and Commercial Risk Re-Insurance Company with GSNIC. The assets, liabilities and
surplus of Commercial Risk Partners Ltd and Commercial Risk Re-Insurance Company have been added to GSNIC in
their entirety.
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7.1.1.5 Structuring in "hubs"

In 2008 and 2009, SCOR structured itself around six Hubs: Paris, Zurich, London and Cologne for Europe, Singapore for
Asia and New York for the Americas.

The new structure is based on the principle that each Hub has local, regional and global responsibilities.

The Group’s decision to opt for a “Hub" company structure follows the successful consolidation of Revios and
Converium.

The acquisition of Converium in August 2007 led the Group's companies to launch a significant restructuring effort, the
effects of which continued in 2008 and in 2009, including:

B the creation of a single structure for all the common support functions to the branches of the two operating companies
SCOR Global Life and SCOR Global P&C in Cologne, Germany, in the form of a SCOR services branch;

B the creation of a SCOR services branch in London, in May 2008, which combines the personnel of SCOR Global Life
and SCOR Global P&C based in London, branches of the Life and Non-Life reinsurance and direct insurance
companies, the latter being subsidiaries of SCOR Global P&C. The reinsurance entities will become branches of
SCOR Global P&C and of SCOR Global Life in the framework of the corporate form of Societas Europaea;

B the transfer of portfolios and the network rationalisation, in particular in Asia-Pacific and in Latin-America.

This structure has been implemented in Cologne on 5 May 2008, in London on 20 May 2008, in New York on 18 June
2008, in Singapore on 16 June 2008, in Zurich on 27 January 2009 and in Paris on 24 February 2009.

The current structure of the Group has been developed to facilitate access to local markets through a network of local
subsidiaries, branches, and sales offices, to provide better identification of profit centres in each major reinsurance
market, and to develop local management and underwriting expertise, in order to provide better customer service,
maintain relationships with ceding companies, and to obtain a deeper understanding of the specific features of local
risks.
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List of Issuer’s significant subsidiaries

Refer to: Section 7 - Organisational structure chart;

Appendix A — Notes to the Corporate Financial Statements — Note 2.3: Subsidiaries and Affiliates;
Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 25: Related party transactions;
Section 25 — Information on Holdings;

Section 7.1.1 — Group operating companies as concerns the role of SCOR towards its subsidiaries;

Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 3: Acquisitions as concerns the financial
equation of the acquisitions of entities in 2009;

Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 3: Acquisitions as concerns the share of the
entities acquired in 2009 income included in the Group’s consolidated income;

Section 14 — Administrative and management bodies as concerns the duties carried out in the subsidiaries by the
Managers of the issuer;

Section 7.1 — Brief description of the Group and of the position of the issuer as concerns the economic organisation
of the Group;

Section 19.3 — Special report of the Auditors on related party agreements and commitments with regards to the
financial flows between the issuer and its subsidiaries and their nature; and

Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 3: Acquisitions for a description of the
operations, of the relevant interim management balances and of the strategic economic assets of the main
subsidiaries.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Major existing or planned properties, plants and
equipment

SCOR is lessee of its head office which is located at 1, avenue Général de Gaulle, 92074 Paris La Défense (district of
Puteaux — 92800). The SCOR building, of more than 30,000 m? of office space, is held by Compagnie La Lucette since
2006., Neither the sale of the building from KanAm to Compagnie La Lucette in 2006, nor the recent acquisition of
Compagnie La Lucette by Icade, a French REIT, resulted in any change in the terms of the lease that had been signed
by SCOR and KanAm when the property was sold to KanAm in 2003. This lease was signed for a nine-year term and for
an annual rent reduced in 2010 to EUR 12.9 million as a result of the recent ICC index variation. Under this lease and in
addition to the usual guarantees, KanAm requested financial guarantees based on the financial rating of SCOR and the
term of the lease, the benefit of which was transferred to Compagnie La Lucette. For more information on these
guarantees, refer to Appendix A — Notes to the Corporate Financial Statements, Note 15 - Analysis of commitments
given and received. The Group leases space separate from its head office for the purpose of safeguarding its data
storage facilities in case of emergency.

The Group owns offices in Milan (ltaly), Singapore, and now in Madrid (Spain), where its local entities and subsidiaries
have their corporate offices, and the remainder of the space is leased to third parties as part of its investment
management business The Group leases office space for its other business locations. SCOR believes that the Group’s
offices are adequate for its current needs but, as a result of the integration of Revios and Converium, went on combining
under one roof its various local entities in each of the countries in which the Group is present. In 2009, London’s hub
activities have all been gathered in the 10 Lime Street building and the Group’s entities in Madrid moved into offices
purchased with this aim on the Paseo de Castellana. In 2009, SCOR also concluded a future of about 6,000 m2-building
which will be the Cologne hub head office at the end of 2011.

SCOR also holds property investments as part of its asset management related to its reinsurance operations. For more
information on the Group’s real estate investments, refer to Appendix A — Notes to the Corporate Financial Statements,
Notes 2.1 - Changes in investments and 2.2 - Schedule of investments, and Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, Note 5 — Tangible assets and real-estate investments.

Environmental issues that may affect the utilisation
of properties, plants and equipment

Refer to the environmental report in Appendix C.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial data of the SCOR Group is presented in Section 3 — Selected financial data and in Section 20.1 —
Historical financial information: consolidated financial statements. The commentary below is based on the financial data
presented in the aforementioned sections.

Refer also to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 1 — Accounting principles and
methods and Note 27 — Insurance and financial risks.

Financial position

The 2009 results and balance sheet strength demonstrate the effectiveness of SCOR’s strategy which relies on high
business and geographical diversification, focussing on traditional reinsurance activity with very limited exposure of
reinsurance liabilities to economic activity risks and no material off balance sheet exposure. For the January 2010
renewals, SCOR was well-positioned to benefit from its improved industry position to combine premium growth and an
improvement in expected technical profitability with an increase in premium rates (Refer to Section 12 — Trend
information).

SCOR benefited from upgrades to its financial ratings in 2009. Refer to Section 4.1.8. - Financial ratings play an
important role in our business, for a summary of the current financial strength ratings of the SCOR Group.

SCOR’s shareholders’ equity increased by 14% to EUR 4,065 million at 31 December 2009, before the impact of foreign
exchange rates and dividends. After dividend payments and the impact of changes in currency rates, shareholders’
equity increased from EUR 3,416 million at 31 December 2008 to EUR 3,901 million at 31 December 2009 (consolidated
shareholders’ equity was EUR 3,648 million at 31 December 2007).

For the year ended 31 December 2009, SCOR recorded foreign exchange rate translation adjustments to total
consolidated shareholders’ equity amounting to EUR (21) milion as compared to EUR (129) million and
EUR (185) million for the years ended 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In a challenging financial market environment, SCOR maintained its conservative asset management policy although
executing a prudent inflection program directed to improve the return of its invested assets whilst keeping a strong focus
on liquidity management. The Group’s short term liquidity position, which is well diversified across a limited number of
banks and placed primarily in government securities and short-term investments with maturity less than 12 months,
stands at EUR 1.7 billion at the end of 2009 down from EUR 3.7 billion at the end of 2008 (EUR 2 billion at
31 December 2007).

Positive operating cash flow amounted to EUR 851 million in 2009, with strong contributions from both Life and P&C
operations. Operating cash flows in 2008 of EUR 779 million included a settlement received of EUR 240 million relating
to an agreement reached with GROUPAMA regarding the definitive amount of a guarantee which was granted in the
context of the acquisition of SOREMA by SCOR in 2001. Operating cash flows in 2007 of EUR 611 million allowed the
Group to finance the cash component of the Converium Offer.

Net invested assets including cash and cash equivalents, amounted to EUR 20.0 billion at 31 December 2009 as
compared to EUR 18.8 billion and EUR 19.0 billion at 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Group has a leverage position of 14.6% at 31 December 2009, (10.9 % after consideration of the Océane
repayment occurring 1 January 2010), as compared to 18.7% at 31 December 2008, and has no current refinancing
needs. The Océane debt of EUR 184 million, excluding accrued interest and net of amounts converted to shares,
matured 1 January 2010. Refer to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial statements, Note 14 — Financial
debt.

Book value per share stands at EUR 21.80 at 31 December 2009 as compared to EUR 19.01 and EUR 20.11 at
31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively.

75



Operating results

This section includes comments on both the current year operating results as well as comparisons to prior years.
9.2.1 CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS
Gross written premium

Gross written premium for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to EUR 6,379 million, an increase of 9.8% as
compared to EUR 5,807 million for the same period in 2008. The overall increase in gross written premium of
EUR 572 million in 2009 is to due an increase for SCOR Global P&C of EUR 156 million and EUR 416 million for SCOR
Global Life.

Gross written premium in 2008 were EUR 5,807 million as compared to EUR 4,762 in 2007. The overall increase in
gross written premium of EUR 1,045 million in 2008 is to due an increase for SCOR Global P&C of EUR 776 million and
EUR 269 million for SCOR Global Life.

Net earned premium

Net earned premium for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to EUR 5,764 million as compared to
EUR 5,281 million and EUR 4,331 million for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively. The overall
increase in net earned premium of EUR 483 million from 2008 to 2009 is consistent with the increase in written
premiums. The net earned premium in 2008 included for the first time the full year impact of the ex-Converium Group,
acquired on 8 August 2007.

Investment income

Investment income for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to EUR 503 million as compared to
EUR 467 million and EUR 727 million for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The financial market turmoil affected the performance of SCOR’s investment portfolio. The Group had average
investments of EUR 19.4 billion in 2009 as compared to EUR 18.8 billion in 2008. The investment yield in 2009 on
average assets was 2.4% compared to 2.3% in 2008. The return on net invested assets excluding funds withheld by
ceding companies was 2.7% and 2.1% in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Of this ratio, net capital gains and losses on
investments, net of write-downs was 1.5% in 2009 as compared to 0.7% in 2008. The adverse developments in the
financial markets in 2009 led to impairments of EUR (247) million (2008: EUR (283) million). Net revenues of EUR 19
million (2008: EUR (45) million) were recorded from investments recorded fair value through income. SCOR did not
change its accounting policy to take advantage of the IASB revisions to IAS 39 in the final quarter of 2008.

Gross benefits and claims paid

Gross benefits and claims paid were EUR (4,674) million EUR (4,101) million and EUR (4,035) million in 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Net results of retrocession

The net results of the Group’s retrocession programs were EUR (136) million EUR (140) million and EUR (169) million in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

However, the impact of alternative retrocession coverage, Atlas V, Atlas VI (SCOR Global P&C) and the mortality swaps
(SCOR Gilobal Life) are not included in the net cost of retrocession as the products are accounted for as derivatives.
The total expense recorded in 2009 relating to Atlas V and Atlas VI amounted to EUR 16.7 million, excluding one time
issuance costs totalling EUR 4.6 million included as financing expenses. The 2009 expense relating to the mortality
swaps and included in investment income amounted to EUR 5.5 million.

Expenses

The Group cost ratio, calculated as the total of all management expenses less certain non controllable expenses (e.g.
bad debts), one time expenses (e.g. Highfields litigation in 2009) and amortisation, divided by gross written premium,
reduced from 6.0% at 31 December 2008 to 5.5% for the year ended 31 December 2009 due to increased productivity
on overall stable management expenses. The total expense base for the years ended 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2008 respectively was EUR 389 million and EUR 374 million.
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Operating income

Operating income for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to EUR 372 million as compared to EUR 348 million
in 2008. The 2009 operating income has been positively affected by the provision of liquidity to the Group’s outstanding
subordinated debts through the acquisition of a total of EUR 99 million at an average price of 46.5% to par value (mostly
in the first half of 2009). At the same time, 2009 was affected by impairments of EUR (247) million (2008:
EUR (283) million), mainly in the first half of 2009, only partially offset by higher realised investment gains of
EUR 177 million (2008: EUR 87 million).

The decrease in operating income from EUR 576 million in 2007 to EUR 348 million 2008 is due to impairments of equity
and fixed income securities.

Net income

SCOR generated net income of EUR 370 million in 2009, compared to EUR 315 million and EUR 407 million for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, despite a challenging financial market environment. The results benefited
from a positive operating performance of SCOR Global P&C and SCOR Global Life as well as from a prudent asset
management policy which safeguarded shareholders’ interests during the crisis whilst delivering solid returns.

The successful turnaround of SCOR Global P&C’s US operations leads to the reactivation of EUR 100 million in deferred
tax assets in 2009.

Return on equity was 10.2%, 9.0% and 14.0% for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007 respectively.
Basic earnings per share were EUR 2.06, EUR 1.76 and EUR 2.79 for the same three periods, respectively.

9.2.2 SCOR GLOBAL P&C

SCOR Global P&C is a leading P&C reinsurer with a focus on European markets and a strong position in Latin America,
the Asian markets and the Middle East.

The business comprises traditional reinsurance business; Treaty, Business Solutions, and Specialty Lines. SCOR
Global P&C capitalises on a long-standing franchise, experience, and an extensive data base comprising multi-line
expertise.

SCOR Global P&C achieved successful 2009 renewals, continuing its focus on profitability, portfolio management and
growth, in line with objectives which were successfully achieved throughout the year and across all targeted segments.

In 2008, SCOR Global P&C successfully integrated Ex-Converium operations, and successfully completed the renewals
throughout the year for P&C and Specialty Treaty business, with minimal attrition. In 2009, the P&C Division successfully
completed the integration of the Ex-Converium operations by transferring the reserves portfolio in order to align the
overall management of the activity with the current location of the underwriting.

Gross written premiums

The 2009 gross written premium of EUR 3,261 million represents an increase of 5.0 % compared with the 2008
published gross written premium of EUR 3,106 million. The increase in premium was primarily driven by strong January
and April renewals coupled with overall increases in prices, which demonstrates SCOR’s ability to benefit from improving
reinsurance market conditions.

In 2008, the gross premiums for SCOR Global P&C increased 33.3% compared with 2007 published gross written
premium of EUR 2,329 million due primarily to the inclusion of Converium within the 2008 consolidated financial results
for the entire year. In 2007, Converium was included in the consolidated results from 8 August, 2007, the date of
acquisition. The 2008 gross written premiums demonstrate the successful “post SCOR/Converium merger” renewals
campaign and strong complementary franchise of the merged portfolios. The gross premiums earned closely follow the
evolution of the gross written premiums.

Net combined ratio

The 96.8% net combined ratio in 2009 excludes non-recurring costs of the Highfields settlement and related legal
expenses (pre tax, EUR 12 million, net of expected recoveries), certain other expenses as disclosed in the 2008
Reference Document and the exceptional impact of the outcome of the arbitration with Allianz in respect of the World
Trade Center (EUR 39 million after tax). The 2009 net combined ratio, including the outcome of the World Trade Center
arbitration, is 98.8%. The decrease in the combined ratio from 98.6% in 2008 to 96.8% in 2009, after excluding the
impact of the World Trade Center arbitration, is due primarily to a 1.5% improvement in the catastrophe ratio from 6.6%
in 2008 to 5.1% in 2009 which is the result of less frequent and less severe catastrophes in 2009. The decrease also
reflects the active portfolio management and the benefit of a stronger competitive position both of which led to a slight
reduction in the attritional loss ratio.
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World Trade Center

The arbitration panel decided that Allianz had not exceeded its rights and obligations. SCOR and its retrocessionnaires
will assume, to the extent of their respective commitments, their share in the indemnification obligations relating to the
World Trade Center claim.

The additional costs resulting from the full coverage of two distinct events are estimated to EUR 39 million after tax and
retrocession. This brings closure to a legacy matter which originated in 2001.

Impact of natural catastrophes
The following table highlights losses due to catastrophes for the years 2009, 2008, and 2007:

At 31 December

2009 2008 2007
Number of catastrophes
occurred during the
financial year! 11 10® 2@

In EUR million

Losses and claim

management expenses due

to catastrophes, gross 153 214 53

Losses due to
catastrophes, net of

retrocession 153 189 53
Group net loss ratio6F“ 68.0%"" 70.5% 68.0%
Group ratio of losses

excluding catastrophes 62.9%" 63.9% 65.5%

(1) SCOR defines a catastrophe as an event involving several risks and causing pre-tax losses, net of retrocession, totalling EUR 3 million or
more.

(2) Storms Kyrill and Gonu

(3) Storm Emma, China Snowstorm, Australian Floods, China Earthquake, Maiunwetter Storm Germany, Indiana and lowa Floods, Hurricanes lke
and Gustav, and Hail Storm Spain.

(4) Loss ratios are calculated on the basis of Non-Life claims, expressed as a percentage of Non-Life premiums earned.

(5) Net of recoveries and reinstatement premiums (assumed and retrocession) and immaterial development on prior year

(6) Wind storm Klaus, earthquake in Costa Rica, forest fire in Australia, earthquake in Aquila, Italy, hailstorm Felix, Eastern European floods,
earthquake in South Africa, hail storm in Austria and Switzerland, typhoon Morakot in Taiwan, floods in Turkey and earthquake in Japan

(7) Excluding exceptional impact of the arbitration results with Allianz relating to the World Trade Center

In 2009, SCOR was affected by the following catastrophes which resulted in estimated losses greater than
EUR 10 million as at 31 December 2009:

B Wind storm Klaus (January 2009) in Europe and particularly in France; The original cost of the claim, net of
retrocession and reinstatement premium amounted to EUR 62.3 million

B Hail storms (July 2009) in Switzerland and Austria for which the loss is estimated at EUR 23.3 million at 31 December
20009.

B The impact of other natural catastrophes (less than EUR 10 million) which occurred in 2009 amounted to
EUR 67.1 million at 31 December 2009.

B Additionally, in 2009, there was only one non natural catastrophe loss in excess of EUR 10 million. This was a
business solutions claim which resulted in an impact of EUR 18.1 million, gross and net of retrocession.

In 2008, SCOR was affected by the following catastrophes which resulted in estimated losses greater than
EUR 10 million as at 31 December 2008.

78



B Hurricane Ike hit the South East United States in September 2008. The original estimated loss net of retrocession and
reinstatement premiums was USD 95 million (EUR 62.2 million). As at 31 December 2008 the revised estimated
impact was USD 119 million (EUR 81.7 million). As at 31 December 2009, the revised impact is USD 120 million
(EUR 82.6 million).

B Heavy snowstorms affected China during February 2008 and as at 31 December 2008 the estimated loss is
EUR 26.2 million. The revised estimated loss at 31 December 2009 is EUR 24.9 million.

B Australian floods occurred in January and February 2008. As at 31 December 2008 the estimated loss was
USD 40 million (EUR 26.1 million). The revised estimated loss at 31 December 2009 is USD 40.7 million (EUR 29.2
million).

B An earthquake occurred in China’s Sichuan province on 12 May 2008. As at 31 December 2008 the estimated loss
was EUR 10 million. The revised estimated loss at 31 December 2009 is EUR 2.9 million.

B The Maiunwetter Storm occurred in Germany in May 2008. As at 31 December 2008 the estimated loss was
EUR 12.5 million. The revised estimated loss at 31 December 2009 is EUR 14.1 million.

B The Indiana Floods occurred in the United States in June 2008. As at 31 December 2008 the estimated loss is EUR
10.3 million. The revised estimated loss at 31 December 2009 is EUR 13.1 million.

B The remaining impact, of other various less significant natural catastrophe losses (below EUR 10 million) which
occurred during 2008 is estimated at EUR 24.6 million as at 31 December 2008

B |n addition, other significant non catastrophe losses were incurred during 2008 which were assessed at 31 December
2008 as follows: for the Eurotunnel fire, for EUR 27.7million net of retrocession, and the Apache incident
EUR 14.4 million.

In 2007, SCOR recorded estimated losses greater than EUR 10 million. The largest losses were caused by Kyrill and
Gonu and exclude losses incurred by Converium prior to 8 August 2007, the date of acquisition. As at
31 December 2009, there have been no further material developments in these losses.

9.2.3 SCOR GLOBAL LIFE

SCOR Global Life offers a broad range of reinsurance for individual and Group life insurance, long-term care,
substandard risks, critical illness (United Kingdom and Asia) and financing products.

In a competitive life reinsurance market SCOR Global Life kept on growing profitably in 2009. It successfully further
strengthened its long-term business relationships with existing clients, gained new business partners and additionally
improved its proposition in the mortality-protection field by reinforcing its position in the USA with the acquisition of XL
Re Life America. Operations in our core markets have again been overall successful. In Europe SCOR Global Life has
maintained its strong market position. In Asia, and the Middle East, SCOR Global Life has continued its outstanding
performance. These non-European markets accounted for a large proportion of the growth during 2009.

Gross written premiums

The gross written premium development is driven by the long-term nature of in-force life reinsurance business and new
business acquired in the reporting year. In 2009, SCOR Global Life’'s gross written premiums increased 15.4% to
EUR 3,118 million, compared to EUR 2,701 million in 2008 (EUR 2,432 million in 2007). This increase was primarily
achieved by a strong growth of Equity Indexed Annuity (EIA) in the U.S., new significant contracts in Europe, Middle
East and Asia and positive effects of the acquisition of Prévoyance Ré.

Life operating margin

Life operating margin during 2009 was 5.8% compared to 6.0% in 2008. In 2009, technical components of the operating
margin, driven by high share of European mortality business, remained strong, strengthened by positive effects in the
investment income. The operating margin was also enhanced by a recapture and novation transaction in critical iliness
and mortality business in UK and Ireland, and considerably influenced by the Equity Indexed Annuity business growth in
the U.S., which results in low margins while meeting internal profitability targets thanks to low capital needs. Excluding
the Equity Indexed Annuity business written in the U.S., the operating margin for 2009 is 6.9% compared to 5.9% in
2008.

9.2.4 RETROCESSION

In 2009, the Group successfully renewed its retrocession programs. Furthermore, SCOR reopened the market for
catastrophe bonds, setting new innovative standard with its USD 200 million cat cover closed early February 2009.
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Overall, the purchase of collateralised solutions (Atlas 1V, V, VI and the Mortality Swap), improves the credit exposure of
the Group vis a vis its retrocessionnaires.

In 2008 the Group renewed its retrocession program post acquisition of Converium in line with the strategy determined in
2007. The increased needs and potentially volatile retrocession market lead to continued diversification strategy as
evidenced by the Atlas Il and IV structures and the mortality swap. The 2009 retrocession coverage was implemented
at cost which was below initial budgeted amounts.

In 2007, the planned 2007 retrocession program was implemented in a retrocession market that had stabilised but still
considered expensive. The overall retrocession coverage costs were practically identical to those of 2006 which had
increase significantly following the hurricanes of 2005.

9.2.5 STRATEGY OR FACTORS OF GOVERNMENTAL, ECONOMIC, FISCAL, MONETARY OR POLITICAL
CHARACTER WHICH HAVE HAD OR COULD HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE SCOR
GROUP

Refer to Section 4.4.1 — We are exposed to risks related to legislative and regulatory changes and political, legislative,

regulatory or professional initiatives concerning the insurance and reinsurance sector, which could have adverse
consequences for our business and our sector.

Also refer to section 5.1.4.2 — Legal and applicable legislation.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital

Refer to Section 20.1.5 — Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, Note 13 — Information on share capital, shareholders’ equity and capital management.

Cash flow

Refer to Section 20.1.4. — Consolidated statements of cash flows and Section 20.1.6. - Notes to the consolidated
financial statements — Note 2 — Segment information for an analysis of principal cash flow statement items.

Borrowing conditions and financing structure

Refer to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial statements — Note 12 — Cash and cash equivalents for
information on the Group’s cash positions.

Refer to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial Statements — Note 14 - Financial debts for a description of
the financial debts of the Group.

Refer to Section 19 — Related party transactions and Section 22 — Material contracts for information on the major stand-
by letter of credit facilities of the Group.

Financial leverage

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s financial leverage was 14.6% as compared to 18.7% at 31 December 2008. This
ratio is calculated as the percentage of debt securities issued and subordinated debt to total shareholders’ equity. The
improvement in 2009 is due to the improvement in net income, net of dividends paid and other movements directly
recorded in shareholders’ equity. After the conversion and repayment of the OCEANE, the Group’s financial leverage is
now of 10.9%.

Refer to Section 20.1.6 — Notes to the consolidated financial Statements — Note 14 - Financial debts for a description of
the subordinated loans and bonds issued by SCOR, including any reimbursements and conversion that occurred during
the year.

The total liquidity of the Group of EUR 1.65 billion (comprised of cash and cash equivalents and short term investments)
and the low financial leverage ratio reflects the Group’s treasury and financing strategy to remain very liquid.

A EUR 0.2 billion OCEANE has come to maturity on 4th of January 2010.

8% of the OCEANE has been converted and 92% repaid on due date.

Restrictions on the use of capital

For information on regulatory restrictions on the use of capital, refer to Section 5.1.4.2. — Legal form and applicable
legislation.

On 26 June 2007, the Swiss Federal Office of Private Insurance (“FOPI”) (now known as Swiss Financial Market

Supervisory Authority FINMA) approved the indirect acquisition of more than 50% (and up to 100%) of the capital and
voting rights of Converium by SCOR. This authorisation was granted under the condition that all transactions having an
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impact on the solvency of Converium and any intra-Group transaction or any transaction affecting the capital resources
of Converium that exceed certain limits be submitted to the FOPI for approval. The reviewing of this disposal which
came to its term 2 years after the acquisition of Converium is currently being discussed with the FINMA.

In addition, the Group and its companies are subject to certain financial covenants (minimum net worth requirements

and maximum debt levels) under the terms of certain stand-by letter of credit agreements. Non respect of said covenants
might lead to an increase in the percentage of required collateralisation.

Sources of financing relating to the future
iInvestments by the company and to its property, plant
and equipment

As at the date of this Registration Document, no material investment is contemplated and the property, plants and
equipments described in Section 8.1 do not require additional financing.

Within the strict respect of the criteria defined by its strategic plan, SCOR is watchful to dispose of a large access to any
available and appropriate sources of financing in order to ensure the permanent display of its activities and strategy.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, PATENTS
AND LICENSES

Research and development activities

Biometric risks such as mortality, longevity, disability and long term care are at the centre of underwriting in life
insurance and reinsurance. Since these risks are subject to uncertain trends, SCOR Global Life closely monitors their
current developments in four Research & Development Centres. SCOR Global Life’s centres are:

B CERDALM (R&D Centre for Longevity and Mortality Insurance): providing support in pricing assumptions for new
products and mortality studies on life and annuity portfolios.

B CIRDAD (R&D Centre for Long-Term Care Insurance): providing support in the development of LTC products
(definitions, pricing, guidelines) and the monitoring of LTC portfolios.

B CERDI (R&D Centre for Disability and Critical lliness Insurance): dedicated to the analysis of disability and critical
illness risks, two complex risks due to the various and multiple definitions, cover types and socio-economic
environments.

B CREDISS (R&D Centre for Underwriting and Claims Management): evaluating the consequences for insurance of the
new medical advances for both known pathologies and most recent ones; advising clients in the pricing of
substandard risks.

The R&D Centres are part of SCOR Global Life’s range of services: analyses and risk projections produced by the
Centres are used by SCOR Global Life’s teams to advise their clients on the design and follow-up of their life and health
insurance products.

The Centres provide input at the product development stage, giving advice on the definition, the underwriting standards,
as well as on the pricing and reserving. They contribute to the risk follow-up by carrying out experience studies on
portfolio data and risk projections.

The R&D Centres report to the Chief Actuary of SCOR Global Life. They assist all countries, at the request of the local
teams in charge of business development and client relationships.

Development research helps the Group to understand better its environment and to take decisions. Therefore SCOR
supports the research through:

B Geneva association, composed by insurers and reinsurers, which aims at supporting research related to risks in
insurance and reinsurance environment;

B Education via Master 218 of Paris Dauphine and new MBA of ENASS

B Superior Institut of Reinsurance
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SCOR is also a member of two conventions with the following partners:

B Risk Fondation, in collaboration with the universities of Toulouse and Paris Dauphine, is dedicated to risks market
and value creation. For SCOR, it implies a cost of EUR 2.3 million allocated on 5 years.

B Finance convention, in cooperation with Jean-Jacques Laffont foundation based in Toulouse, deals with risk
management, long term investment, company governance and asset management strategy. For SCOR, the cost is
EUR 1.5 million divided into five payments of EUR 300,000.

Information technologies

SCOR was the first reinsurer to implement a uniform international information system. This policy has more than ever
been reaffirmed when decided, after our two last acquisitions, to launch a comprehensive integration program over two
years, for the reinsurance back-office applications in 2008, and for the front-office ones in 2009. The objective is a rapid
return to a single global system. Besides reinsurance, the accounting consolidation is entirely done in SAP Magnitude as
from 2008, and the general ledger harmonisation in SAP is one of our main projects. This systems integration implies the
parallel adoption by all business teams of common rules for administration, accounting and result analysis in
reinsurance. A training and change management program has already been started for this purpose.

Its central back-office system is a custom software package known as Omega. Omega was designed to allow the
tracking of clients and policyholders within the Group, grant online authorisations throughout the world, track claims,
analyse the technical profitability of contracts, and perform quarterly closings based on the latest estimated results. In
2009, the Omega database has reflected the new organisation of SCOR Global P&C worldwide portfolio. The same
operation is ongoing for the SCOR Global Life portfolio.

The focus in 2009 has mainly been to strengthening the front office applications to improve risk selection, anticipation
and reactivity in markets and products, and simulations of results. A lot of projects have already been started these last
years, and the objective will be reinforced over the two years coming. The monitoring system is modernising and
expanding in order to strengthen visibility on the development of product lines and markets. Accounting forecasts are
developed from underwriting plans and comparative analysis is produced in standard reports. All the components of this
planning system are progressively integrated in the market software solution SAP BPC, expenses and P&C planning
have already been, and Life reinsurance and corporate plan will follow in 2010. New reserving and financial modelling
tools are implemented. Non-Life pricing is closely managed using both Matrix and Mars tools, now feeding the same
single Infocentre reporting facility. They integrate pricing based on standardised models, profitability analysis and full
traceability of proportional and non-proportional business, on a fully global basis. Control of exposure to natural
catastrophes has also been improved by implementing a datawarehouse of all liabilities and accumulations, after
modelling with market solutions RMS, AIR and EQECAT. In the Life business, several projects have been finalised,
especially for accumulation identification and calculation of retrocession. Others are underway for harmonising and
reinforcing substandard risks underwriting, and calculating embedded value. Finally, the SCOR Group works for
extending and industrialising its Asset and Liability Management (ALM) tool. The first module for P&C risks modelling is
now in place, and the same is ongoing for Life.

The importance that SCOR places on risk control and on strategic planning has clearly been confirmed.

Since the last two years, SCOR has also launched a number of projects for asset management, with the implementation
of the market software package SimCorp Dimension. After Paris accounting, in IFRS and French GAAP, the solution
worldwide extension to all entities has been started in 2009 and will be completed in 2010. Already, the centralisation of
all investments portfolios of the Group, is now performed in SimCorp Dimension. This same solution is being deployed
for front-office functions in parallel.

The Group is promoting a paperless environment. Internally, global document-sharing procedures have been set up for
the P&C activity, before planned extension to Life. With its clients, the Group is able to process automatically
reinsurance accounts and claims received electronically in the ACORD standards, without having to re-input them.

The SCOR technical environment is based on a new international secured network. Corporate technical standards have
been implemented in all locations, both on PCs and servers. The Group has also implemented an ambitious security
plan based on stronger physical and logic access controls, protection against unauthorised access, and restarts in the
event of a disaster. Tests of disaster recovery have again been conducted in 2009, including a live exercise simulating a
confinement of populations, which could potentially occur in case of a pandemic for example.

The SCOR IT is playing a key role in implementing the “Green SCOR” policy decided by the Group, and drives a number
of actions in the frame of a multi-year plan, which includes especially datacenter consolidation, server virtualisation, PC
replacement by new low-energy machines, printing reduction, or the implementation of telepresence systems leading to
less travels.

Mobility is covered by ongoing developments in line with changing business needs more and more demanding a
permanent connexion with the company, and in compliance with security standards.
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The combination of the IT operations of SCOR, Revios and Converium has generated the definition of an extensive
action plan at the level of the information systems governance, already materialised in 2008, by evolutions in the areas
of budget preparation, of project portfolio and project follow-up, of technical standards, and of first elements of the IT
internal control, complemented with change management processing rules in 2009.

Information-sharing remains a priority. The portal, collaborative sites, and the use of the external information collected by
SCORWatch, the Group's Competitive Intelligence solution, have been extended to the entire Group.

Finally, the study of SCOR's IT strategy for 2013, aligned with the Group's growth objectives, is already largely known,
and will be completed mid-2010, to prepare for a medium-term transition to a new information system.

Additionally SCOR uses its expertise to develop expert IT solutions for its clients (including in the field of medical
selection). Different solutions (sar@, GEM, scout) are already in place and widely used by ceding companies. Other
initiatives are engaged in this field in order to reinforce the alignment of our services with market expectations.
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TREND INFORMATION

Most significant trends in production, sales,
inventory, costs, and selling prices since the end of the
last financial year

12.1.1 NON-LIFE

The January 2010 renewal results are a further demonstration that SCOR executes its strategy.

SCOR reaps the benefits of its focus on technical profitability and its improved position in the reinsurance industry,
combining premium growth and improved underwriting profitability with overall positive price changes, achieving further
diversification and ensuring that its capital is optimally deployed. In a generally balanced market, it has managed to
pursue active portfolio management, cancelling and more than adequately replacing contracts not meeting the required
profitability targets.

The key takeaways of this year’s renewals are as follows:

B 7% rise in business volume at constant exchange rates to EUR 1,787 million, while applying an underwriting policy
geared towards increased expected technical profitability;

B An actively continued portfolio management but at a lower rate of cancellation than last year, which is no surprise: 7%
of total premiums up for renewal cancelled and more than adequately replaced by increased shares and new
business showing better profitability expectancy, from existing and new clients;

B A positive weighted average price increase of 2% across the portfolio with non-proportional continuing to behave
better than proportional;

B Reaffirmation of the strength and depth of SCOR’s business franchise, with minimal cedant attrition of less than 1%
and increased shares and new business from existing and new clients.

12.1.1.1 Treaty P&C renewals

The total volume of premiums renewed at 1 January 2010 increases by 3% to EUR 1,315 million, against
EUR 1,275 million up for renewal (76% of Treaty P&C annual volume). Approximately 8% (EUR 106 million) of Treaty
P&C premiums up for renewal were cancelled, with a further 2% restructured, demonstrating our active policy of portfolio
management.

SCOR Global P&C has compensated for this with new business acquired from existing and new clients (EUR 66 million
and EUR 34 million respectively) and with increased shares on renewed business (EUR 38 million).

The positive price impact, notably on non-proportional business (slightly above 3%), leads to an increase in premium
volume of EUR 32 million.

(@) Geographic rebalancing of Treaty P&C portfolio towards the Americas and Asia-Pacific

SCOR records a stable business volume in the EMEA zone (Europe, Middle-East and Africa); with written premiums of
EUR 1,020 million compared to EUR 1,021 million in 2009. There are, however, significant differences between markets
due to local conditions and measures taken by SCOR to ensure that internal profitability targets are achieved.

In Germany and the UK, business declines by 14% and 29% to EUR 174 million and EUR 65 million respectively. The
main reasons for this shift are voluntary reductions in German Property and Motor Proportional business and in British
Motor Non-Proportional business, partly offset in Germany by some increases in Property Non-Proportional business.

In the Middle East and Africa, business volume increases by 19% to EUR 135 million, thanks to new developments in
the Middle East (e.g. Saudi Arabia) and in South Africa on short-tail business.
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Significant increases are also recorded in the Americas (+15%), concentrated in the US regional clients target segment.
Canada and Central America renew within an unchanged positive profitability environment, whilst a careful stance is
taken in the Caribbean and South American markets.

In Asia-Pacific, SCOR Global P&C experiences significant growth thanks to our re-established local presence in
Australia and new developments in Pakistan. Underwriting in China remains very selective. Bearing in mind that in this
region only around 27% of Treaty P&C premiums are up for renewal at 1 January 2010, since Japan, Korea and India
will renew their programmes on 1 April 2010, volume increases by 19% to EUR 67 million.

(b) Continued shift towards more non-proportional business in the Treaty P&C portfolio

Proportional reinsurance shows a slight increase from EUR 835 million to EUR 842 million, while non-proportional
increases more significantly from EUR 440 million to EUR 472 million. SCOR Global P&C reduces the volume of
proportional business in certain markets and lines (e.g. Germany Property and Motor), whilst increasing the non-
proportional business volume (e.g. Germany, France and Benelux), applying a disciplined underwriting policy in
accordance with its profitability objectives.

The natural catastrophe Property book, which represents around 15% of SCOR'’s total Treaty P&C volume, shows a
significant increase of 9%, rising from EUR 175 million in 2009 to EUR 192 million in 2010 thanks to a positive balance
between premium income growth in countries benefiting from a favourable pricing trend (such as France and Spain) and
a reduction in territories offering less attractive terms (e.g. the Caribbean & South America).

12.1.1.2 Specialty Treaty

SCOR’s franchise is once again fully affirmed and Specialty Treaty business has grown significantly, with premiums up
by 20% to EUR 472 million from EUR 394 million up for renewal (62% of annual volume). SCOR’s teams thoroughly
compensate for 4% or EUR 17 million of business cancelled, by writing EUR 34 million of additional business with
existing clients and EUR 11 million with new clients. New shares on existing programmes increase premium volume by
EUR 28 million. Improved prices and market conditions lead to an increase in premium income of EUR 7 million.

Continued selective growth in Specialty Treaty business, leveraging on franchise, network and global approach
synergies with Treaty P&C

SCOR exercises very active cycle management with regard to Specialty Treaty business, taking advantage of the
diversification benefits offered by this business segment.

Credit & Surety business grows strongly from EUR 105 million to EUR 135 million, representing an increase of 29%.
This segment is marked by double-digit price increases in Credit combined with a further reduction in acquisition costs.
With premiums written in 2010 amounting to EUR 102 million, Engineering records an increase of 23%, driven by
continued development in a stable pricing environment, albeit at a more challenging time in view of the worldwide
investment slowdown. Transport & Marine and Agriculture lines also record strong premium volume increases (+20%
and +18% respectively) to reach EUR 71 million each.

Aviation & Space Treaty business (excluding GAUM) benefits from better pricing, notably on proportional, and increases
its volume by 11% to EUR 29 million.

Business Solutions

In a competitive large corporate segment facing price reductions driven by over-capacity, following a year of very low
claims activity, Business Solutions maintains the volume of its business (EUR 123 million for the fourth quarter 2009 and
January 2010 renewals compared to EUR 120 million for the same period twelve months earlier).

12.1.2 LIFE

Unlike the Non-Life reinsurance market, the Life reinsurance market is not a sector characterised by annual renewals,
except for a few markets like Spain and business such as Health and Group contracts. Expansion and contraction take
place gradually and volatility is weak.

The financial crisis that began in 2008, which led to recession for developed economies, affected the Life insurance
markets in 2009 and will continue to weigh on business in 2010, presenting a number of different challenges to Life
reinsurance players such as SCOR.

In a context of serious global economic slowdown, with several major economies still in recession, some types of cover
could suffer, for example Unemployment cover and, to a certain extent, Health cover. The rise of unemployment,
business failures and falling consumer confidence are in fact all determining factors in the increase of disability claims.

The vast majority of our portfolio consists of pure death cover, exposed to mortality risk. Moreover, SCOR Global Life
does not currently underwrite variable annuities and exposure to unemployment risk is minimal. Consequently, our Life
portfolio is largely immunised against the undesirable effects of economic slowdown. In addition to this, SCOR’s prudent
investment policy has considerably reduced its exposure to the problems of the financial markets.
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The economic recession and the crisis in the real estate industry in most developed economies have weighed negatively
on mortgage Life insurance, particularly affecting the British, Spanish and, to a lesser extent, American markets.

Conversely, faced with the moribund economic situation, the demand for income protection has risen. Fixed annuities
should see sustainable growth and improved margins, due to the widening spreads in company bond remuneration.

On its European markets, SCOR has maintained its positions thanks to its range of services and its strong presence and
commercial activity.

In France, savings inflows in 2009 were up compared to 2008, reverting to 2007 levels, and loan repayment insurance
held out well against the crisis.

In Germany, unit-linked products fell, but the deferred annuities market expanded.

In the United Kingdom, the savings and mortgage market declined very sharply. However the protection insurance
market held up strongly.

The Asian markets, carried by growing economies, continued to display vigorous development in the principal savings
and loans segments. Moreover, the development of long-term care insurance indicates a good outlook.

Growth in the Middle Eastern markets was carried by Health insurance.
SCOR is watching the opportunities in the current market environment. Due to significant decreases in their investment
portfolios, insurers have seen a non-negligible deterioration in their solvency ratios. Faced with the financial markets,

reinsurance offers an attractive alternative to capital raising, which has led to an increased demand for financial
reinsurance solutions.

Known trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments and events reasonably likely to have a
material effect on the issuer’s prospects

Not applicable.
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PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

Not applicable.
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND  MANAGEMENT
BODIES

Information on the members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Managers

14.1.1 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

According to the bylaws, Board members must be physical persons. There shall be no fewer than 9 and no more than 18
Board members. Their maximum term in office shall be 6 years. However, SCOR having decided to adopt the Corporate
governance code of listed corporations of the AFEP-MEDEF of December 2008, the duties of the Directors are in fact
limited to 4 years. Directors may not hold office after the age of 72. If a Director in office should exceed this age, his term
will continue until the period established by the Shareholders' Meeting. The General Shareholders’ Meeting may, in
compliance with the provisions of the bylaws, appoint one to four Non-Voting Directors (Censeurs) to the Company.
Non-Voting Directors serve for renewable two-year terms. If there are fewer than four non-voting Directors, the Board of
Directors may appoint one or more non-voting Directors. The Directors and the Non-Voting Directors are proposed by
the Board of Directors and appointed by the Ordinary General Shareholder’'s Meeting. When Directors and Non-Voting
Directors are co-opted by the Board of Directors, their appointment is submitted for ratification to the next Ordinary
General Shareholder’'s Meeting. The age limit for performing the functions of a Non-Voting Director is set at 72 years old.
Non-Voting Directors are convened to meetings of the Board of Directors and participate in discussions in an advisory
capacity only.

The Board of Directors of the Company had the following 16 members as of the date of this Registration Document:
B Chairman: Denis Kessler

m Directors: Carlo Acutis, Gérard Andreck, Antonio Borges, Allan Chapin, Peter Eckert, Daniel Havis, Daniel Lebegue,
André Lévy-Lang, Médéric Prévoyance represented by Guillaume Sarkozy, Luc Rougé, Herbert Schimetschek, Jean-
Claude Seys, Claude Tendil, Daniel Valot;

B Non-Voting Director: Georges Chodron de Courcel.

The average age of members of the Board is 64 years.
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The table below shows the positions held by the Directors as of the date of this Registration Document.

Other offices and positions held in any company

in France and abroad as at the date of the Offices held during the last

Denis KESSLER @

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

Birth Date:

25 March 1952

Professional Address:

SCOR SE

1, avenue du Général de Gaulle
92800 Puteaux

Registration Document five years:
Offices and positions held in the Group Chairman of the Board:
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer SCOR Life Insurance
- SCOR SE (France)* Company (U.S.) (formerly
Chairman of the Board: Republic Vanguard Life
- SCOR Global P&C SE (France) Insurance Company).
- SCOR Global Life SE (France) Commercial Risk Partners

- SCOR Global Life U.S. Re Insurance Company  Limited (Bermuda)

u.s,) . Commercial Risk
- SCOR Reinsurance Company (U.S.) Reinsurance Company (U.S.)
- SCOR U.S. Corporation (U.S.)

- SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland) Cqmmercial Risk
- SCOR Global Life Re Insurance company of Texas Reinsurance Company

(US) Limited (US)

- SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz AG SCOR VIE (now known as
(Switzerland) SCOR Global Life SE)

- SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland) SCOR ltalia Riassicuriazioni
- SCOR Global Life Reinsurance Company of S.p.A (ltaly)

America (U.S.)

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
- SCOR Global Investments SE (France)

Member of the Supervisory

Board:
Director:
~SCOR SE (France) COGEDIM SAS (France)
- SCOR Global P&C SE (France) SCOR Deutschland
- SCOR Global Life SE (France) (Germany)
- SCOR Global Life U.S. Re Insurance Company SCOR Global Life
(U.S.) Rickversicherung AG
- SCOR Reinsurance Company (U.S.) (Germany)

- SCOR U.S. Corporation (U.S.)

- SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland) Permanent Representative:
- SCOR Global Life Re Insurance company of Texas

U.S) pany FERGASCOR in S.A.

- SCOR Canada Reinsurance Company (Canada) Communication et

- SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz AG  Participation

(Switzerland)

- SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)

- SCOR Global Life Reinsurance Company of

America (U.S.)

Member of the Supervisory Board:
- SCOR Global Investments SE (France)

Other offices and positions

Director:

- BNP Paribas S.A. (France)*

- Bolloré (France)*

- Dassault Aviation (France)*

- Invesco Ltd (U.S.)*

- Fonds Stratégique d’Investissement (France)

Non-Voting Director:
- FINANCIERE ACOFI SA (France)
- GIMAR FINANCE & CIE S.C.A (France)

Member of the Supervisory Board :
- Yam Invest N.V. (The Netherlands)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.
(2) Member of the Risk Committee
(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee
* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

Carlo ACUTIS @
Director

Birth Date:
17 October 1938

Professional address:

VITTORIA ASSICURAZIONI S.p.A.

Via Don Minzoni, 14
1-10121 Torino
Italy

the Registration Document five years:
Principal position: Erance
Vice-Chairman of Vittoria Assicurazioni S.p.A.
(Italy)* Director:
- SCORVIE

Other positions:

Member of the Supervisory

Abroad Board:
- COGEDIM S.A
Director:
- Yura International B.V. (formerly Yura Abroad:
International Holding B.V.) (The Netherlands)
- Pirelli & C. S.p.A. (ltaly)* Chairman:
- Ergo ltalia S.p.A. (ltaly) - BPC Investimenti SGR
- Ergo Assicurazioni S.p.A (ltaly) S.p.A. (ltaly)
- Ergo Previdenza S.p.A. (ltaly)* - Vittoria Capital N.V. (The
-IFI S.p.A. (Italy)* Netherlands)
- Association de Genéve (Switzerland)
Director:
Vice-Chairman: - Yura S.A. (The Netherlands)
- Banca Passadore S.p.A. (ltaly) - Camfin S.p.A. (ltaly)”
- Chairman's Council of the CEA Comité Européen
des Assurances, the European insurance and Member of the Board:

reinsurance federation (Belgium) - Presidential Council Comité
- Fondazione Piemontese per la ricerca sul cancro Européen des Assurances

(Italy) (Belgium)
- A.N.LLA. Associazione ltaliana fra le Imprese di - Geneva Association
Assicurazione (ltaly) (Switzerland)

Member of the Supervisory Board:
- Yam Invest N.V. (The Netherlands)

Member of the Strategic Committee:

- of the Comité Européen des Assurances (CEA)
(Belgium)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.
(2) Member of the Risk Committee
(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee
* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market

101



Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document five years:
Gérard ANDRECK @ Principal position: France
Director Chairman of the MACIF Group Chairman of the Board of
Directors
Birth Date: Other positions: - Macif-Mutualité
16 July 1944 France - Mutuelle Santé
Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Professional address: - SOCRAM Banque (B:ggirrdman of Supervisory
MACIF - MACIF SGAM )
17/21 place Etienne Pernet - MACIF -IN SERVIO

- Maurel & Prom*
- Capa Conseil SAS

75015 Paris - CEMM SAS

Chairman and CEO:

Chai .
- OF! Instit (ex OFI Net Epargne) airman

- OFI SMIDCAP
Chairman: ViceChat .
- GEMA ice-Chairman of the

Supervisory Board:

- OFIVALMO Gestion
Vice-Chairman:

- OFI Asset Management Permanent Representative

- IMA of MACIF:
- on the Board of Directors of
Member of the Committee: Domicours
- SIIL
- MACIFIMO Permanent Representative

of MACIF Participations:

. . - on the Board of Directors of
Permanent Representative of MACIF: Compagnie Immobiliére

- on the Board of Directors of Atlantis Seguros MACIF

(Spain)

- on the Board of Directors of Atlantis Vida (Spain) Chief Executive Officer:
- on the Board of Directors of Fonciére de Lutece _ MACIF

- on the Board of Directors of Euresa Holding

- on the Board of Directors of Compagnie
Fonciére de la MACIF

- on the Board of Directors of MACIF

- MACIF SGAM

Non-voting Director:

Participations - Fonciere de Lutéce
- on the Supervisory Board of Capa Conseil SAS - MACIFILIA
- on the Supervisory Board of MUTAVIE - MUTAVIE
- on the Board of GPIM - SOCRAM
- on the Board of OFI RES - Altima
Permanent Representative of OFI Instit: Member of the Supervisory
- on the Board of Directors of OFIMALLIANGE 202"
- OFIVALMO
Director: - GPIM .
- SEREN - MACIF Gestion
- Etablissements Maurel & Prom* - IMA
- MACIFILIA
Director:

- Macif-Mutualité
- Atlantis Seguros (Spain)

- Atlantis Vida (Spain)

- Compagnie Fonciére de la
MACIF

Member of the Executive Committee:
- SIEM
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Non-Voting Director: - MSACM

- OFI Trésor - MACIFIMO
- Altima - OFIVALMO

- MACIF Participations
Abroad - Caisse Centrale de
Member of the Supervisory Board Reassurance

- MACIF Zycie (Poland)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market

Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document five years:
Antonio BORGES W®@® Principal position: France
Director Chairman of the Hedge Fund Standards Board
Director:
Birth Date: Other positions: - SCOR VIE
18 November 1949
France: Member of the Supervisory
Professional address: Board :
%gg llz:oo: Street Director - CNP Assurances*
LondoﬁeEC4r,§e2EA - CNP Assurances* Abroad
United Kingdom E—
Abroad
- Member of the Tax
Committee:
Chairman: - Banco Santander de
- European Corporate Governance Institute Negocios (Portugal)
(Belgium)
Director:
Director: - SONEAcom (Portugal)

- Jérénimo Martins (Portugal)*
- Caixa Seguros (Brazil)
- Heidrick & Struggles (U.S.)*

Member of the Tax Committee:
- Banco Santander (Portugal)*

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

Allan CHAPIN @ ®
Director

Birth Date:
28 August 1941

Professional address:
COMPASS ADVISERS
Compass Advisers LLP

825 3rd Avenue, 32nd Floor
New York, NY 10022
United States of America

the Registration Document five years:
Principal position: France
- SCOR VIE
Partner of Compass Advisers LLP (New York,
USA) since June 2002 Abroad:
Other positions: Director:
- Interbrew SA (Belgium)
France - CALFP (U.K))

- SCOR U.S. Corporation;

- General Security Indemnity
Company (U.S.)

- General Security Property
and Casualty Company
(U.s.)

- InBev (Belgium)

Director:
- Pinault Printemps Redoute (PPR)
- French American Foundation

Abroad:

Chairman:

- American Friends of the Claude Pompidou
Foundation (U.S.)

Director:

- SCOR Reinsurance Company (U.S.)

- General Security National Insurance Company
- French-American Foundation (U.S.)

- CIFG Holding (Bermudes)

- CIFG Guaranty

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.
(2) Member of the Risk Committee
(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee
* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any company in
France and abroad as at the date of the Registration

Document

Offices held during the last five
years:

Peter ECKERT W ®
Director

Birth Date :
14 February 1945

Professional address
Clariden Leu AG
Bahnhofstrasse 32
8070 Zurich

Suisse

Principal position:

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque Clariden
Leu AG (Switzerland)

Other positions:
Vice-Chairman of the Board:

- SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)
- SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)

- SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz AG
(Switzerland)

Director:

- Deliciel AG (Switzerland)

- Zurich Vida, Companhia de Seguros SA (Portugal)
- SCOR UK Company Ltd (UK)

- SCOR Switzerland AG (Suisse)- SCOR Holding
(Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)

- SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz AG
(Switzerland)

Board member of the European advisory Board :
- Booz & Co (US)

Member of the Board:
- Fondation “Avenir Suisse” (Switzerland)

Chiarman:

- Farmers Group (US)

- Farmers New World Life (US)
- Zurich Compagnie
d’Assurances (Germany)

- Zurich Deutsche Herold
(Germany)

- Zurich Kosmos (Austria)

Vice-Chairman of the Board:

- Deutsche Bank (Suisse) AG
(Switzerland)

Vice-Chairman:
- FINMA (Switzerland)

Chief Operating Officer :

- Zurich Financial Services
(Switzerland)*

Director:

- Sal. Oppenheim (Schweiz) AG
(Switzerland)

- Zurich Vie (Switzerland)
- Zurich American Ins. Co. (US)

Member of the Management
Board:

- Zurich Financial Services
(Switzerland)*

Member of the Board:
- Economie Suisse (Switzerland)

Member:

- Banking Federal Commission
(Switzerland)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any company in
France and abroad as at the date of the Registration

Document

Offices held during the last five

Daniel HAVIS ® @
Director

Birth Date:
31 December 1955

Professional address:

MATMUT
66, rue de Sotteville
76100 ROUEN

Principal position:

Chairman — Chief Executive Officer of MATMUT (Mutuelle
Assurance des Travailleurs Mutualistes)

Other positions (France):

Insurance Code
- Vice-Chairman of SGAM SFEREN

Vice-Chairman:
- CEGES

Mutual Insurance Code
Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- MATMUT MUtualité

Vice-Chairman:
- FNMF Fédération Nationale de la Mutualité Francaise

Deputy Vice-Chairman:
- PREVADIES

Honorary Chairman:
- Union Nationale des Services Ambulatoires Mutualistes

Honorary Secretary General:
- MFSM (Mutualité Frangaise de Seine Maritime)

Director:

- Harmonie Mutuelles
- MFSM

- UTMIF (ex-FMP)

Other:

- Conseil Supérieur de la Mutualité (High Council on
Mutual Insurance): member of the “Approval” Committee
and member of the “General Affairs” Committee

Commercial Code

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
- MATMUT Assurances

- MATMUT VIE

- MATMUT Protection Juridique

- MATMUT ENTREPRISES

- IMA

Chairman:

- MATMUT DEVELOPPEMENT

- MATMUT IMMOBILIER

- MATMUT LOCATION VEHICULES

years:

Director:

- OFIVALMO

- SCOR Vie

- FNMI

- MTG XV

- OFIMALLIANCE
- MDA

General Secretary:
- MFSM

Chairman of the Board of
Directors:

- MUTRE

- MATMUT Assurances

- MATMUT Vie

- Matmut Protection Juridique
- MATMUT ENTREPRISES

- MTG XV

Chairman of the Supervisory
Board:

- OFIVALMO
- MUTRE and Vice-Chairman
- ADI

Chairman:
- GEMA

Vice-Chairman of the Board:
- MATMUT Vie

- AMF Assurances

- ADI

- MTG XV

Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board:

- OFIVALMO

Member of the Supervisory
Board:

- ADI

Permanent Representative of:

- SMAC to the Board of Directors
of OFIMA TRESOR

- MATMUT to the Supervisory
Board of OF| Palmares

- SMAC on the Board of Directors
of OFI Convertibles

- SMAC on the Board of Directors
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Other offices and positions held in any company in
France and abroad as at the date of the Registration

Offices held during the last five

Document
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- OFI Holding (ex OFI INSTIT)

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- OFI ASSET MANAGEMENT
- MutRé SA

Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
- AMF Assurances

Director:
- Equasanté

Permanent Representative of Ofi Asset Management
on the Board of Directors of:

- OFIMALLIANCE

Honorary Chairman:
- COOPTIMUT

Other:
- member of the GEMA

Others

- non-voting member at the Management Board of
EURESA

- Member of the Board of ICMIF
- Chairman of the Board of POLITAS

years:
of OFI SMIDCAP

- MATMUT on the Supervisory
Board of IMA

- MATMUT on the Supervisory
Committee of OFI RES

- OFIVALMO Gestion on the
Board of Directors of OFIVALMO
NET EPARGNE

Other:
- Vice-Chairman of CEGES

- Member of the staff of the
Fédération Nationale de la
Mutualité Interprofessionnelle
(FNMI)

- Chairman of the Comité
National des Réalisations
Sanitaires et Sociales

- Prévadies’representative to the
Conseil des Mutuelles Santé
(Council of Mutual Health
Insurance Companies)

Non-Voting Director:
- AMF Assurances

- ADI

- HANDIMUT

- MUTRé

- Mutations Normandie

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the  Offices held during the last

date of the Registration Document five years:
Daniel LEBEGUE @@ ® Principal position: Director:
Director Chairman of the Institut Francais des - Gaz de France* (France)
Administrateurs (IFA, French Society of - SCOR VIE (France)
Di F
Birth Date: irectors) (France) - SCOR Reinsurance Company
4 May 1943 o ((VESH)]
Other positions: - General Security National
. . Insurance Company (U.S.)
Professional address: Director: - Crédit Agricole S.A.* (France)

Institut Francgais des Administrateurs
7 rue Balzac
75382 Paris Cedex 08

- Technip * (France) - Alcatel Lucent* (France)

Chairman:

- Institut du Développement Durable et des
Relations Internationales (IDDRI)
(association) (France)

- Transparence-International France (France)

- Observatoire de la Responsabilité Sociétale
de I'Entreprise (ORSE) (France)

Co-Chairman:
- Eurofi (association) (France)

André LEVY-LANG W@ @ ® Principal position: France

Director
Associate Professor Emeritus at the University Director:

Birth Date: of Paris-Dauphine - SCOR VIE

26 November 1937 - AGF
France

Professional address: Chairman of the Supervisory Board: Abroad

SCOR SE - Les Echos SAS

1, avenue du Général de Gaulle Director:

92800 Puteaux Member of the Supervisory Board : - Schlumberger (U.S.)*
- Paris-Orléans - Dexia (Belgium) *

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the Offices held during the last

date of the Registration Document five years:

Médéric Prévoyance ®® Principal position: Chairman of the Management
Director Délégué général of Group Malakoff Médéric ~ Board:

(France) - Malakoff Médéric Assurances
Represented by: Other positions: SA (France)
Guillaume SARKOZY Chairman and CEO: , .

- Médéric Assurances SA (France) Director:
Birth Date: - Tissage de Picardie — Tissage Rinet SA - Banque d'Orsay SA (France)

F
18 June 1951 (France) _

Chairman: Member of the Supervisory
Professional address: - Holding FGA SAS (France) Board:

' - Holding Fondateurs SAS (France) - Federis Gestion d'Actifs SA

21 rue Laffitte
75317 Paris cedex 9

F
- Le Monde Prévoyance SAS (France) (France)

- Médéric Innovation SAS (France)

. . Permanent Representative:
Chairman of the Board of Directors: P

- of Médéric Prévoyance to the

- Méderic Epargne SA (France) Board of Directors of BPI SA
- Viamédis SA (France) (France)

Director:

- AUXIA SA (France) Manager:

- ADESLAS (Spain) - Investissements et gestion
Member of the Supervisory Board: Textile SARL (France)

- Société Editrice du Monde SA (France)

Manager:

- SCI Saint Léger (France)

Non voting Director:

- QUATREM SA (France)

- Fédéris Gestion d’actifs SA (France)
Member of the Supervisory Committee:
- Holding Fondateurs SAS (France)

- Holding Accueil Mutuelles SAS (France)
Permanent Representative:

- of Malakoff Médéric Assurances to the Board
of Directors of MMA IARD Assurances
Mutuelles SAM (France)

- of Malakoff Médéric Assurances to the Board
of Directors of MMA IARD SA (France)

- of Malakoff Médéric Assurances to the Board
of Directors of MMA VIE Assurances Mutuelles
SAM (France)

- of Malakoff Médéric Assurances to the Board
of Directors of MMA VIE SA (France)

- of Malakoff Médéric Assurances to the Board
of Directors of MMA Coopérations SA (France)
- of Médéric Prévoyance to the Board of
Directors of DAS SA (France)

- of Médéric Prévoyance to the Board of
Directors of DAS Assurances Mutuelles SAM
(France)

Member of the Executive Commission:

ADESLAS (Spain)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

Luc ROUGE
Director

Birth Date:
19 May 1952

Professional address:

SCOR SE

1, avenue du Général de Gaulle
92800 Puteaux

the Registration Document five years:

Principal position: None

- Assistant Methods and Procedures, SCOR
Global P&C SE

Herbert SCHIMETSCHEK @
Director

Birth Date:
5 January 1938

Professional address:
UNIQA Versicherungen AG
Untere Donaustrasse 21
A-1020 Vienna

Austria

Principal position: Erance
Chairman of the Management Board: Director:

- Austria Versicherungsverein auf Gegenseitigkeit - SCOR VIE
Privastiftung (Holding) (Austria)

Abroad
Other positions:
Abroad Chairman:

- Austrian National Bank
Business Manager: (Austria)

- UNIQA PraterstralRe Projekterrichtungs GmbH

(Austria) Chairman of the

Supervisory Board:

- UNIQA International
Versicherungs Holding GmbH
(Austria)

- DIE ERSTE &sterreichische
Sparkasse Privatstiftung,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board: Wien (Austria)

- Austria Hotels Liegenschaftsbesitz AG (Austria) - UNIQA Assurances S.A.
(Switzerland))

- UNIQA Previdenza S.p.A.
(ltaly)

- UNIQA Assicurazioni S.p.A.
(ltaly)

- UNIQA Protezione
S.p.A.(ltaly)

Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board:

- Bauholding STRABAG SE
(Austria)

- UNIQA Versicherungen AG
(Austria)*

Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
- Donau Chemie Aktiengesellschaft (Austria)
- Bank Gutmann AG (Austria)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.
(2) Member of the Risk Committee
(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee
* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document

five years:

Jean-Claude SEYS @@ ™
Director

Birth Date:
13 November 1938

Professional address:

MAAF ASSURANCES, MMA &
COVEA

7, place des 5 martyrs du Lycée
Buffon

75015 Paris

Principal position:

Vice-Chairman and Deputy Director of COVEA

(mutual insurance group company)

Other positions:
France

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- Fondation MAAF Assurances
- Savour Club SA (subsidiary of MAAF SA)

Director:
- MAAF Assurances (SA)

Deputy Director:

- MAAF Assurances (SAM)

- MMA Coopérations (SA)

- MMA IARD (SA)

- MMA IARD Assurances Mutuelles (SAM)
- MMA VIE (SA)

- MMA Vie Assurances Mutuelles (SAM)

Permanent Representative:

- of COVEA (SGAM) on the Board of Directors of

Azur GMF Mutuelles Assurances associés

- of GMF Assurances on the Board of Directors of

FIDELIA Assistance

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
- EFI INVEST I (SCA)
- OFIVALMO Partenaires S.A.

Member of the Supervisory Board :
- OFI REIM (SAS)

Manager:
- OFIDOMUS (SCI) (RP OFIVALMO)

Non-Voting Director
- Gimar (SA)

Chairman of the Management Board
(association):

- lle-de-France Regional Development Agency

(ARD)

Chairman of the Board of Directors:

France

- MAAF Assurances (SAM)
- MAAF (SA)

- MMA IARD (SAM)

- MMA VIE (SAM)

- COVEA (SGAM)

Chairman of the Board of
Directors:

- Covéa Ré (formerly Océan
Ré)

- DAS (SAM)

- MAAF Santé (Mutuelle 45)

- Force et Santé (Union
Mutualiste)

- COSEM (Association)

- SC Holding S.A.S.
(Santéclair)

- MMA IARD (SA)
- MMA VIE (SA)
- MMA Coopérations (SA)

Director:

OFIGEST (subsidiary of
OFIVALMO)

- GOBTP

- OFIMALLIANCE S.AS
(subsidiary of OFIVALMO)

- OFI Asset Management
(subsidiary of OFIVALMO)

- Institut Sup. Métiers

Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board:

- ABP IARD (subsidiary of
MAAF S.A))

Chairman of the Executive
Committee:

- Fondation MMA

Chairman of the Executive
Committee:

- LMIH

Chairman of the SAS:
- Covéa Part

- Covéa Technologies
- Covéa Groupe

” In connection with the Crédit Lyonnais/Executive Life case, Jean-Claude Seys entered into a transaction with the California State Prosecutor
under the terms of which he is subject to five years probation, during which he may not go to the United States without special authorisation.
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document
- Institut Diderot

Abroad
Chairman of the Board of Directors:

- Harwanne (Switzerland)

Vice-Chairman:
- CASER (Spain)

Director:

- SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)

- CASER (Spain)

Non Voting Director:
- Covea Lux (Luxemburg)

five years:
Non Voting Director:
- SOCRAM

Abroad

Director:

- Covéa Lux (Luxemburg)

- Eurapco (Switzerland)

- IMA Iberica Seguros (Spain)

Vice-Chairman of the Board
of Directors:

CASER (Spain)

Claude TENDIL ®®
Director

Birth Date:
25 July 1945

Professional address:

GENERALI FRANCE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
7/9, boulevard Haussmann

75009 Paris

Principal positions:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer:

- Generali France
- Generali Vie
- Generali IARD

Other positions:

France

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- Europ Assistance Holding

- Generali France Assurance

Abroad

Chairman of the Board of Directors:
- Europ Assistance ltalie (ltaly)

Director:
- Assicurazioni Generali SpA (ltaly)*

Permanent Representative:

- of Europ Assistance Holding on the board of

Europ Assistance Espagne (Spain)

Member of the Supervisory Board :
- Generali Investments SpA (ltaly)

Chief Executive Officer:
- Generali France Holding
- Generali Assurances Vie

Chairman of the Board of
Directors:

- Assurance France Generali
- Generali Assurances lard

- La Fédération Continentale
- GPA Vie

- GPA lard

Director:

- L’Equité

- Continent Holding
- Continent IARD

- SCOR VIE

- Unibail Holding
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document five years:
Daniel VALOT @@ ®® France France
Director
Director: Chairman and Chief
Birth Date: -CGG Veritas* Executive Officer of

Technip* until 27 April 2007
(retirement)

24 August 1944 - Dietswell*
Professional address: Permanent Representative:

SCOR SE - of Technip : Technip
1, avenue du Général de Gaulle France (until 27 April 2007)

92800 Puteaux
Director:
- Institut Frangais du Pétrole
- SCOR VIE

Abroad:

Chairman:

- Technip ltaly (Italy) (until
27 April 2007)

- Technip Far East
(Malaysia) (until 27 April
2007)

Vice-Chairman:

- Technip Americas (U.S.)
(until 27 April 2007)

Director:
- Petrocanada (Canada)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee.

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market
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Other offices and positions held in any
company in France and abroad as at the date of Offices held during the last

the Registration Document five years:
(Cf)((egrges CHODRON de COURCEL Principal position: Erance
Member of the supervisory
Non-Voting Director Chief Operating Officer of BNP Paribas* board :
- SAGEM
Birth Date: Other positions:
20 May 1950 Director:
France - Capstar Partners SAS
Professional address:
BNP PARIBAS Director: Non-voting Director:
3, rue d’Antin - Bouygues S.A.* - SCOR VIE
75002 Paris - Alstom*
- Nexans S.A.* Chairman:
- Société Fonciere Financiére et de Participations - BNP Paribas Emergis
* AS.
(FFP)
- Verner Investissements SAS
Abroad:
Member of the supervisory board :
- Lagardére S.C.A.* Chairman:
- BNP Paribas UK Holdings
Chairman: Limited (U.K.)
- Compagnie d'Investissement de Paris S.A.S. .
. o . Director:
- Financiere BNP Paribas S.A.S. B Nazionale del L
both subsidiaries of BNP Paribas Elta‘%:‘)ca azionale aet Lavoro
- BNP Paribas Suisse
Non-voting Director: S.A.(Switzerland)
- SAFRAN * - BNPP ZAO (Russia)

- Exane (Subsidiary of Verner)
Abroad

Chairman:
- BNP Paribas Suisse S.A.(Switzerland)

Vice-Chairman:
- Fortis Banque N.V. (Belgium)

Director:

- Erbé S.A. (Belgium)

- GBL (Groupe Bruxelles Lambert) (Belgium)

- SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)

- SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung AG
(Switzerland)

- SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)

(1) Member of the Strategic Committee

(2) Member of the Risk Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee

(4) Member of the Compensation and Nominating Committee

* Companies which shares are listed on a regulated or organised market

114



14.1.2 BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION ON MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The following list provides biographical information on the directors in office at the date of the Registration Document.
Denis Kessler

Denis Kessler, a French citizen, is a graduate of HEC business school (Ecole des Hautes Etudes Commerciales) and
holds a PhD in economics and advanced degrees in economics and social sciences. He was Chairman of the
Fédération Francaise des Sociétés d’Assurance (FFSA), CEO and member of the Executive Committee of the AXA
Group and Executive Vice-President of MEDEF (Mouvement des Entreprises de France). He joined the Group as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer on 4 November 2002.

Carlo Acutis

Carlo Acutis, an ltalian citizen, is a Vice Chairman of Vittoria Assicurazioni S.p.A. He also serves as Chairman and
member of the Boards of Directors of a number of companies. This specialist of the international insurance market was
formerly Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Presidential Council of the CEA, Comité Européen des Assurances, and
director of the Geneva Association.

Gérard Andreck

Gérard Andreck, a French citizen, has been Chairman of the MACIF Group since June 2006. Andreck has a deep
interest in the mutual company and insurance sector, and he served as President of CJDES (Centre des Jeunes
Dirigeants de I'Economie Sociale) from 1991 to 1993. In June 1997, he became Chief Executive Officer of Macif and
second-in-command to Jean Simonnet, who was Chairman at that time. Gérard Andreck was instrumental in the
development of the close partnership between Caisses d'Epargne, Macif and Maif in October 2004, and he was
appointed Chairman of the Management Board of the holding company that formalised this partnership in November
2005. On1 July 2008, he has been appointed Chairman of the Groupement des Entreprises Mututelles d’Assurances
(GEMA) for three years.

Antonio Borges

Antonio Borges, a Portuguese citizen, was Vice Chairman of Goldman Sachs International in London. He is a member of
the Board of Directors of CNP Assurances and a member of the Tax Committee of Banco Santander Portugal. Antonio
Borges was also Dean of the INSEAD business school. He is now the Chairman of the Hedge Fund Standards Board
and Chairman of the European Corporate Governance Institute — ECGI.

Allan Chapin

Before becoming a partner at Compass Advisers LLP in New York in June 2002, Allan Chapin, a U.S. citizen, was a
partner at Sullivan & Cromwell LLP and Lazard Freres in New York for several years. He also serves on the boards of
directors for the Pinault Printemps Redoute group (PPR) and a number of subsidiaries of SCOR in the U.S.

Peter Eckert

Peter Eckert, a Swiss citizen, has a broad international experience in Risk Management, General and Life Insurance,
Asset Management, Banking and IT. He was member of the Management Board (1991-2007) and Chief Operating
Officer (2002-2007) of Zurich Financial Services, member of the Board of the Swiss Federal Banking Commission EBK
since 1 July 2007 until 31 December 2008 and Deputy Chairman of the Board of the new Swiss Financial Market
Supervising Authority (FINMA) from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008. Since 1 January 2009, he is Chairman of
Bank Clariden Leu.

Daniel Havis

Daniel Havis, a French citizen, joined the Mutuelle Assurance des Travailleurs Mutualistes (MATMUT) as a claims
examiner in 1980. As at today, he is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer MATMUT since 1994. From 1983 to 1988,
Daniel Havis was an Executive Assistant and then a Director at the Mutualité Frangaise de Seine-Maritime, where he
would serve as CEO from 1988 to 1994. He also holds a number of different mandates within the companies that, along
with AMF Assurances, make up the Matmut Group. These include Chairman of Matmut Mutualité and Chairman of the
Supervisory Boards of Matmut Assurances, Matmut Entreprises, Matmut-Vie and Matmut Protection Juridique. Since 8
December 2009, Daniel Havis has also been Vice Chairman of Sferen, the Mutual Insurance Group created with the
MACIF and the MAIF and was Chairman of GEMA until June 2008. He is also Chairman of MutRé since 1 January 2009.
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Daniel Lebegue

Daniel Lebégue, a French citizen, has been Chairman of the French National Treasury, Chief Executive Officer of BNP
and Caisse des Dépdts et Consignations, Chairman of the Supervisory Board of CDC IXIS and Chairman of Eulia. He
currently serves on the Boards of Directors for various companies and is the Chairman of the French Institute of
Directors (Institut Francgais des Administrateurs — IFA).

André Lévy-Lang

André Lévy-Lang, a French citizen, a former student of the Ecole Polytechnique (1956) and a Ph.D. in Business
Administration from the University of Stanford, began his career in 1960 as a physicist at the French Atomic Energy
Commission. From 1962 to 1974 he held various different technical and managerial positions at the Schlumberger
group, both in France and the United States. He joined the Paribas group in 1974 and in 1982 was appointed Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Compagnie Bancaire, a specialised financing subsidiary of Paribas, before becoming
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Paribas group in 1990. He held these positions until the merger with BNP in
1999. André Lévy Lang is an associate professor emeritus at the University of Paris-Dauphine, Chairman of the
Supervisory Board of Les Echos, Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Paris-Orléans, Chairman of both the Risk
Foundation and the Louis Bachelier Institute, and Vice Chairman of the Europlace Finance Institute. He is also a
member of the boards of the Institut des Hautes Etudes Scientifiques, the American Hospital in Paris and the French
Institute for International Relations.

Luc Rougé

Luc Rougé has 35 years of experience in reinsurance with SCOR SE in the management of treaties and claims, as well
as in studies, reporting and controls. He was the Works Council representative on the Board of Directors in the 1980s.
He then served as Secretary of the Works Council and as an employee director for nearly nine years. He is since 2007
the Director elected by the employees of the Group on a worldwide basis.

Guillaume Sarkozy, representing Médéric Prévoyance

Guillaume Sarkozy, French, is an engineer by training and a graduate of the Ecole Spéciale des Travaux Publics
(ESTP). He began his professional career in 1974 at the Office of Public Safety in the Ministry of the Interior, before
joining IBM France as a large corporate accounts manager in 1977. He has been a company leader in the textile and
services industries since 1979. Until June 2006, Guillaume Sarkozy exercised a number of responsibilities at the head of
professional associations, notably the French Textile Industries’ Union (from September 1993 to May 2006), the
Industrial Federations Group (2004 to July 2006), the CNPF and the Medef (1994-2006). Guillaume Sarkozy joined
Médéric in June 2006 and was appointed Group General Manager on 1 September 2006. He was appointed CEO of the
Malakoff Médéric Group on 1 July 2009.

Herbert Schimetschek

From 1997 to 2000, Herbert Schimetschek, an Austrian citizen, was Chairman of the Comité Européen des Assurances,
then until June 2000, Vice Chairman of the Austrian Insurance Companies Association, and from 1999 to 2001,
Chairman of the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer of UNIQA Versicherung A.G.

Jean-Claude Seys

Jean-Claude Seys, a French citizen, has spent his career in the insurance and banking industry. He was Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of MAAF and of MMA in which he remains a Director. He is the Vice-Chairman and Deputy
Director of COVEA (société de groupe d’assurance mutuelle).
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Claude Tendil

Claude Tendil, a French citizen, began his career at UAP in 1972. He joined the Drouot Group in 1980 as Chief
Operating Officer; he was promoted in 1987 to Chief Executive Officer, and then was appointed Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Présence assurances, a subsidiary of the Axa Group. In 1989, he was appointed Director and Chief
Executive Officer of Axa-Midi assurances, Chief Executive Officer of Axa from 1991 to 2000, then Vice-chairman of the
management board of the Axa Group until November 2001. During this same period, he is also Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Axa Group’s French insurance and assistance companies. Claude Tendil was appointed
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Generali Group in France in April 2002 and Chairman of the Europ
Assistance Group in March 2003.

Daniel Valot

A former student at the Ecole Nationale d’Administration and Chief Advisor to the French Accounting Office (Cour des
Comptes), Daniel Valot, a French citizen, was also notably Technical Cooperation Counselor to the French Ambassy in
Tunisia, Managing Director of Total South East Asia, Chairman and CEO of Total Petroleum North America, Chief
Executive Officer of Total Exploration Production, then Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Technip from
September 1999 until 27 April 2007.

Georges Chodron de Courcel

Georges Chodron de Courcel, a French citizen, is Chief Operating Officer of BNP Paribas and holds various positions as
Director in subsidiaries of the BNP Paribas Group.
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14.1.3 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Denis Kessler is assisted in his duties to define and implement the strategy for
SCOR's business by an executive board, known as the Executive Committee (the “COMEX”"), the members of which are
employees of SCOR.

The following table presents the Company’s executive officers who comprised the Executive Committee as at the date of
the Registration Document and their positions with SCOR, as well as the first appointment dates as executive officers of
SCOR.

Officer
Age Current position since Other positions
Denis Kessler 57 Chairman-Chief 2002 Refer to Section 14.1.1--Information on the
Executive Officer of Members of the Board of Directors.
SCOR SE
Jean-Luc 64 Chief Risk Officer of 2003 Director:
Besson SCOR SE SCOR Global P&C SE (France)

SCOR Global Life SE (France)

SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)
SCOR Africa Ltd (South Africa) (South Africa)
MutRé SA (France)SCOR UK Company Ltd (UK)
SCOR Underwriting Ltd (UK)

SCOR Global Life Riickversicherung Schweiz
AG (Switzerland)

SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland).

Julien Carmona 39 Group Chief Operating 2010 -

Officer
Benjamin 49 Deputy Chief 2007* Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Gentsch Executive Officer of SCOR Holding (UK) Ltd (UK)
SCOR Global P&C SE SCOR Insurance (UK) Ltd (UK)
Chief Execut!ve Officer SCOR UK Company Ltd (UK)
of SCOR Switzerland.
Chief Executive Officer :
SCOR Switzerland AG (Suisse)
SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Suisse)
Director:
SCOR Insurance (UK) Ltd (UK)
SCOR Holding (UK) Ltd (UK)
SCOR UK Group Ltd (UK)
SCOR UK Company Ltd (UK)
Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
SCOR Ruickversicherung (Deutschland) AG
(Germany)
Paolo 40 Group Chief Financial 2007° Director:
De Martin Officer SCOR Gilobal Life SE (France)

SCOR Global P&C SE (France)

SCOR Global Life Riickversicherunbg Schweiz
AG (Switzerland)

SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)
SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)
Member of the Supervisory Board:
ReMark Group BV (The Netherlands)

2 Benjamin Gentsch was previously an executive at Converium since 2002.
% Paolo De Martin had previously been an executive at Converium since 2006.
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Officer

Age Current position since Other positions
Gilles Meyer 52 Chief Executive Officer 2006 Chairman of the Board of Directors:
of SCOR Global Life SOLAREH S.A. (France)
SE

Prévoyance Ré (France)

Vice President of the Supervisory Board:
SCOR Global Investments SE (France)

Permanent Representative:

of SCOR Global Life SE at MUTRE’s Board
(France)

of SCOR SE with the French Federation of
Insurance Companies (France)

Statutory Director :
ReMark International BV (The Netherlands)
ReMark Group BV (The Netherlands)

Director:
SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)

SCOR Reinsurance Asia-Pacific PTE Ltd
(Singapore)

SCOR Global Life Re Insurance Company of
Texas (US)

SCOR Global Life Reinsurance Company of
America (U.S.)

Prévoyance Ré (France)
ReMark Japan K. K. (Japan)
Sweden Reinsurance Co. Ltd (Sweden)

SCOR Global Life Rickversicherung Schweiz
AG (Switzerland)

SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)
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Officer

Victor Peignet

Age
52

Current position

Chief Executive Officer
of SCOR Global P&C
SE

since
2004

Other positions
Director:
SCOR UK Company Ltd. (U.K)
SCOR UK Group Ltd. (U.K)
SCOR Channel Ltd. (Guernsey)
Arisis Ltd. (Guernsey)

General Security Indemnity Company of Arizona
(U.s.)

General Security National Insurance Company
(U.s.)

SCOR Reinsurance Company (U.S.);
SCOR Canada Reinsurance Company (Canada)

SCOR Reinsurance Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd
Singapore

Finimo Realty Pte Ltd (Singapore)

SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Ltd (Hong
Kong)

SCOR Services International Ltd (Hong Kong)
Arope Insurance SAL (Lebanon)

SCOR Holding (Switzerland) AG (Switzerland)
Commercial Risk Re-Insurance Company (U.S.)

SCOR Global Life Ruckversicherung Schweiz
AG (Switzerland)

SCOR Switzerland AG (Switzerland)

Permanent Representative:
SCOR SE at ASEFA S.A.’s Board (Spain).

Member of the Supervisory Board :
SCOR Global Investments SE (France)

SCOR Ruickversicherung (Deutschland) AG
(Germany)

Norbert Pyhel

59

Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of
SCOR Global Life SE

2008

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Investors Insurance Corporation (US)

Director

SCOR Global Life Re Insurance Company of
Texas (US)

SCOR Global Life US Re Insurance Company
(US)

SCOR Financial Services Ltd (UK)
SCOR Africa Ltd (South Africa)
Investors Insurance Corporation (US)

SCOR Global Life Reinsurance Company of
America (US)

SCOR Global Life Reinsurance Ireland Ltd
(Ireland)

Sweden Reinsurance Co. Ltd (Sweden)

Member of the Supervisory Board

SCOR Ruickversicherung (Deutschland) AG
(Germany)

120



Officer

Current position since Other positions
Francois de 43 Chief Executive Officer 2005 Member of the Management Board:
Varenne of SCOR Global SCOR Global investments SE (France)

investments SE

Member of the Supervisory Board:
Gimar Capital Investissements (France)

14.1.4 BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION ON THE MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Denis Kessler, 57, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of SCOR SE
Refer to Section 14.1.2. — Biographical information on the members of the Board of Directors.
Jean-Luc Besson, 64, Chief Risk Officer of SCOR SE

Jean-Luc Besson is an actuary and holds a PhD in Mathematics. He has served as a Professor of Mathematics at the
University level, then as Director of Research, Statistics and Information Systems at the FFSA. He was appointed Chief
Reserving Actuary of the Group in January 2003 and has been Chief Risk Officer since 1 July 2004.

Julien Carmona, 39, Group Chief Operating Officer of SCOR SE

Julien Carmona, a French citizen, is a graduate of the Ecole Normale Supérieure and has an advanced degree in
history. He is also a former student of the Ecole Nationale d'Administration and a former French Treasury Auditor. After
beginning his career at the French Finance Ministry, he joined BNP Paribas in 2001. From 2004 to 2007, he acted as
Financial Adviser to the President of the Republic. He was Executive Finance Director at the Caisse Nationale des
Caisses d'Epargne (CNCE) from June 2007 until it merged with the federal Bank of Banques Populaires in July 2009.

Benjamin Gentsch, 49, Deputy Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global P&C SE and Chief Executive Officer of SCOR
Switzerland

Benjamin Gentsch, a Swiss citizen, graduated with a degree in management from the University of St. Gallen, where he
specialised in insurance and risk management. From 1986 to 1998, he held several positions at Union Reinsurance
Company, where from 1990 to 1998 he directed treaty underwriting in Asia and Australia. In 1998, he joined Zirich Re
as head of international underwriting responsible for strengthening the company’s position in Asia, Australia, Africa and
Latin America. He also served as head of the “Global Aviation” reinsurance department and developed the “Global
Marine” department. In September 2002, Benjamin Gentsch was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Converium Zdrich,
then Executive Vice President in charge of Specialty Treaties. In September 2007, he was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of SCOR Switzerland and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global P&C SE.

Paolo De Martin, 40, Group Chief Financial Officer of SCOR SE

Paolo De Martin, an Italian national, graduated from Ca’ Foscari University, Italy, with a degree in Business Economics.
He subsequently spent two years in the optical business as founder and managing partner of an eyewear manufacturer.
He joined the General Electric Company (GE) in 1995 as a finance trainee in London. In 1997, he joined GE's internal
auditing & consulting Group, charged with assignments in multiple GE businesses in the Americas, Europe and Asia-
Pacific. In 2001, Paolo De Martin was promoted to Executive Manager for GE Capital Europe, before joining GE
Insurance Solutions as Financial Planning and Analysis Manager for Global Property and Casualty Reinsurance.. As of
2003, he was appointed Chief Financial Officer of GE Frankona Group before becoming Chief Financial Officer of
Converium in July 2006. In September 2007, Paolo De Martin was appointed Group Chief Financial Officer of SCOR.
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Gilles Meyer, 52, Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global Life SE

Gilles Meyer holds dual French and Swiss nationality and a degree from a French business school and an MBA from
GSBA in Zirich. Gilles Meyer started his career as an underwriter at Swiss Re before managing the facultative
department of La Baloise in Basel. After 23 years of experience in facultative and treaty reinsurance, Gilles Meyer was
Chief Executive Officer of Alea Europe from 1999 to 2006, where he was in charge of property-casualty reinsurance and
Life reinsurance, and from 2005 to 2006, he was Manager of group underwriting at Alea. He joined the Group in January
2006 and to date has managed the German-speaking markets of SCOR Global P&C based in Hanover, Basel, and
Winterthur. He was named head of Business Unit 1 of SCOR Global Life and a member of the Group Executive
Committee in November 2006, then Deputy Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global Life SE in September 2007. In
January 2008, he was appointed Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global Life SE.

Victor Peignet, 52, Chief Executive Officer of SCOR Global P&C SE

Victor Peignet, a Marine Engineer and graduate of the Ecole Nationale Supérieure des Techniques Avancées (ENSTA),
joined the Facultative Department of SCOR in 1984 from the offshore oil sector. From 1984 to 2001, he held various
positions in underwriting Energy and Marine Transport risks at SCOR, first as an underwriter and then as Branch
Director. He has led the Group's Business Solutions (facultative) division since it was created in 2000, as both Deputy
Chief Executive Officer and then as Chief Executive Officer since April 2004. On 5 July 2005, Victor Peignet was
appointed manager of all Property Reinsurance operations at SCOR Global P&C. H